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Company Overview

awson is global provider of enterprise

software services and support targeting

customers in specific industries including

healthcare public sector United States

equipment service management and rental

fashion food beverage as well as the horizontal

market for our human capital management

product line We also serve customers in general

manufacturing distribution and service

industries Our goal is to be the global leader in

our target markets with particular focus on

meeting the needs of mid-market customers

Geographic Markets Served The Americas

Europe Middle East and Africa EMEA and the

Asia-Pacific region including Australia and

New Zealand APAC

Solutions Scalable business software

applications tailored to specific vertical

industries provided in more than 16 languages

Architecture Flexible web-based architecture

that supports multiple hardware platforms

Products The Lawson product vision is to

satisfy the complex needs of our customers

in the simplest possible manner The Lawson

product stack consists of technology and

applications Applications consist of the Lawson

S3 Enterprise Management System the

Lawson M3 Enterprise Management System

and the Lawson Human Capital Management

System Technology consists of the Lawson

Business Process Platform and the awson

User Productivity Platform

Employees Approximately 3900 worldwide

Founded 1975

Fiscal Year-End May 31

Headquarters Saint Paul Minnesota

Ticker Symbol LWSN

Exchanges The NASDAQ Global Select and

The First North Exchange

Shares Outstanding 162974854

as of August 25 2010



Fiscal 2010
Annual Revenue

inUSDMiIIions Business Highlights
$852 Fiscal year ended May31 2010

$750 $757 $736

Consulting Revenues
Generated $153 million in cash from operations

115 percent increase over fiscal 2009

___i_1.___.l___I_

Software Revenues

maintenance revenues increased percent

Software revenues license fees and

06 07 08 09 10

to $477 million driven by license fee growth

of percent

Consulting revenues fell percent to

$259 million The decline includes the

Non-GAAP Net lncome
effect of strategic restructuring of our

In USD Millions

consulting business

$69

Launched 42 new products including

$60

Cloud Console Transaction Archive

Management Analytics for Equipment Service

Management and Rental Analytics for Fashion

Business Process Warehouse for S3 Cloverleaf

Integration Services Succession Management

06 07 08 09 10 and Performance Management

Acquired Healthvision Solutions Inc for

$160 million in January 2010 to augment

products in our healthcare vertical

Cash Flow From Operations

in I.JSD Millions
Maintained healthy balance sheet with

$153 $376 million in cash cash equivalents and

marketable securities

$99

_i___i___ii___ii___I_

Repurchased .3 million shares for $7 million

06 07 08 09 10

i344P net income loss to non-GAAP net income reconciliation is

included in the Management Discussion andAnaysis section in

ourAnnuaRepoil on Fomi 10-K and in thisAnnual Review
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Over the past five years we have been implementing changes and

steadily transforming Lawson as we work toward achieving our vision

of becoming the global ERP leader in each of our target markets

Free cash flow of $134 million compared to

$42 million in the previous year

Non-GAAP operating margin of nearly 16

percent continuing 6-year trend of steady

improvement

Record quarterly non-GAAP earnings per share

of $0.12 in the fourth quarter

Acquisition Strategy Delivering Results and

Creating Opportunities

Our Healthcare business benefited from our January

2010 acquisition of Healthvision which broadened

our product offerings for the U.S healthcare market

positioned us in growth areas targeted for IT

investment and legislative reform and extended our

capabilities into the Canadian healthcare market

We integrated Healthvision into our Healthcare

business in under six months signed 97 customer

deals added incremental revenue and profits

and established strong pipeline of cross-selling

opportunities for fiscal 2011

We are particularly excited about the opportunity

Healthvision gives us to create secure patient data

exchanges as the sharing of health information has

the potential to reduce healthcare costs and improve

the quality of patient care

Headwinds in EMEA and Consulting Services

Few international companies could entirely escape

the impact of the global economic downturn lagging

recovery and currency fluctuations against the U.S

dollar over the past year With more than 30 percent

of our business in Europe Lawson was no exception

as our EMEA region customers were hit particularly

hard by the recession

To address the continued challenging environment

in this region we made the appropriate adjustments

primarily in our EMEA consulting services

organization which also reflected our strategic

decision to shift our revenue mix toward higher-

margin license and maintenance revenues and

reduce the contribution from lower-margin

consulting services

With healthier revenue mix in place and improved

operating margins we can now focus on growth as

we build on this model in fiscal 2011

Growth Opportunities Ahead

As we begin fiscal 2011 we are focused on both

organic and acquisition-driven growth opportunities

Four key opportunities are as follows

New Human Capital Management HCM Solution

HCM is now our number one and fastest-growing

product With more than 1400 customers HCM

is already major revenue generator for us

contributing more than $100 million in annual

revenues Furthermore the recent investment we

made to build out our industry-leading solution to

include Lawson Talent Management and Lawson

Workforce Management is expected to allow HCM

to continue to be our fastest-growing area over

the next three years

Increased Customer Adoption of New Products

With approximately 60 percent of our S3

customers and 30 percent of our M3 customers

on our latest versions there is ample opportunity

for us to drive additional customer adoption of

the substantial number of new products we

have made available in the last three years



That extensive list includes products such as

Enterprise Search Smart Office Business

Intelligence and our many industry solutions

Lawson Cloud Services In March we announced

the release of Lawson External Cloud Services on

Amazon Web Services infrastructure In April we

followed this with Lawson Internal Cloud Services

which is designed for onsite deployments of

our software

Lawson External Cloud Services features our

full-function Lawson S3 Lawson M3 and Lawson

Talent Management software We provide

customers who sign up with the unique choice of

licensing the software or paying for subscription

which can be converted to perpetual license

key benefit for our customers is that they do

not have to go out and buy hardware or manage

data center and key differentiator for Lawson

is that we provide our customers with their own

customizable version of the software

Lawson is the first ERP company to make this

kind of offer to our target industries Eventually

all our applications will be available on Lawson

External Cloud Services and Lawson Internal

Cloud Services

Strategic Acquisitions As mentioned earlier

Healthvision represents the kind of company

we seek to add to Lawson We will remain very

disciplined and rigorous in our evaluation process

and will only pursue acquisitions that meet our

strict strategic and financial criteria

Summary

We are pleased with our performance over the last

year but clearly we have more work to do As you

can see by our recent performance we are making

substantial progress We have clear vision sound

strategy and four key growth opportunities identified

for fiscal 2011

would like to thank our loyal customers dedicated

employees strong business partners and you our

stockholders for your continued support

Sincerely

Harry Debes

President and Chief Executive Officer

August 31 2010
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Forward-Looking Statements

In addition to historical information this Annual Report on Form 10-K contains forward-looking statements

including statements that contain risks and uncertainties These forward-looking statements contain statements of intent

belief or current expectations of Lawson Software and its management The forward-looking statements are made in reliance

upon the safe harbor provisions of the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995 The words believe expect

anticipate intend estimate forecast project should and similar expressions are intended to identif

forward-looking statements within the meaning of the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995 Forward-looking

statements include among others statements about our future performance the continuation of historical trends the

sufficiency of our sources of capital for future needs the effects of acquisitions the outcome of pending litigation and the

expected impact of recently issued accounting pronouncements The forward-looking statements are subject to certain risks

and uncertainties that could cause actual results to differ materially from those anticipated in the forward-looking statements

Factors that might cause such difference include but are not limited to those discussed in Item 1A Risk Factors Readers

are cautioned not to place undue reliance on these forward-looking statements which reflect managements opinions only as

of the date hereof The Company undertakes no obligation to revise or publicly release the results of any revision to these

forward-looking statements Readers should carefully review the risk factors described in this Annual Report on Form 10-K

and in other documents we file from time to time with the Securities and Exchange Commission SEC including our

Quarterly Reports on Form 10-Q

Note Regarding Statistical Information

The Gartner Reports described herein under Focusing on Specific Industries and the Mid-Market the Gartner

Reports represent data research opinion or viewpoints published as part of syndicated subscription service by

Gartner Inc Gartner and are not representations of fact Each Gartner Report speaks as of its original publication date

and not as of the date of this Annual Report on Form 10-K and the opinions expressed in the Gartner Reports are subject to

change without notice

Part

When we refer to we our us the Company Lawson or Lawson Software we mean Lawson

Software Inc and its subsidiaries Unless otherwise indicated references to our fiscal year mean the fiscal year ended on

May 31 of such year

Item Business

General

Lawson Software Inc is global provider of enterprise software We provide business application software

consulting and maintenance to customers primarily in specific services trade and manufacturing/distribution industries We

specialize in and target specific industries through our three reportable segments S3 Strategic Industries segment which

targets customers in the healthcare and public sector industries as well as the horizontal market for our human capital

management product line M3 Strategic Industries segment which targets customers in the equipment service management

rental food beverage and fashion industries and our General Industries segment which includes our services industries

S3 customers and manufacturing distribution industries M3 customers which are in industries not included in our other

two industries groups Our goal is to be the global leader in our target markets with particular focus on meeting the needs

of mid-market customers

Our mission is to make our customers stronger We offer broad range of software applications and

industry-specific solutions that help our customers improve their business
processes and reduce costs resulting in better

business or operational performance Lawson solutions help automate and integrate business processes and promote

collaboration among our customers and their partners suppliers and employees Through our consulting services we help our

customers implement learn to use upgrade and optimize their Lawson applications Through our support services we

provide ongoing maintenance and assistance to our customers

Lawson serves customers in three geographic regions the Americas Europe Middle East and Africa EMEA and

Asia-Pacific including Australia and New Zealand APAC We provide software in 16 languages to our customers in 68

countries and have approximately 3900 employees throughout the world



We generate revenues in three ways software license fees customer support and maintenance and

consulting services We market and sell our software and services primarily through direct sales force which is

augmented by channel partners and resellers

During fiscal 2009 and prior years we viewed our operations and managed our business as one reportable segment

the development and marketing of computer software and related services including consulting maintenance and customer

support Beginning in the first quarter of fiscal 2010 we reorganized our operations to provide greater focus on and better

serve our targeted vertical markets With this strategic organizational change including workforce realignment we

determined that we have three reportable segments that align with our three industries groups S3 Strategic Industries M3

Strategic Industries and General Industries See Note 14 Segment and Geographic Information in Notes to Consolidated

Financial Statements of this Form 10-K for additional information

Lawson was founded and incorporated in 1975 In February 2001 we reincorporated in Delaware through merger

with our predecessor Lawson Associates Inc Minnesota corporation We established new Delaware corporation as our

parent company as part of the acquisition of Intentia in April 2006

On April 25 2006 Lawson acquired Intentia International AB Intentia Sweden-based provider of enterprise

software in an all-stock transaction valued at $460.9 million The combination with Intentia increased Lawsons operational

scale product portfolio and geographic reach to compete in the global enterprise software market

On January 11 2010 we acquired Healthvision Dallas-based company providing integration and application

technology and related services to hospitals and large healthcare organizations for $160.0 million in cash The acquisition of

Healthvision is strategic fit for our Lawson Healthcare customers within our S3 Strategic Industries segment See Note

Business Combinations in Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements of this Form 10-K for additional information

We have made significant investments over the past few years in establishing our global support center in Manila

Philippines This facility employs over 800 employees and provides our customers product development consulting services

support and delivery at competitive global rates In addition the Manila team provides shared services to our IT finance and

other corporate functions

Lawson has offices in 26 countries Our principal executive office is at 380 Saint Peter Street Saint Paul Minnesota

55102-1302 Our telephone number is 1-651-767-7000 Our website is www.lawson.com Other than the information

expressly set forth in this annual report the information contained or referred to on our website is not part of this annual

report

Environment

We face competitive and challenging environment for sales of our software and services Industry consolidation

continues to be primary factor shaping the selling enviromnent Our focus on specific industries and our low total cost of

ownership continue to be our primary competitive differentiators in this environment

Consolidation

In recent years the enterprise software industry has consolidated driven by mergers and acquisitions This activity

has included larger companies making acquisitions purely to acquire customer base or to fill out their product lines creating

horizontal providers of most forms of enterprise software It has also involved smaller companies joining forces to better

compete in the market Oracle Corporation has been the most active in our industry acquiring approximately 50 companies

since 2005 Of note Oracle acquired PeopleSoft Inc in 2005 which had acquired J.D Edwards Company in 2003

Retek Inc in 2005 Siebel Systems Inc in 2006 Hyperion Solutions Corporation in 2007 BEA Systems Inc in 2008 and Sun

Micro Systems Inc in January 2010 Other major acquisitions in our industry include Infor Global Solutions acquiring SSA

Global in July 2006 and SAP AG purchasing Business Objects S.A in 2008 and most recently their announced intent to

acquire Sybase Inc

While this consolidation has created larger companies with broad product lines it has also resulted in fewer

competitors providing less choice for customers As result we believe this consolidation has created an opportunity for

Lawson to serve customers that may have budget or IT-resource constraints or are simply interested in another option to the

two or three large vendors For many customers we present competitive alternative to the large horizontal providers while

maintaining an ability to compete with smaller niche providers



Focusing on Specific Industries and the Mid-Market

Lawson strives to be compelling choice to certain enterprise software customers We believe that we have

developed competitive advantages in serving several specific industries and mid-market companies As result we target

specific industries including manufacturing distribution healthcare public sector U.S service industries equipment

service management rental food beverage and fashion as well as the horizontal market for our human capital

management product line We believe an industry-specific focus is fundamental to our ability to help our customers achieve

their desired results and derive greater value from their enterprise software investments

Our industry-specific focus helps us develop industry-specific solutions provide industry-specific expertise to sell

and implement these solutions and offer industry-specific support on an ongoing basis This industry orientation helps

differentiate Lawson and enables us to present Lawson not only as competitive alternative but also as compelling choice

At the same time many of our products have broad application across multiple industries and are well-suited for

customers outside our targeted industries Many companies seek general enterprise software and not necessarily

industry-specific solutions Over the years Lawson has developed an expertise serving mid-to-large size customers and this

so-called mid-market now comprises the vast majority of our customer base While the effects of the weakened global

economy had significant impact in fiscal 2009 and 2010 and will continue to be felt in fiscal 2011 we consider the mid-

market to have growth potential for enterprise software during the next few years Our horizontal productshuman capital

management enterprise financial management business intelligence and asset managementare well-suited for these types

of mid-market opportunities The Gartner Report Forecast Small and Midsize Business ERP Software North America

2008-2013 published in November 2009 estimated that total revenues for the ERP Upper Midmarket in North America

declined by 1.3% in 2009 However the report also forecasts that same market segment to grow 4.6% in both 2010 and 2011

to over $1.4 billion in total revenues The market recovery in Western Europe is expected to take longer The Gartner Report

Forecast Small and Midsize Business ERP Software Western Europe 2008-2013 published in February 2010 estimated

that total revenues for the ERP Upper Midmarket in Western Europe declined by 3.0% in 2009 An additional decline of

0.5% is forecasted for 2010 before rebounding 4.1% to 1.36 billion Euros in 2011 Increasingly businesses within this

category are looking to buy add to or replace the systems they are using to help manage their financial human resources

procurement distribution or other business management processes Within the Gartner North American forecast above the

human capital management submarket in North America also had slight decline in 2009 but is forecasted to rebound

quickly with growth rates in excess of 9% in both 2010 and 2011 reaching total of $477.0 million in total revenues

Competition

The enterprise software industry is intensely competitive rapidly changing and significantly affected by new

product offerings and other market activities Some of our competitors have an advantage over us due to their larger customer

bases larger technical staffs greater brand name recognition and greater financial and marketing resources We believe the

principal competitive factors affecting our market include

product features functionality perfonnance and price

knowledge of customers industry and tailored solutions

company stability resources and reputation

ease of integration and speed of implementation

level of customer service

sales and marketing efforts and

new product and technology introductions

We believe Lawson has competitive advantages over number of our competitors Some of these advantages

include

35 years of experience serving mid-market customers



low total cost of ownership

industry-specific experience and expertise

industry-focused solutions and

openness and flexibility of our software architecture

Lawsons most frequently encountered competitors are SAP AG and Oracle Corporation Both are large global

vendors that are increasingly targeting mid-sized businesses particularly as their traditional larger-customer market becomes

saturated We believe there is demand for vendor like Lawson that can offer scalable applications that are simpler to

implement and operate than the more complex applications of SAP and Oracle Our focus is on delivering simpler solutions

with lower total ownership costs including license fees consulting services and on going customer support

As large strong global company we believe Lawson can compete and win against SAP and Oracle especially

customer opportunities in mid-sized organizations or in our targeted industries By increasing our scale and the range of our

products we believe Lawson also provides an alternative to attempts by Microsoft another significant competitor to move

into the mid-market segment

Lawson has also strengthened its competitive position by launching innovative new products like Lawson Smart

Office Lawson Enterprise Search Lawson Human Capital Management Lawson System Foundation and Lawson QuickStep

solutions Increasingly we are generating applications using our Landmark Application Designer proprietary application

design tool that significantly reduces the lines of software code in applications We have also significantly improved our

consulting and maintenance offerings to give our customers greater choice in how we install and support their Lawson

applications and technology

Products and Services

Software

Our software products include applications and technology Applications consist of the Lawson S3 Enterprise

Management System the Lawson M3 Enterprise Management System and the Lawson Human Capital Management System

Technology consists of the Lawson Business Process Platform on which Lawson applications run and the Lawson User

Productivity Platform which searches collects and analyzes data from the Lawson applications as depicted below

IJPIIuOttItyP1lM1I1

Human CapiI Mnaennt

Lawson S3 Enterprise Management SystensLawson S3 applications help customers staff source and serve in

their respective markets The Lawson S3 product line is specifically designed for services industries
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Lawson S3 Enterprise Management System

Lawson Enterprise Financial Budgeting forecasting project management and financial reporting software

Management

Key products Financials Project Accounting Grant Management Expense

Management and Budgeting Planning

Lawson Supply Chain Management Software to manage the entire supply chainfrom procurement to delivery

Key products Contract Management Procurement Requisitions Self Service

Procurement Punchout Vendor Self Service Strategic Sourcing Distribution

Management and Customer Self Service

Lawson Services Management Software to manage the time work and delivery of services professionals

Key products Project Portfolio Management Services Automation and Time

Management

Industry-Tailored Solutions Using our industry expertise in targeted industries to provide functionality to address

specific business needs of these industries i.e Surgical Instrument Management

Healthcare Integration Software Health Information Exchange Software Clinical

Software Patient Administration and Operations Software Par and Cycle Counting

Receiving and Delivery Performance Management for Healthcare Retail Operations

and Grant Management

Lawson M3 Enterprise Management SystemLawson M3 applications help customers who make move and

maintain goods or equipment in their markets The Lawson M3 product line is geared for manufacturing and trade-oriented

businesses facing resource constraints and whose processes are often complex and industry-specific

Lawson M3 Enterprise Management System

Lawson Financial Management Financial accounting and planning software

Key products Accounts Receivable Budgeting Cost Accounting Cash Flow

Management General Ledger Product Costing and Risk Management

Lawson Manufacturing Operations Software for discrete manufacturing process manufacturing and mixed-mode

manufacturing environments

Key products M3 Manufacturing Execution and M3 Product Data Management

Lawson Supply Chain Management Forecasting planning and execution software

Key products Procurement Supply Chain Execution and Supply Chain Planning

Equipment Service Management Software specifically designed for equipment manufacturers distributors and rental

Rental companies who focus on after- sales service and continuous customer care

Key products Equipment and Component Control Preventative Maintenance Work

Order Processing Maintenance and Performance Costing Maintenance Customer

Order Processing Maintenance Planning Board Diagnostics Management and

Vehicle Operations Management

Lawson Enterprise Asset Asset management software

Management

Key products Enterprise Asset Management Asset Performance Management

Maintenance Management Asset Data Management Preventative Maintenance

Work-order Control Diagnostics Management and Statistical Analysis

Lawson Customer Sales and Service Customer relationship management software

Key products Service Management and Rental Management

Lawson Human Capital Management HCM Products and Solutions Applications in the Lawson HCM
product line provide solutions for customers to strategically manage their workforce The Lawson HCM product line is full

suite of products that helps customers transform the role of the Human Resources FIR professional from an administrative

and policy enforcing role to that of strategic business partner



Lawson Human Capital Management

Lawson Talent Management Software to manage develop and retain employees

Key products Lawson Talent Acquisition Lawson Goal Management Lawson

Performance Management Lawson Compensation Management Lawson Learning

and Development Lawson Succession Management and Lawson Global Human

Resources

Lawson Human Resource Software to manage the HR processes related to employees

Management

Key products Lawson Absence Management Lawson Benefits Administration

Lawson e-Recruiting Lawson Employee and Manager Self-Service Lawson Human

Resources Lawson Payroll Lawson Performance Management for Healthcare

Lawson Personnel Administration Lawson Resource Navigator Lawson Teacher

Contract Administration and TalentView of Performance

Lawson Workforce Management Software that automates time intensive staffing and scheduling tasks

Key products Lawson Scheduling and Staffing Lawson Scheduling and Staffing for

Casinos Lawson Scheduling and Staffing for Healthcare and Lawson TimeOff

Planner for Healthcare

Lawson TechnologyThe platform to run all Lawson applications and tools to search collect and analyze data

Lawson Business Process Platform

Lawson Business Process Add-ons to almost any Lawson application to tailor the application to customers

Management specific needs These tools include Business Process Automation and Workflow

Tools business-to-business communication and application-to-application Integration

Tools Development Tools and System Tools

S3 Key products Lawson ProcessFlow Integrator and Lawson Design Studio

M3 Key products IBrix Design Collaborator Web Services Application Program

Interface Automated Document Capture and EDI Management

Lawson S3 System Foundation The technical foundation required to run Lawson S3 applications Includes open

standards-based technology that consolidates Lawson runtime technology with IBM

technology and middleware

Key products Landmark Technology and Core Technology Application

Maintenance Toolset Security Portal ProcessFlow Standard ADA Section 508

Accessibility

Lawson M3 System Foundation The technical foundation required to run Lawson M3 applications

Key products Workplace Management Applications Application Foundation and

Web Application Foundation

Lawson User Productivity Platform

Lawson S3 Enterprise Performance Role-based business intelligence software that can help improve and speed

Management decision-making throughout an enterprise

Key products Lawson Business Intelligence Lawson Business Consulting Services

and Lawson ProcessFlow Professional

Lawson M3 Enterprise Performance Business intelligence and opportunity assessment software that can identify strategic

Management business improvement opportunities and speed decision-making throughout an

enterprise

Key products Opportunity Analyzer Business Intelligence for M3 M3 Business

Performance Management and M3 Analytics

Lawson Smart Office An innovative user interface that redefines the user experience with Lawson and non-

Lawson applications Lawson Smart Office allows users to directly access Lawson

and Microsoft applications and update data pervasively and instantly across the

applications Lawson Smart Office enhances user productivity

Lawson Enterprise Search Lawson Enterprise Search redefines the search capability for structured and

unstructured data across the Lawson S3 enterprise system Lawson Business

Intelligence the users desktop and the users personal history such as comments

entered in Microsoft Office applications



Maintenance and Customer Support

Our customer support programs include software upgrades updates and corrections for the software under

maintenance as well as various levels of support including access to our knowledge base and the Lawson support team

technical advice and application management These programs Lawson Bronze and Lawson Silver maintenance agreements

are comprehensive customer care programs which entitle our customers to various levels of support to meet their specific

needs Our maintenance and customer support offerings are delivered through the Lawson Global Support organization

operating from our state-of-the-art support centers around the world

Consulting Services

Our consulting services range from the initial assessment and planning of project to the actual implementation and

post implementation of project including optimizing customers use of their Lawson software We also provide training

and learning tools via Lawson Learning to help our customers become proficient in using Lawson software quickly and

effectively

Cloud Services

Announced in the spring of 2010 Lawson Cloud Services brings the benefits of cloud computing to external off

premise and internal on-premise deployments of Lawson software applications

Lawson External Cloud Services combines full-function ERP software from Lawson with industry-leading cloud

technology from Amazon Web Services Lawson External Cloud Services includes our Lawson S3 Enterprise Management

System Lawson M3 Enterprise Management System and Lawson Talent Management As part of the Lawson External Cloud

Services offering Lawsons flexible pricing gives our customers the choice of paying for their software by subscription or

perpetual license

Lawson Internal Cloud Services brings the benefits of software virtualization and cloud computing to our customers

who want an on-premise deployment of their Lawson solutions Lawson Internal Cloud Services utilizes the innovative

Lawson Cloud Console and the first two of what Lawson plans to be series of virtual appliances The first virtual

appliances are Lawson Smart Office and Lawson Enterprise Search Virtual Appliances are pre-assembled software

bundles that eliminate the arduous time-consuming process of manually installing software

Sales and Marketing

We market and sell our software and services solutions primarily through direct sales force augmented by

strategic alliances with systems integrators and resellers Our direct sales force and services organizations are aligned with

our strategy of providing industry-tailored applications Within each industry we have sales team dedicated to prospective

customers and another dedicated to existing customers We also have regional sales teams that focus on specific geographic

territories Our sales and service offices are located in three geographic regions the Americas EMEA and APAC

In addition to our direct sales teams we enter into strategic alliances with systems integrators and resellers to benefit

from our partners resources expertise and customer base Business partner alliances allow us to expand our market presence

through increased awareness of our software applications within our partners organizations and customer bases and through

their personnel who are trained to implement our software Our channel partners market and promote our software products

and typically provide implementation services to their end-users Channel partners generate sales leads make initial customer

contacts and assess needs prior to our introduction In addition some of our channel partners engage in customer support and

localization of our products We also engage in joint marketing programs presentations at seminars attendance at trade

shows and the hosting of conferences with many of our business partners

We also use application service providers ASPs to distribute our products in hosted environment ASPs allow us

to reach small-to-medium sized businesses that prefer hosted solution Our softwares architecture is easily distributed over

the Internet and is highly scalable to serve many customers It also supports multi-tenancy which lets ASPs securely host

multiple customers on single set of our applications



Research and Development

Since our inception we have made substantial investments in software product development We believe that timely

development of new software applications enhancements to existing software applications and the acquisition of rights to

sell or incorporate complementary technologies and products into our software offerings are essential to maintain our

competitive position in the market The business application software market is characterized by rapid technological change

frequent introductions of new products changes in customer demands and rapidly evolving industry standards

We are committed to continued investment in RD to enhance our existing products as well as developing new

applications using our Landmark development tool for our Lawson S3 Lawson M3 and Lawson Human Capital Management

product lines

Our total research and development expenses were $90.3 million $82.4 million and $85.4 million in fiscal 2010

2009 and 2008 respectively As of May 31 2010 our research and development organization consisted of approximately

1000 employees See Item Managements Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations for

further discussion of RD expenses

Trademarks

Lawson and Lawson Software are registered trademarks in the U.S and the European Union Other trademarks

and trade names appearing in this document are the property of their respective holders

Intellectual Property and Product Liability

We regard certain aspects of our internal operations software and documentation as proprietary and rely on

combination of contract copyright patent trademark and trade secret laws and other measures including confidentiality

agreements to protect our proprietary information We currently hold 11 patents in the U.S Existing copyright laws afford

only limited protection We believe that because of the rapid pace of technological change in the computer software industry

trade secret and copyright protection is less significant than factors such as the knowledge ability and experience of our

employees frequent software product enhancements and the timeliness and quality of support services We cannot guarantee

that these protections will be adequate or that our competitors will not independently develop technologies that are

substantially equivalent or superior to our technology Historically we have provided our customers source code for many of

our products We may elect to distribute only object code in the future In either case we will permit customers to obtain

access to our other source code through source code escrow arrangement Access to our source code may increase the

likelihood of misappropriation or other misuse of our intellectual property In addition the laws of certain countries in which

our software products are or may be licensed do not protect our software products and intellectual property rights to the

same extent as the laws of the U.S and Sweden

We do not believe our software products third-party software products we offer under sublicense agreements our

trademarks or other Lawson proprietary rights infringe the property rights of third parties However we cannot guarantee

that third parties will not assert infringement claims against us with respect to current or future software products or that any

such assertion may not require us to enter into royalty arrangements or result in costly litigation As described in this report

under Item Legal Proceedings we are currently defending three separate and unrelated patent infringement lawsuits in the

U.S Under the license agreements with our customers we agree to indemnify our customers for third-party claims that our

products infringe the intellectual property rights of those third parties

We are also exposed to product liability risks under applicable country and state laws We generally attempt to limit

our exposure to product liability claims with customers as part of our license agreements However local laws or unfavorable

judicial decisions might diminish or invalidate the scope of these limitations

Employees

As of May 31 2010 we had approximately 3900 employees including approximately 600 in sales and marketing

approximately 1000 in research and development approximately 1700 in services and customer support and approximately

600 in administration None of our employees in the U.S are represented by labor union We are party to collective labor

agreement applicable to our employees in Sweden and in certain other international subsidiaries workers councils represent

our employees



Executive Officers

The following sets forth our executive officers as of June 30 2010 their age position and brief description of their

business experience

Position

Harry Debes 59 President Chief Executive Officer Director

Stefan Schulz 43 Senior Vice President Chief Financial Officer

Cohn Balmforth 49 Group Executive Vice President General Industries and Global

Support

Jeff Comport 56 Senior Vice President Product Management

Dean Hager 43 Group Executive Vice President S3 Industries

Bruce McPheeters 55 Senior Vice President Secretary and General Counsel

Paul Parish 60 Senior Vice President Chief Information Officer

Scott Swoish 48 Executive Vice President Global Services

Guenther Tolkmit 58 Senior Vice President Product Development

Kristin Trecker 45 Senior Vice President Human Resources

Eric Verniaut 44 Executive Vice President Industry Group

Travis White 60 Senior Vice President Marketing

Harry Debes has served as our president and chief executive officer and as director since June 2005 From

November 2003 until June 2005 Mr Debes was president and chief executive officer of SPL Worldgroup leading provider

of enterprise software to the electric utility industry From May 2001 until joining SPL Worldgroup he was employed by JD

Edwards Co an enterprise software company where he served as senior vice president Americas until JD Edwards was

acquired by Peoplesoft Inc in August 2003 From 1990 until May 2001 Mr Debes was employed by GEAC Computer

Corporation an enterprise software company While working for GEAC Mr Debes held variety of positions including

managing director of GEAC Asia-Pacific and president of GEAC Enterprise Solutions for the Americas

Stefan Schulz has served as senior vice president and chief financial officer since January 2010 From October 2007

through December 2009 he served as senior vice president of finance and as senior vice presidentglobal controller from

October 2005 until September 2007 In addition Mr Schulz served as our interim chief financial officer from August 2006

until October 2006 and has served as our principal accounting officer since October 2005 From November 1993 until joining

us in October 2005 he was employed by BMC Software Inc provider of enterprise management solutions that empower

companies to automate their IT and align it to the needs of the business While at BMC Software he served as corporate

controller from February 2001 to May 2004 and most recently as vice president of revenue operations Prior to joining BMC
Mr Schulz was employed by Arthur Andersen LLP in their audit and business advisory practice

Cohn Balnforth has served as our group executive vice president of general industries and global support since June

2009 From December 2007 until June 2009 Mr Balmforth served as our senior vice president of global support From

September 2005 until December 2007 Mr Balmforth was vice president of professional services for Intelliden Software

provider of intelligent networking software solutions From July 2003 until September 2005 Mr Balmforth was chief

operating officer and executive vice president for Conexus Partners an advisory consulting firm for the enterprise resource

planning ERP software market From 1998 to 2003 Mr Balmforth held several senior management positions with

Peoplesoft Inc and J.D Edwards Company including global responsibility for the support business functions at those ERP

software companies From 1984 until 1998 Mr Balmforth held various support and services management positions with

several software companies Mr Balmforth was based in Europe from 1984 until March 2000

Jeffrey Comport has served as senior vice president of product management since November 2009 Mr Comport

provides strategic oversight and coordination across all the Lawson S3 M3 Strategic Human Capital Management and

technology product lines to develop synergies and deliver the products that best meet the requirements of our customers He

came to Lawson from Gartner leading technology business research and advisory company where he was vice

president-distinguished analyst responsible for defining and delivering Gartners strategy and governance research

Mr Comport spent 15 years at Gartner beginning as research director and eventually becoming chief of research and

member of the senior research board Earlier in his career he held executive product strategy roles at Integral Systems and

Criterion Inc



Dean Hager has served as our group executive vice president of S3 industries since June 2009 From April 2006

until June 2009 Mr Hager served as our senior vice president of product management Mr Hager served as our chief product

officer from June 2004 until April 2006 executive vice president emerging markets from June 2003 until June 2004

executive vice president global products division from February 2001 until May 2002 executive vice president worldwide

marketing from June 2000 to February 2001 vice president e-business marketing from June 1999 until June 2000 and

director of marketing for our former AS/400 business unit from May 1998 until June 1999 From March 1989 to May 1998

Mr Hager was employed by IBM where he held several management positions with his last position held as senior program

manager with its server products division

Bruce McPheeters has served as corporate secretary since October 1999 general counsel since April 2000 and

senior vice president since June 2002 Mr McPheeters served as vice president administration from April 2000 until May

2002 and corporate counsel from September 1999 until April 2000 From 1981 until joining Lawson in September 1999

Mr McPheeters was business lawyer in private practice focusing primarily in the areas of intellectual property securities

and mergers and acquisitions of privately and publicly held companies From December 1995 until September 1999 he was

employed by the law firm of Gray Plant Mooty Mooty Bennett P.A

Paul Parish has served as senior vice president and chief information officer in January 2010 Before joining

Lawson Mr Parish had been vice president of financial and administrative systems for Catholic Health Initiatives since

2004 At the Denver-based health system which has approximately 66000 employees and operates 75 hospitals 40 long-

term care assisted-living and residential facilities and two community health-services organizations in 19 states he was

responsible for the strategic and operational information technology needs of the nonclinical part of the information

technology applications He has more than 30 years of executive leadership experience in the development of business

systems processes organizational infrastructures and winning cultures From 1988 to 2003 he held variety of leadership

roles with Hitachi Consulting LLP formerly the management consulting group of Grant Thornton global business and IT

consulting company of Hitachi Ltd Prior to Hitachi he held consulting and management roles at Deloitte Consulting and

Jewel Companies

Scott Swoish has served as executive vice president of global services since June 2009 From February 2008 until

June 2009 Mr Swoish served as senior vice president of corporate development Mr Swoish served as senior vice president

of global sales operations from January 2007 until February 2008 From December 2003 until joining Lawson in January

2007 he was senior vice president of global consulting and sales operations for SPL WorldGroup Inc and served as

president of the Manila delivery resource center and oversaw partner alliances Before joining SPL Mr Swoish held

number of senior management positions in finance and services with PeopleSoft/J.D Edwards where he worked from

January 2002 until November 2003 as well as at GEAC Enterprise Solutions and Dun Bradstreet Software

Guenther Tolkmit has served as senior vice president of product development since April 2006 Mr Tolkmit served

as the chief technology officer of Intentia from September 2005 until the time of the merger with Lawson in April 2006 and

vice president support and delivery for Intentia from March 2005 until August 2005 Before joining Intentia Mr Tolkmit

served as chief operating officer and chief technology officer for Parsytec AG from 2001 until February 2005 Mr Tolkmit

has also served in number of senior roles at SAP AG including vice president of technology management worldwide chief

marketing officer and senior vice president of SAP Ventures He had formerly held management positions at Software AG
Cullinet Inc and Siemens AG

Kristin Trecker has served as senior vice president of human resources since April 2006 and vice president of human

resources from June 2004 until April 2006 Prior to assuming that position Ms Trecker held variety of roles within the

Lawson human resources organization since 1994 Prior to joining Lawson in 1994 Ms Trecker was employed in variety

of roles in the healthcare and gaming industries

Eric Verniaut has served as executive vice president of M3 industries since June 2009 From November 2008 until

June 2009 Mr Verniaut served as executive vice president of professional services From April 2006 until October 2008 he

was chief executive officer of I-Systems North America and chairman Americas region of I-Systems Enterprise Services

subsidiary of the Deutsche Telekom Group From 1992 until April 2006 he held various international leadership positions at

gedas Group an IT and consulting firm where he was instrumental in internationalizing the professional services

organization

Travis White has served as senior vice president marketing since March 2006 From April 2005 to March 2006

Mr White was retired and pursued his interest in bicycling From April 2003 to April 2005 Mr White was vice president

marketing at Datria Mr White served as consultant to small software companies from June 2002 to April 2003 From 1993

until June 2002 Mr White held various executive roles at J.D Edwards From 1999 through 2001 he was based in Paris as

the J.D Edwards vice president for marketing in Europe Middle East and Africa Mr White has 20 years experience in

shaping corporate strategies and delivering marketing messages
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Financial Information about Geographic Areas

For financial information about geographic areas see Note 14 Segment and Geographic Information in Notes to

Consolidated Financial Statements of this Form 10-K

Available Information

We make available free of charge on our website www.lawson.com our annual reports on Form 10-K quarterly

reports on Form 10-Q current reports on Form 8-K and any amendments to those reports filed or furnished pursuant to

Section 13a or 15d of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 as amended as soon as reasonably practicable after we have

electronically filed or furnished such materials to the Securities and Exchange Commission The information posted on our

website is not incorporated into this Annual Report on Form 10-K

Item 1A Risk Factors

Factors That May Affect Our Future Results or the Market Price of Our Stock

We operate in rapidly changing environment that involves numerous uncertainties and risks Investors evaluating

our company and our business should carefully consider the factors described below and all other information contained in

this Annual Report on Form 10-K This section should be read in conjunction with the Consolidated Financial Statements and

Notes thereto and Managements Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations included in this

report Any of the following factors could materially harm our business operating results and financial condition and/or

negatively affect our stock price Additional factors and uncertainties not currently known to us or that we currently consider

immaterial could also harm our business operating results and financial condition We may make forward-looking statements

from time to time both written and oral We undertake no obligation to revise or publicly release the results of any revisions

to these forward-looking statements based on circumstances or events which occur in the future The actual results may differ

materially from those projected in any such forward-looking statements due to number of factors including those set forth

below and elsewhere in this report

The weakened global economy has negatively impacted our contracting activity and revenue required that we reduce our

expenses and imposed risks on our business

Some prospective and existing customers have cancelled delayed or downsized software purchases and

implementation projects because of the adverse economy and their internal budget constraints Some customers may also

experience difficulty in paying us for previously purchased products and services The adverse economic environment has

also intensified the difficulty of forecasting software license and services revenue due in part to the lengthening and

uncertainty of the sales cycle decrease in licensing activity will typically lead to decrease in services revenue in the same

or subsequent quarters Lower licensing activity will also lower new maintenance revenue since maintenance fees for new

product licenses are based on the amount of associated license fees We took steps in fiscal 2009 and 2010 to reduce

headcount and lower expenses Despite our efforts to focus on new sales of products and services and to manage our

expenses there is risk that we will not be able to achieve our business plan during this difficult global economic environment

Economic political and market conditions can adversely affect our revenue growth and operating results

The uncertainty posed by the weakened global economy volatile credit markets escalating energy prices terrorist

activities potential pandemics natural disasters and related uncertainties and risks and other geopolitical issues may impact

the purchasing decisions of current or potential customers Because of these factors we believe the level of demand for our

products and services and projections of future revenue and operating results will continue to be difficult to predict These

geopolitical risks could also impede employee travel and our business operations in any affected regions

We face large established competitors specialized competitors and substantial price competition

We compete with Oracle Corporation SAP AG Microsoft Corporation and other larger software companies that

have advantages over us due to their larger customer bases greater name recognition long operating and product

development history greater international presence and substantially greater financial technical and marketing resources If

customers or prospects want to reduce the number of their software vendors they may elect to purchase competing products

from Oracle SAP or Microsoft since those larger vendors offer wider range of products Furthermore Oracle is capable of

bundling its software with its database applications which underlie significant portion of our installed applications We also

compete with variety of more specialized software and services vendors including

single-industry software vendors

human resource management software vendors
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financial management software vendors

manufacturing software vendors

merchandising software vendors

services automation software vendors

software integrators and outsourced services providers and

internet on demand software vendors

Some competitors offer payment terms contractual warranties implementation terms or guarantees that are more

favorable to customers and prospects Competitors may entice our customers and prospects to switch software vendors by

offering those customers or prospects free or heavily discounted products or services and other more favorable contract

terms We may be unable to continue to compete successfully with new and existing competitors without lowering prices or

offering other favorable terms to customers that lower our margins and increase our risks We expect competition to persist

and intensify which could negatively impact our operating results and market share

We may have exposure to potential impairnent charges related to our goodwill and acquired intangible assets

We have made several acquisitions over the past few years primarily the acquisition of Intentia in April 2006 and

Healthvision in January 2010 As result of these acquisitions we have recorded on our balance sheet approximately

$525.6 million of goodwill and $159.7 million of intangible assets net ofaccumulated amortization as of May 31 2010 We

may incur impairment charges related to goodwill or our acquired intangible assets if we determine that the fair value of the

goodwill andlor our acquired intangible assets is less than their current carrying value In general this could occur if the fair

value of our applicable reporting units declines to an amount below the carrying value of such reporting units or if we do not

anticipate that the acquired intangibles will generate future cash flows in-line with our expectations as established at the date

of acquisition In fiscal 2010 we reorganized our operations into vertically focused operating segments resulting in our

allocation of goodwill to each of our separate reporting units As consequence we are required to test for potential goodwill

impairment at the reporting unit levels Recording an impairment charge related to our goodwill or acquired intangible assets

could have material adverse impact on our results of operations See Note Summary of Sign flcant Accounting Policies

Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets in Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements of this Form 10-K for further

discussion

Our revenues and in particular our software license revenues vary each quarter and are difficult to predict

Revenues from license fees in any quarter depend substantially upon our licensing activity with new and existing

customers and our ability to recognize revenues in that quarter under our revenue recognition policies significant portion

of our future revenue is dependent upon our existing installed base of customers continuing to license additional products as

well as purchasing consulting services and renewing their annual maintenance agreements If we do not continue to develop

or acquire new products licensing activity with existing customers will decline Licensing activity for our products drives

maintenance and services revenues because we sell maintenance and services for only our products decrease in licensing

activity will typically lead to decrease in services revenue in the same or subsequent quarters If we do not have sufficient

new licensing activity each year our maintenance revenue and profit for the following year will decline because new

customers or sales of additional products to existing customers are needed to offset the percentage of existing customers who

scale back their businesses reduce licenses and maintenance contracts are acquired or otherwise choose not to renew annual

maintenance Our sales force and marketing team must continue to generate sales leads among existing customers and

prospective customers When we qualify lead that lead becomes part of our sales pipeline If our pipeline does not

continue to grow in our different markets and geographies our revenues will eventually decline The rate at which we convert

our pipeline into actual sales can vary greatly from year to year for the following reasons

The period between initial customer contact and purchase by customer may vary and can be more than one

year During the sales cycle prospective customers may decide not to purchase or may scale down purchases

because of competing offers budgetary constraints or changes in the prospects management strategy business

or industry Increasingly customer or prospect organizations are taking more steps to approve the purchase of

our products and services Often times we must wait for customer or prospects board of directors to approve

purchase These added approval requirements can delay the sales cycle and jeopardize the likelihood of

completing the sale
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substantial number of our existing and prospective customers make their purchase decision within the last

few weeks or days of each quarter delay or deferral in small number of large new software license

transactions could cause our quarterly license revenue to fall significantly short of our predictions

Prospective customers may decline or defer the purchase of new products if we do not have sufficient customer

references for those products

New products or technologies software industry mergers and other software industry news may create

uncertainty and cause customers and prospective customers to cancel postpone or reduce capital spending for

our products

Because substantial portion of our software license revenue contracts are completed in the latter part of quarter

and our cost structure is largely fixed in the short term unexpected revenue shortfalls and deferrals have disproportionately

negative impact on our profitability

We may not retain or attract customers zf we do not develop new products and enhance our current products in response

to technological changes and competing products

The enterprise software market is faced with rapid technological change evolving standards in computer hardware

software development communications and security infrastructure and changing needs and expectations of customers

Building new products and service offerings requires significant investment in development substantial portion of our

research and development resources are devoted to regulatory and maintenance requirements and product upgrades that

address new technology support These demands put significant constraints on our resources available for new product

development We also face uncertainty when we develop or acquire new products because there is no assurance that

sufficient market will develop for those products

We may be unable to identz or complete suitable acquisitions and investments and any acquisitions and investments we

do complete may create business dfflculties or dilute earnings

As part of our business strategy we intend to pursue strategic acquisitions in the future We may be unable to

identify suitable acquisitions or investment candidates Even if we identify suitable candidates we cannot provide assurance

that we will be able to make acquisitions or investments on commercially acceptable terms If we acquire company we may

incur losses in the operations of that company and we may have difficulty integrating its products personnel andlor

operations into our business In addition its key personnel may decide not to work for us These difficulties could disrupt our

on-going business distract our management and workforce increase our expenses and adversely affect our operating results

We may also incorrectly judge the value or worth of an acquired company or business Furthermore we may incur significant

debt or issue equity securities to pay for future acquisitions or investments The issuance of equity securities may be dilutive

to our stockholders If the products of an acquired company are not successful those remaining assets could become

impaired which may result in an impairment loss that could materially adversely impact our financial position and results of

operations

Competitors may take advantage of our limited intellectual property protection

We consider certain aspects of our internal operations software and documentation to be proprietary and rely on

combination of contract copyright trademark and trade secret laws to protect this information In addition we currently hold

11 patents in the Copyright laws afford only limited protection because those laws do not protect product ideas In

addition when we license our products to customers we provide source code for many of our products Customers may also

access source code through source code escrow arrangement Access to our source code could provide an opportunity for

companies to offer competing maintenance and product modification services to our customers Defending our intellectual

property rights is time consuming and costly

Others may claim that we infringe their intellectual property rights

Many participants in the technology industry and patent holding companies who have no independent product

revenue have an increasing number of patents and have frequently demonstrated readiness to take legal action based on

allegations of patent and other intellectual property infringement These types of claims are time consuming and costly to

defend As described in this report under Item Legal Proceedings we are currently defending three separate and unrelated

patent infringement lawsuits in the U.S If successful claim is made against us and we fail to develop or license substitute

technology our business results of operations financial condition or cash flows could be adversely affected
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Our products are deployed in large and complex systems and may contain defects or security flaws or be implemented

incorrectly

Because our products are deployed in large and complex systems they can only be fully tested for reliability when

deployed in networks for long periods of time Our software programs may contain undetected defects when first introduced

or as new versions are released Our customers might encounter difficulties with the implementation of our products

experience corruption of their data or encounter performance or scaling problems only after our software programs have been

deployed The services needed for implementing our products are also complex and require knowledge and cooperation

between both the customers and the service providers teams As consequence from time to time we have received

customer complaints or been sued In addition our products are combined with products from other vendors As result

should problems occur it may be difficult to identify the source of the problem Software and data security are becoming

increasingly important because of regulatory restrictions on data privacy and the significant legal exposures and business

disruptions stemming from computer viruses and other unauthorized entry or use of computer systems We may not be able

to avoid or limit liability for disputes relating to product performance software security or the provision of services Product

defects and security flaws could expose us to product liability and warranty claims and harm our reputation which could

impact our future sales of products and services

The success of our recently announced Lawson Cloud Services offering could be adversely impacted by deployment

problems security breaches or system or telecommunication disruptions

Lawson Cloud Services is new and could encounter unexpected problems These problems could be attributable to

our products third party software telecommunications failures security breaches or the cloud technology from Amazon

Web Services or other hosting providers We are in the early stages of rolling out this new offering and have not yet

established the range of customer references that will be needed for Lawson Cloud Services to be success Industry

acceptance of cloud computing is still forming Since cloud technology is new and requires that customer data reside outside

of customers fire wall of protection many prospective customers could reject or delay adoption thereby limiting the

potential for this new offering Other limitations include product and network scalability for large numbers of users We must

also renegotiate some of our third-party software contracts so that we can deploy the Lawson Cloud Services using an

instance of the entire range of required software including the software owned by those third parties These types of risks

could adversely affect our adoption and renewal rates for Lawson Cloud Services and adversely impact our ability to achieve

our business plan and forecasted financial results

Deterioration in our relationshps with resellers systems integrators and other third-parties that market and sell our

products could reduce our revenues

Our revenue growth will depend in part on adding new partners to expand our sales channels as well as leveraging

our relationships with existing partners If our relationships with these resellers system integrators and strategic and

technology partners deteriorate or terminate we may lose sales and marketing opportunities Some current and potential

customers rely on third-party systems integrators to implement and manage new and existing applications These systems

integrators may increase their promotion of competing enterprise software applications or may otherwise discontinue their

relationships with us

Because we do not own all of the products that we license we rely on our continued relationships with other software

suppliers

We license third-party software products that we incorporate into or resell with our own software products For

example we incorporate in many of our products software supplied by Micro Focus International Inc and StreamServe Inc

We also have reseller and alliance relationships with IBM Business Software Incorporated and other software suppliers

businesses that allow us to resell their offerings with our products and services These relationships and other technology

licenses are subject to periodic renewal and may include minimum sales requirements failure to renew or early termination

of these relationships or other technology licenses could adversely impact our business

International sales and operations subject us to risks that can adversely affect our operating results

We derive substantial portion of our revenues and have significant operations outside of the U.S Our

international operations include software development sales customer support and administration We face challenges in

managing an organization operating in various countries which can entail longer payment cycles and difficulties in collecting

accounts receivable fluctuations in currency exchange rates overlapping tax regimes difficulties in transferring funds from

certain countries and reduced protection for intellectual property rights in some countries We must comply with variety of

international laws and regulations including trade restrictions local labor ordinances and import and export requirements
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We may experience foreign currency gains and losses

We conduct significant portion of our business in currencies other than the U.S Dollar Our revenues and

operating results are affected when the U.S Dollar strengthens or weakens relative to other currencies Changes in the value

of major foreign currencies particularly the Swedish Krona the Euro the Canadian Dollar the British Pound as well as the

Norwegian Krona relative to the U.S Dollar can significantly affect our revenues and operating results Recognized balance

sheet exposures are partially offset by forward currency contracts that we purchase Net foreign currency transaction gains

and losses resulting primarily from recognized balance sheet exposures are recorded within earnings in the period incurred

Litigation may adversely affect our business financial condition and results of operations

We are subject to legal and regulatory requirements applicable to our business and industry throughout the world

We are subject to various legal proceedings and the risk of litigation by employees customers patent owners suppliers

stockholders or others through private actions class actions administrative proceedings or other litigation Litigation can be

lengthy expensive and disruptive to our operations and results cannot be predicted with certainty There may also be adverse

publicity associated with litigation regardless of whether the allegations are valid or whether we are ultimately found liable

As result litigation may adversely affect our business financial condition and results of operations

Open source software may diminish our license fees and impair the ownership of our products

The open source community is comprised of many different formal and informal groups of companies software

developers and individuals who have created wide variety of software and have made that software available for use

distribution and modification often free of charge Open source software such as the Linux operating system has been

gaining in popularity among business users If developers contribute enterprise application software to the open source

community and that software has competitive features and scale to business users in our markets we will need to change our

product pricing and distribution strategy to compete If one of our developers embedded open source components into one of

our products without our knowledge or authorization our ownership and licensing of that product could be in jeopardy

Depending on the open source license terms the use of an open source component could mean that all products delivered

with that open source component become part of the open source community In that case we would not own those delivered

products and could not charge license fees for those products We currently take steps to train our developers and monitor the

content of products in development but there is no assurance that these steps will always be effective

Business disruptions could adversely affect our operating results

significant portion of our critical business operations including research and development product maintenance

services support and general and administrative support are concentrated in few geographic areas disruption or failure

of our systems could cause delays in completing sales and providing maintenance and services to customers major

earthquake fire or other catastrophic event that results in the destruction or disruption of any of our critical business or

information technology systems could severely affect our ability to conduct normal business operations and as result our

future operating results could be materially and adversely affected

Our profit nargin for consulting services is lower than margins related to the other aspects of our business

The consulting part of our business is highly competitive is less proprietary and carries much lower gross margin

than the other aspects of our business Our consulting services business is highly sensitive to customer demands competitive

pressures and other external and internal forces Our actions to improve our consulting services margin may be offset by

these forces which could negatively impact our operating results

We must attract and retain account executives in our sales organization to achieve our revenue goals

Revenue growth and in particular software license revenue growth requires that we have sufficient number of

trained account executives in our sales organization to develop leads and call on prospective customers Competition in our

industry for experienced account executives is intense Competitors and other software companies may lure away our account

executives through signing bonuses and other special incentives The failure to attract and retain account executives will

negatively impact our revenue growth When we hire new account executive the time period required for that person to

become productive will vary depending on their experience and training and the customer pipeline and length of sales cycle

15



ifwe are unable to attract and retain senior management software developers services consultants finance and

accounting specialists and other qualified personnel we will be unable to develop new products and increase our revenue

and profitability

We also rely on the continued service of our senior management software developers services consultants finance

and accounting specialists and other key employees In the software industry there is substantial and continuous competition

for highly skilled business product development technical financial and other personnel The failure to attract train retain

and effectively manage employees could negatively impact our development and efforts and cause degradation of our

customer service If we are unable to attract and retain finance and accounting personnel who have experience with the

software industry and accounting requirements we will have to rely on more costly contractors to fill the roles

necessary for us to meet our governance and regulatory requirements

We are required to delay revenue recognition into future periods for portions of our license fee activity

Our entire worldwide business is subject to United States generally accepted accounting principles U.S GAAP
Under those rules we are required to defer revenue recognition for license fees in situations that include the following

the customer agreement includes products that are under development or has other undelivered elements

the customer agreement includes essential services including significant modifications customization or

complex interfaces this is more prevalent with our M3 products

the customer agreement includes acceptance criteria

the customer agreement includes extended or contingent payment terms or fees

third-party vendor whose technology is incorporated into our products delays delivery of its product to the

customer

the customer agreement includes fixed-fee service arrangement for which we do not have vendor specific

objective evidence VSOE of fair value or

we are not able to establish historical pricing and maintenance renewal rates to meet the VSOE requirements of

these accounting rules

We expect that we will continue to defer recognition of portions of our license fee activity in each period because of

these factors with deferrals more likely for our M3 products because of product customization often required due to the

nature of the manufacturing and distribution industries that is frequently included with new sales sales to governmental

entities because those often include fixed-fee arrangements for which we do not have VSOE of fair value and sales of

large license fee contracts because it is more difficult to use standard contract terms The amount of license fees deferred may

be significant and will vary each quarter depending on the mix of products sold in each market and geography and the actual

contract terms

We may take additional restructuring actions that result in financial charges in the period taken

In fiscal 2009 and 2010 we took actions to reduce costs in response to the current global economic downturn and as

part of our preparation for verticalization of our organizations structure in fiscal 2010 Depending on the continued impact of

the global economic downturn and the uncertainty and timing of any recovery we may decide to take additional restructuring

actions to improve our operational efficiencies and we may be required to incur financial charges in the period when we

make such decisions which could have material adverse impact on our results of operations for that period

We may have exposure to additional tax liabilities

As multinational organization we are subject to income taxes as well as non-income based taxes in both the U.S

as well as in various foreign jurisdictions Significant judgment is required in determining our worldwide income tax

provision and other tax liabilities In the ordinary course of global business there are many intercompany transactions and

calculations where the ultimate tax determination is uncertain Although we believe that our tax estimates are reasonable

there is no assurance that the final determination of tax audits or tax disputes will not be different from what is reflected in
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our historical income tax provisions and accruals We are also subject to non-income taxes such as payroll sales use

value-added net worth property and goods and services taxes both in the U.S and various foreign jurisdictions We are

regularly under audit by tax authorities with respect to these non-income taxes and may have additional exposure to

additional non-income tax liabilities

Our effective tax rate may increase or fluctuate which could increase our income tax expense and reduce our net income

Our effective tax rate can be adversely affected by several factors many of which are outside of our control

including

changes in the relative proportions of revenues and income before taxes in the variousjurisdictions in which we

operate that have differing statutory tax rates

changing tax laws regulations and interpretations in multiple jurisdictions in which we operate

changes to the financial accounting rules for income taxes

unanticipated changes in tax rates

changes in accounting and tax treatment of stock-based compensation

the tax effects of purchase accounting for acquisitions and restructuring charges that may cause fluctuations

between reporting periods

changes to the valuation allowance on net deferred tax assets or

the assessments or any related tax interest or penalties could significantly affect our income tax expense for the

period in which the settlements take place

We report our results of operations based on our determinations of the amount of taxes owed in the various tax

jurisdictions in which we operate Periodically we receive notices that tax authority to which we are subject has determined

that we owe greater amount of tax than we have reported to such authority and we regularly engage in discussions and

sometimes disputes with these tax authorities If the ultimate determination of our taxes owed in any of these jurisdictions is

for an amount in excess of the tax provision we have recorded our operating results cash flows and financial condition

could be adversely affected

We have adopted anti-takeover defenses that could make it djfficult for another company to acquire con trol of Lawson or

limit the price investors might be willing to pay for our stock

Provisions in our amended and restated certificate of incorporation and bylaws our stockholder rights plan and

Delaware law could make it more difficult for other businesses to acquire us even if doing so would benefit our stockholders

Our amended and restated certificate of incorporation and bylaws contain the following provisions among others which may
inhibit an acquisition of our company by third-party

advance notification procedures for matters to be brought before stockholder meetings

limitation on who may call stockholder meetings

prohibition on stockholder action by written consent and

the ability of our board of directors to issue shares of preferred stock without stockholder vote

The issuance of stock under our stockholder rights plan could delay deter or prevent takeover attempt that

stockholders might consider in their best interests We are also subject to provisions of Delaware law that prohibit us from

engaging in any business combination with any interested stockholder meaning generally that stockholder who

beneficially owns more than 15% of our stock cannot acquire us for period of three years from the date this person became

an interested stockholder unless various conditions are met such as approval of the transaction by our board of directors Any
of these restrictions could have the effect of delaying or preventing change in control
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Stock ownershp by officers and directors or other stockholders accumulating large positions in our stock could

significantly influence matters requiring stockholder approval

As of May 31 2010 our executive officers directors and affiliated entities in the aggregate beneficially owned

approximately 11.0% of our outstanding common stock providing them with voting power to significantly influence matters

requiring approval by stockholders From time to time activist and hedge fund investors have accumulated large positions in

our stock Holders of large quantities of our stock or groups of stockholders acting together could also significantly influence

all matters requiring approval by stockholders including the nomination and election of directors and the approval of mergers

or other business combinations Sales of our common stock by officers directors or significant stockholders in the public

market or the perception that such sales are likely to occur could depress the market price of our common stock and could

impair our ability to raise capital through the sale of additional equity securities

Our stock price could become more volatile and our stockholders investments could lose value

All of the factors discussed in this section could affect our stock price The timing of announcements in the public

market regarding new products product enhancements or technological advances by our competitors or us and any

announcements by us of acquisitions major transactions or management changes could also affect our stock price Our stock

price is subject to speculation in the press and the analyst community changes in recommendations or earnings estimates by

financial analysts changes in investors or analysts valuation measures for our stock and market trends unrelated to our

performance significant drop in our stock price could also expose us to the risk of securities class actions lawsuits which

could result in substantial costs and divert managements attention and resources which could adversely affect our business

Item lB Unresolved Staff Comments

None

Item Properties

Our corporate headquarters and executive offices are in Saint Paul Minnesota USA where we lease approximately

308000 square feet of space The lease on this facility expires July 31 2015 We also lease approximately 100000 square

feet of space primarily for regional sales and support offices elsewhere in the U.S Additionally primarily through our

location in Stockholm Sweden we lease approximately 680400 square feet of office space in 25 countries used primarily as

sales and services offices Expiration dates of leases on these offices range from 2010 to 2016 We believe that our current

domestic and international facilities are sufficient to meet our needs for at least the next 12 months In addition we believe

suitable additional or alternative space would be available on commercially reasonable terms to accommodate expansion of

our operations if required The restructuring plans we have implemented over the past few years have involved the exit or

reduction in space of certain of our leased facilities See Note Restructuring in Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

of this Form 10-K for additional information

Item Legal Proceedings

Patent Infringement Lawsuit by ePlus On May 19 2009 ePlus Inc filed lawsuit in the United States District

Court for the Eastern District of Virginia against Lawson Software Inc Perfect Commerce Inc SciQuest Inc and Verian

Technologies Inc The other three defendants subsequently entered into separate confidential settlements and the court

dismissed their parts of the lawsuit The May 2009 complaint alleges that Lawsons supply chain products infringe three U.S

patents owned by ePlus In that complaint ePlus seeks damages in an undisclosed amount enhancement of those damages

an attorneys fee award and an injunction against further infringement In May 2010 ePlus quantified its damages claim

based on an alleged 5% to 6% royalty on all license maintenance and services revenues in the United States since November

2003 for wide range of Lawsons supply chain products Those alleged royalty damages would total $28.0 to $33.0 million

or more and all or part of that award could be increased up to treble damages by the court at its discretion if ePlus proved

willful infringement by Lawson damages award would also include pre-judgment interest which could total $6.0 to

$8.0 million if ePlus were awarded damages in the amount claimed ePlus may supplement its damages demand before trial

based on updated Lawson sales information If ePlus proves infringement the court also has discretion to require Lawson to

reimburse ePlus for its legal fees and costs We are contesting the infringement claims and validity of the patents as well as

the time frame and scope of products and services associated with ePlus damages claim We are vigorously defending this

case because we believe we have meritorious defenses including non-infringement and patent invalidity This case is

currently scheduled to go to trial in September 2010 If we are not successful in obtaining summary judgment or other

resolution before or at trial at the conclusion of the trial the jury will decide whether or not ePlus has proved that Lawson has

infringed and whether or not Lawson has proved that the patents are invalid If the jury finds that Lawson failed to prove

invalidity of the patents and if the jury finds that ePlus has proved infringement then the jury will determine the amount of

damages payable by Lawson Given the inherent unpredictability of litigation and jury trials we cannot at this time estimate

the possible outcome of this lawsuit Because patent litigation is time consuming and costly to defend we will continue to
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incur significant costs defending this case In addition in the event of an unfavorable outcome in this matter it could have

material adverse effect on our future results of operations or cash flows If ePlus prevails in this lawsuit we could be required

to pay royalty to ePlus on the sale of certain products and services in the future and if we could not reach agreement with

ePlus on the amount or scope of that royalty we would have to either stop the sale of those products and services or make

modifications to avoid infringement

Patent Infringement Lawsuit byfuxtaComm On January 21 2010 JuxtaComm-Texas Software LLC filed

lawsuit in the United States District Court for the Eastern District of Texas against Lawson Software Inc Lawson Software

Americas Inc and 20 other defendants One of the defendants Seco Tools Inc is Lawson customer Under the terms of

our customer license agreement we have agreed to defend and indemnify Seco Tools in this lawsuit The complaint alleges

that Lawson and the other defendants infringe United States Patent No 6195662 entitled System for Transforming and

Exchanging Data Between Distributed Heterogeneous Computer Systems JuxtaComm seeks damages in an undisclosed

amount enhancement of those damages an attorneys fee award and an injunction against further infringement On April 22

2010 JuxtaComm filed an amended complaint naming Lawson ProcessFlow Integrator and Lawson System Foundation as

well as any products and/or services in the Lawson S3 and Lawson M3 product lines as allegedly infringing We intend to

vigorously defend this case Given the inherent unpredictability of litigation and jury trials we cannot at this time estimate

the possible outcome of this lawsuit Because patent litigation is time consuming and costly to defend we could incur

significant costs defending this case In addition in the event of an unfavorable outcome in this matter it could have

material adverse effect on our future results of operations or cash flows

Patent Infringement Lawsuit by Aloft Media On May 14 2010 Aloft Media LLC filed lawsuit in the United

States District Court for the Eastern District of Texas against Lawson Software Inc Lawson Software Americas Inc and 12

other defendants The complaint alleges that Lawsons Planning Workbench for Food and Beverage software product and

possibly other software products infringe United States Patent Nos 7593910 and 7596538 which are each entitled

Decision-Making System Method and Computer Program Product Aloft Media seeks in undisclosed amounts damages

costs expenses interest and royalties We intend to vigorously defend this case Given the inherent unpredictability of

litigation and jury trials we cannot at this time estimate the possible outcome of this lawsuit Because patent litigation is time

consuming and costly to defend we could incur significant costs defending this case In addition in the event of an

unfavorable outcome in this matter it could have material adverse effect on our future results of operations or cash flows

Class Action Overtime Lawsuit On May 20 2008 putative class action lawsuit was filed against us in the United

States District Court for the Southern District of New York on behalf of current and former business systems and technical

consultants The suit Cruz et al Lawson Software Inc et al alleged that we failed to pay overtime wages pursuant to

the Fair Labor Standards Act FLSA and state law and alleged violations of state record-keeping requirements The suit also

alleged certain violations of ERISA and unjust enrichment Relief sought includes back wages corresponding 401k plan

credits liquidated damages penalties interest and attorneys fees Given the preliminary nature of the alleged claims and the

inherent unpredictability of litigation we cannot at this time estimate the possible outcome of any such action We

successfully moved the case from the United States District Court for the Southern District of New York to the District of

Minnesota The Minnesota Federal District Court conditionally certified the case under the FLSA as collective action and

granted our motion to dismiss the two ERISA counts and the state wage and hour claims Plaintiffs moved for Rule 23 class

certification but the Court denied their motion At the present time the size of the class is limited to the 68 consultants who

elected to participate in the lawsuit by filing opt-in forms The overtime period at issue is two years which would be

increased to three years if the plaintiffs proved that the Company intentionally violated the applicable wage and hour laws

The plaintiffs damages expert claims total aggregate damages of$lO.3 million for two year period for the 68 consultants

and an additional $2.9 million in aggregate damages if the overtime period is three years Given the inherent unpredictability

of litigation and jury trials we cannot at this time estimate the possible outcome of this lawsuit On June 30 2010 Lawson

filed motion to de-certify the FLSA collective action which if granted would limit the action to the five named plaintiffs

That motion will not be heard until November 2010 As permitted by the present scheduling order we plan to file motion

for summary judgment asking for dismissal of remaining class members based on their performance of exempt duties and/or

making more than $100000 per year In the event of an unfavorable outcome in this matter it could have material adverse

effect on our future results of operations or cash flows

We are subject to various other legal proceedings and the risk of litigation by employees customers patent owners

suppliers stockholders or others through private actions class actions administrative proceedings or other litigation While

the outcome of these claims cannot be predicted with certainty we do not believe that the outcome of any one of these legal

matters will have material adverse effect on our consolidated financial position results of operations or cash flows

However depending on the amount and the timing an unfavorable resolution of some or all of these matters could materially

affect our future results of operations or cash flows in particular period
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Item Removed and Reserved

Part II

Item Market for Registrants Common Equity Related Stockholder Matters and Issuer Purchases of Equity

Securities

Market Information

Our common stock is traded on the NASDAQ Global Select Market System NASDAQ under the symbol LWSN
The following table lists the high and low closing sale prices by quarter as reported by NASDAQ

High Low

Fiscal 2010

Fourth Quarter $8.25 $6.20

Third Quarter $7.19 $5.75

Second Quarter $7.41 $5.87

First Quarter $6.65 $4.99

Fiscal 2009

Fourth Quarter $5.87 $3.40

Third Quarter $5.25 $3.39

Second Quarter $8.18 $2.82

First Quarter $8.46 $6.99

Holders

As ofJuly 2010 the approximate number of registered stockholders of record was 195

Dividends

We have historically not declared or paid any cash dividends on our common stock and do not anticipate paying

cash dividends in the foreseeable future We intend to reinvest future earnings to fund the operation and expansion of our

business and to repurchase shares of our common stock under our board-approved share repurchase program
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Stock Performance Graph

The following graph shows comparison of cumulative total stockholder returns for Lawsons common stock the

NASDAQ Stock Market Index U.S companies and the Dow Jones U.S Software Index for the period from May 31 2005

through May 31 2010 The graph assumes the investment of $100 on May 31 2005 The date regarding our common stock

assumes an investment at the closing price on May 31 2005 of $5.92 per share of our common stock All values assume

reinvestment of the full amount of all dividends and are calculated through May 31 2010 The performance shown in the

graph below is based upon historical data and is not necessarily indicative of the future performance of our common stock
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Lawson Software Inc NASDAQ Composite Index Dow Jones U.S Software Index

5/31/05 5/31/06 5/31/07 5/31/08 5/31/09 5/31/10

Lawson Software Inc 100.00 114.02 155.07 147.30 88.85 139.36

NASDAQ Composite Index 100.00 105.35 125.93 121.97 85.79 109.13

Dow Jones U.S Software Index 100.00 94.43 124.61 122.77 93.27 113.61

Purchases of Equity Securities

On November 13 2006 our Board of Directors approved share repurchase program of up to $100.0 million of our

common stock The Board increased this maximum to $200.0 million in April 2007 and to $400.0 million in July 2008 The

share repurchases are funded by our existing cash balances and future cash flows Our share repurchases may occur with

transactions structured through investment banking institutions as permitted by securities laws and other legal requirements

open market purchases privately negotiated transactions and/or other mechanisms Our share repurchase program does not

have an expiration date and allows us to repurchase shares at our discretion Market conditions influence the timing of the

buybacks and the number of shares repurchased There can be no assurance as to the amount timing or repurchase price of

future repurchases if any related to the share repurchase program The program may also be modified extended or

terminated by our Board of Directors at any time

In the fourth quarter of fiscal 2010 we did not repurchase any shares of our common stock under the share

repurchase program During fiscal 2010 we repurchased an aggregate of 1.3 million shares of our common stock at an

average price of $5.92 per share under the share repurchase program From inception of the repurchase program through

May 31 2010 we have used $270.9 million to repurchase approximately 32.9 million shares at an average price of $8.23 per

share The repurchased shares are recorded as treasury stock and result in reduction to our stockholders equity The shares

will be used for general corporate purposes As of May 31 2010 the maximum dollar value of shares that may yet be

purchased under this program was $129.1 million

21



Item Selected Consolidated Financial Data

The following tables set forth selected consolidated financial data as of and for our last five fiscal years and should

be read in conjunction with Item Managements Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations

and our Consolidated Financial Statements and the Notes to those statements The selected consolidated financial data has

been derived from our audited Consolidated Financial Statements

Consolidated Statements of Operations Data

Revenues

License fees

Maintenance services

Software revenues

Consulting

Total revenues

Total cost of revenues

Gross profit

Operating expenses

Research and development

Sales and marketing

General and administrative

Restructuring

Amortization of acquired intangibles

Total operating expenses

Operating income loss

Total other income expense net

Income loss before income taxes

Provision for income taxes

Net income loss

Net income loss per share

Basic

Diluted

Weighted average common shares outstanding

Basic

Diluted

Years Ended May 31

20101 20092 200823 20072 20064

in thousands except per share data

$124126 $109683 $132156 $105861 $71076

352986 350202 336779 291657 188155

477112 459885 468935 397518 259231

259296 297443 382991 352870 131545

736408 757328 851926 750388 390776

321094 358632 412920 399320 171542

415314 398696 439006 351068 219234

90268 82377 85374 85325 60711

162245 162975 189336 160551 83193

84306 79765 100259 98263 54827

13154 19954 731 15483 1825

9472 8892 13690 10089 2122

359445 353963 387928 369711 202678

55869 44733 51078 18643 16556

15233 8811 13345 11209 11111

40636 35922 37733 7434 27667

27612 21731 28411 14053 11708

$13024 $14191 $9322 $21487 $15959

$0.08 $0.09 $0.05 $0.12 $0.14

$0.08 $0.08 $0.05 $0.12 $0.14

161442 164011 177283 186363 110995

165251 166393 180580 186363 15350

On January 11 2010 we completed our acquisition ofHealthvision Fiscal 2010 includes Healthvision results for the

20 week period from January 11 2010 thru May 31 2010 See Note Business ombinations in Notes to

Consolidated Financial Statements of this Form 10-K

Adjusted to reflect adoption of the FASB guidance on accounting for convertible debt securities See Note

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies in Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements of this Form 10-K

Fiscal 2008 total other income expense net includes an $18.4 million impairment charge related to our

investments in auction rate securities The related tax benefit of $7.1 million is not reflected in the fiscal 2008

provision for income taxes as we recorded full valuation allowance against it as no tax benefit is expected

On April 25 2006 we completed our acquisition of Intentia Fiscal 2006 includes Intentia results for the five-week

period from April 25 2006 to May 31 2006 Fiscal 2010 2009 2008 and 2007 include Intentia results for the full

year
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May 31

2010 20091 20081 20071 2006

in thousands

Consolidated Balance Sheet Data

Cash cash equivalents marketable securities and

short-term investments $375917 $414815 $485810 $553836 $306581

Working capital 115034 213997 261072 324616 168201

Total assets 1372044 1324481 1496890 1462324 1170652

Long-term debtnon-current2 224143 217333 210764 203872 4275

Total stockholders equity3 625169 623960 763824 779801 791659

Adjusted to reflect adoption of the FASB guidance on accounting for convertible debt securities See Note

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies in Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements of this Form 10-K

On April 23 2007 we completed the issuance of $240.0 million of 2.50% senior convertible notes See Note

Long-Term Debt and Credit Facilities in Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements of this Form 10-K

As part of our share repurchase program we repurchased 1.3 million shares of our common stock for $7.4 million in

fiscal 2010 13.7 million shares for $103.0 million in fiscal 2009 11.6 million shares for $105.6 million in fiscal

2008 and 6.4 million shares for $54.9 million in fiscal 2007 See Note Common Stock in Notes to Consolidated

Financial Statements of this Form 10-K

Item Managements Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations

The following discussion should be read in conjunction with the selected consolidated financial data presented

above our Consolidated Financial Statements the notes to those statements and other financial information appearing

elsewhere in this Annual Report on Form 10-K

Management Overview

General

Lawson Software Inc is global provider of enterprise software We provide business application software

consulting and maintenance to customers primarily in specific services trade and manufacturing/distribution industries We

specialize in and target specific industries through our three reportable segments S3 Strategic Industries segment which

targets customers in the healthcare and public sector industries as well as the horizontal market for our Human Capital

Management product line M3 Strategic Industries segment which targets customers in the equipment service management

rental food beverage and fashion industries and our General Industries segment which includes our services industries

S3 customers and manufacturing distribution industries M3 customers which are in industries not included in our other

two industries groups

Our software includes enterprise financial management human capital management business intelligence asset

management enterprise performance management supply chain management service management manufacturing

operations business project management and industry-tailored applications Our applications help automate and integrate

critical business processes which enables our customers to collaborate with their partners suppliers and employees We

support our customers use of our applications through consulting services that primarily help our customers implement their

Lawson applications and through our maintenance programs that provide on-going support and product updates for our

customers continued use of our applications

We believe our enterprise software solutions provide competitive advantages and business flexibility to our

customers Lawsons solutions fall within three main product lines and include related maintenance and consulting services

Our product lines are referred to as Lawson S3 Enterprise Management System Lawson M3 Enterprise Management System

and Lawson Human Capital Management with many of the solutions in each product line having broad cross-industry

application Our S3 solutions consist of business applications designed for service industries Our M3 solutions consist of

applications that are geared for manufacturing distribution and trade businesses that face resource constraints and whose

processes are often complex and industry-specific Our Human Capital Management applications provide solutions for

customers in any industry to strategically manage their workforce

23



In the third quarter of fiscal 2010 we acquired Healthvision Dallas-based company providing integration and

application technology and related services to hospitals and large healthcare organizations The acquisition of Healthvision is

strategic fit for our healthcare customers within our S3 Strategic Industries segment Total purchase consideration related to

the Healthvision acquisition was $160.0 million net of cash acquired and resulted in the recognition of $95.5 million of

amortizable intangible assets and $78.2 million in goodwill Operating results of Healthvision have been included in our

results of operations since the acquisition date of January 11 2010 See Note Business Combinations in Notes to

Consolidated Financial Statements of this Form 10-K for additional information

Demand for our software products and services continues to be negatively impacted by the weakened global

economy This is particularly true in our EMEA region The unprecedented disruption in the financial markets which began

in the fall of 2008 continued to disrupt credit and equity markets worldwide leading to weakened global economic

environment restricted credit availability and economic uncertainties throughout fiscal 2010 The effect of the weakened

global economy and the fallout from the financial market turmoil continued to be challenge for our license contracting and

demand for our services in fiscal 2010 We have experienced longer sales cycle and increased price sensitivity Certain

current and prospective customers have cancelled delayed or downsized software purchases and implementation projects

because of the adverse economy and their internal budget constraints Continued economic uncertainties andlor further

deterioration of economic conditions could cause further delay or reduce our current and prospective customers software

purchases or implementation projects which may negatively impact our future results In addition credit risks associated with

our customers/vendors may also be adversely impacted by the current economic conditions This challenging economic

environment has also intensified the difficulty of forecasting software license and consulting services revenues decrease in

licensing activity will typically lead to decrease in services revenues in subsequent quarters Lower licensing activity will

also lower new maintenance revenues since maintenance fees for new product licenses are based on the amount of associated

license fees

In response to the continued uncertainty in the global economic environment we have taken actions during fiscal

2010 to reduce our headcount primarily within our consulting practice in our EMEA region and within our M3 operations in

Europe the U.S and Manila It is these areas of our business that have been particularly hard hit by the current global

economic conditions These actions included the elimination of approximately 225 employees or less than 6.0% of our

global workforce Our results for fiscal 2010 include restructuring charges of approximately $13.2 million relating to these

actions See Note Restructuring in Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements of this Form 10-K for more information

We continue to closely monitor our discretionary spending while preserving targeted investments that we believe will enable

Lawsons long-term growth and increase our operational efficiencies We may consider possible future actions to reduce our

operating costs if circumstances warrant

On April 2010 our Benefits Committee approved plan to modify our defined benefit pension plan in Norway

the Plan The modification of the Plan resulted in curtailment of benefits in the fourth quarter of fiscal 2010 when the

modifications were approved Accordingly we recorded gain of approximately $1.8 million in the fourth quarter of fiscal

2010 The modification of the Plan also led to settlement of active participants projected benefits in the first quarter of

fiscal 2011 for which we anticipate recording an additional gain of approximately $1.5 million in the first quarter of fiscal

2011 See Note 11 Profit Sharing and 401k Retirement Plan in Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements of this

Form 10-K for additional information

During fiscal 2009 and prior years we operated as one business segment the development and marketing of

computer software and related services including consulting maintenance and customer support Beginning in the first

quarter of fiscal 2010 we reorganized our operations to provide greater focus on and better serve our targeted vertical

markets With this strategic organizational change including workforce realignment we determined that we have three

reportable segments that align with our three industries groups S3 Strategic Industries M3 Strategic Industries and General

Industries See Note 14 Segment and Geographic Iiiformation in Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements of this

Form 10-K for additional information We continue to evaluate our vertical organizational structure and have changed certain

management and reporting responsibilities effective June 2010 eliminating our General Industries reportable segment and

redistributing responsibility for management of the vertical markets that were part of this segment into our S3 Strategic

Industries and M3 Strategic Industries segments We believe the elimination of our General Industries segment will help us

drive more efficiencies and better manage our operations Commensurate with this organizational change we expect to begin

reporting operating results for two reportable segments in the first quarter of fiscal 2011
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Fiscal 2010 Results

During fiscal 2010 within our S3 Strategic Industries segment we entered into significant transactions within our

healthcare and public sector verticals and for our human capital management products Our acquisition of Healthvision

benefitted our healthcare business within this segment Software spending in our healthcare and public sector verticals has

proven more resilient in this weak economy than other industries in which we do business Despite this resiliency we believe

that public sector budgetary shortfalls will continue to present challenges Within our M3 Strategic Industries segment our

equipment service management rental vertical also continued to perform well during fiscal 2010 with increased license

fees and consulting revenues as compared to last year This increase was largely driven by our ability to offer new end-to-

end solution for our customers in this vertical Our channel partners primarily third-party resellers also contributed to the

improved licensing activity within our M3 Strategic Industries segment during the year Certain industry verticals covered by

our General Industries segment particularly manufacturing distribution retail and financial services have been hard hit by

the continued global economic downturn Fiscal 2010 licensing activity in this segment increased slightly primarily related to

licensing in our services industries vertical which was offset by decreases in maintenance and consulting revenues for the

segment

Revenues for fiscal 2010 were $736.4 million down 2.8% compared to $757.3 million in fiscal 2009 Software

revenues consisting of license fees and maintenance services increased $17.2 million or 3.7% in fiscal 2010 as compared to

last year Both our S3 Strategic Industries and M3 Strategic Industries segments experienced growth in fiscal 2010 software

revenues The increase included approximately $9.6 million within our S3 Strategic Industries segment related to our

acquisition of Healthvision Our General Industries segment software revenues declined in fiscal 2010 compared to fiscal

2009 by $8.2 million Consulting revenues decreased $38.1 million or 12.8% in fiscal 2010 compared to last year primarily

in our General Industries segment The decrease was somewhat offset by the inclusion of Healthvision consulting revenues of

$5.7 million in fiscal 2010 within our S3 Strategic Industries segment

Geographically the decrease in fiscal 2010 revenues was primarily related to our EMEA region which decreased

$39.0 million or 13.6% as compared to last year The decrease in EMEA revenues was primarily related to lower consulting

revenues as we have maintained significantly fewer billable consultants in EMEA during fiscal 2010 as compared to last year

and we have experienced lower bookings for our consulting and implementation services This decrease was partially offset

by $14.0 million or 3.2% increase in our Americas region primarily related to our acquisition of Healthvision Revenues in

our APAC region also increased $4.1 million or 13.2% compared to last year Our Americas region accounted for

approximately 61.6% of our fiscal 2010 revenues while our EMEA and APAC regions accounted for 33.6% and 4.8%

respectively As majority of Healthvisions operations are in our Americas region we anticipate that the Americas region

will continue to represent greater proportion of our total revenues in fiscal 2011

Total gross margin as percent of revenues for fiscal 2010 improved to 56.4% as compared to 52.6% last year

primarily as result of improved gross margins related to our license fees and consulting revenues as well as favorable mix

of software revenues compared to consulting revenues The improvement in our gross margin from consulting services

primarily reflects the effects of our 2009 and 2010 restructuring activities In addition the inclusion of Healthvisions

operations favorably impacted our consulting gross margins In fiscal 2010 software revenues accounted for 64.8% of our

total revenues as compared to 60.7% last year We anticipate an increased software revenue mix relative to total revenues in

fiscal 2011 as compared to fiscal 2010

Fiscal 2010 operating expenses increased by $5.5 million or 1.5% compared to last year As percent of revenues

fiscal 2010 operating expenses were 48.8% compared to 46.7% last year Current year operating expenses included

$9.5 million related to the operations of Healthvision as well as approximately $1.6 million in transaction and integration

costs related to our acquisition of Healthvision

Non-GAAP Financial Measures

Our results of operations in this Managements Discussion and Analysis are presented in accordance with

U.S GAAP In addition to reporting our financial results in accordance with U.S GAAP we present certain non-GAAP

financial measures to our investors in our quarterly earnings releases in information posted on our website and in other

public disclosures These non-GAAP measures include non-GAAP revenues non-GAAP operating income non-GAAP

operating margin non-GAAP net income and non-GAAP net income per diluted share For fiscal 2010 non-GAAP revenues

of $742.2 million decreased $15.7 million or 2.1% compared to $757.9 million in fiscal 2009 Non-GAAP operating margin

of $115.7 million in fiscal 2010 improved $24.3 million or 26.6% compared to $91.4 million in fiscal 2009 As percentage

of revenues fiscal 2010 non-GAAP operating margin improved to 15.6% compared to 12.1% in fiscal 2009 Fiscal 2010

Non-GAAP net income was $68.6 million or $0.42 per diluted share compared to $58.9 million or $0.35 per diluted share

in fiscal 2009 See Non-GAAP Financial Measure Reconciliations below for additional information regarding our use of

these non-GAAP financial measures and reconciliations to the corresponding U.S GAAP measures
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Foreign Currency

significant portion of our business is conducted in currencies other than the U.S Dollar particularly the Euro and

the Swedish Krona SEK Our revenues and operating expenses are affected by fluctuations in applicable foreign currency

exchange rates Despite the significant strengthening in the U.S Dollar relative to the Euro and SEK in the fourth quarter for

our fiscal year ended May 31 2010 the average exchange rates for the U.S Dollar weakened against the Euro and the SEK

as compared to the average exchange rates for the similar period last year These fluctuations in the exchange rates affected

our fiscal 2010 results as decline in the U.S Dollar to SEK and Euro exchange rates generally have the effect of increasing

our revenues but also increasing our operating expenses denominated in currencies other than the U.S Dollar Similarly

strengthening in the U.S Dollar to SEK and Euro exchange rates generally have the effect of reducing our revenues but also

reducing our operating expenses denominated in currencies other than the U.S Dollar

In general for financial activities denominated in currency other than the U.S Dollar we calculate constant

currency comparisons by converting the prior period financial activities at the average monthly exchange rates applicable to

current periods We believe these constant currency comparisons provide additional insight into our business performance

during the applicable reporting periods exclusive of the effects of foreign currency exchange rate fluctuations and should be

considered in addition to but not as substitute for the actual changes in revenues expenses income or other financial

measures presented in this Annual Report on Form 10-K

The following table summarizes the year-over-year change both in U.S Dollars and percentages in revenues and

costs and expenses due to fluctuations in exchange rates and changes in activity and pricing on constant currency basis

Change Due to Change in Change Due to Change in

Currency Constant Total Change Currency Constant Total Change

Fiscal 2010 vs Fiscal 2009 Fluctuations Currency as Reported Fluctuations Currency as Reported

in thousands

Revenues

License fees $1663 $12780 $14443 1.7% 11.5% 13.2%

Maintenance services 2988 5772 2784 0.9 1.7 0.8

Software revenues 1325 18552 17227 0.3 4.0 3.7

Consulting 5204 43351 38147 1.5 14.3 12.8

Total revenues $3879 $24799 $20920 0.5% 3.3% 2.8%

Total costs and operating expenses $7766 $39822 $32056 1.0% 5.5% 4.5%

The fluctuations in foreign currency exchange rates had an unfavorable impact on our fiscal 2010 net income per

basic and diluted share of approximately $0.02 per share

Acquisitions

We account for our acquisitions under the purchase method of accounting Accordingly the assets and liabilities

acquired were recorded at their estimated fair values at the effective date of the acquisitions and the results of operations have

been included in our Consolidated Statements of Operations since the acquisition dates In accordance with Financial

Accounting Standards Board FASB guidance related to goodwill and other intangible assets goodwill recorded as result

of these acquisitions is subject to an annual impairment test and is not amortized These acquisitions are intended to enhance

our focus on targeted vertical markets and to provide additional value-added products and services to our customers See

Note Business combinations in Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements of this Form 10-K for additional information

related to our recent acquisitions

Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates

The discussion and analysis of our financial condition and results of operations are based upon our audited

Consolidated Financial Statements which have been prepared in accordance with U.S GAAP The preparation of these

financial statements requires us to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities as

of the date of our financial statements the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting periods presented

as well as our disclosures of contingent assets and liabilities On an on-going basis we evaluate our estimates and

assumptions including but not limited to those related to revenue recognition allowance for doubtful accounts and sales

returns fair value of investments fair value of stock-based compensation fair value of acquired intangible assets and

goodwill useful lives of intangible assets and property and equipment income taxes restructuring obligations and
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contingencies and litigation We base our estimates and assumptions on our historical experience and on other information

available to us at the time that these estimates and assumptions are made We believe that these estimates and assumptions

are reasonable under the circumstances and form the basis for making judgments about the carrying values of our assets and

liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources Actual results and outcomes could differ from our estimates

Our significant accounting policies are described in Note Summaiy of Sign ficant Accounting Policies in Notes to

Consolidated Financial Statements of this Form 10-K We believe that the following discussion addresses our critical

accounting policies and reflect those areas that require more significant judgments and use of estimates and assumptions in

the preparation of our Consolidated Financial Statements

Revenue Recognition Revenue recognition rules for software businesses are very complex We follow specific and

detailed guidelines in determining the proper amount of revenue to be recorded However certain judgments affect the

application of our revenue recognition policy Revenue results are difficult to predict and any shortfall in revenue or delay in

recognizing revenue could cause our operating results to vary significantly from year to year

The significant judgments for revenue recognition typically involve whether collectability can be considered

probable and whether fees are fixed or determinable In addition our transactions often consist of multiple element

arrangements which typically include license fees maintenance and support fees and consulting service fees These multiple

element arrangements must be analyzed to determine the relative fair value of each element the amount of revenue to be

recognized upon shipment if any and the period and conditions under which deferred revenue should be recognized

We recognize revenue in accordance with the FASB guidance related to software revenue recognition We license

software under non-cancelable license agreements and provide related consulting services including training and

implementation services as well as on-going customer support and maintenance

When our consulting training and implementation services are not considered essential to the functionality of our

software products are sold separately and also are available from number of third-party service providers our

revenues from these services are generally recorded separately from license fees and recognized as the services are

performed License fees within software arrangements including services that do not meet any one or combination of the

three criteria listed above are recognized in accordance with FASB guidance on revenue recognition using contract

accounting and the percentage-of-completion methodology based on labor hours input Software arrangements which include

certain fixed-fee service components are usually recognized as the services are performed while corresponding costs to

provide these services are expensed as incurred

From time to time we enter into software arrangements that include software license maintenance and consulting

services which are considered essential to the functionality of the software In these instances we recognize revenue for the

three revenue streams under two units of accounting which are the software license bundled together with consulting

services and iimaintenance For purposes of displaying revenues we present applicable license fees maintenance and

consulting revenues in our Consolidated Statements of Operations using vendor specific objective evidence VSOE or if

unavailable other objective evidence of fair value for the undelivered elements and assigning the remainder of the

arrangement fee to the license

The amounts of revenue and related expenses reported in our Consolidated Financial Statements may vary due to

the amount ofjudgment required to address significant assumptions risks and uncertainties in applying the application of the

percentage-of-completion methodology Our specific revenue recognition policies are as follows

Software License FeesLicense fee revenues from end-users are recognized when the software product has

been shipped provided non-cancelable license agreement has been signed there are no uncertainties

surrounding product acceptance the fees are fixed or determinable and collection of the related receivable is

considered probable Provided the above criteria are met license fee revenues from resellers are recognized

when there is sell-through by reseller to an end-user sell-through is determined when we receive an order

form from reseller for specific end-user sale We do not generally offer rights of return acceptance clauses

or price protection to our customers In situations where software license contracts include rights of return or

acceptance clauses revenue is deferred until the clause expires Typically our software license fees are due

within 12-month period from the date of shipment If the fee due from the customer is not fixed or

determinable or includes payment terms greater than twelve months from shipment revenue is recognized as

payments become due and all other conditions for revenue recognition have been satisfied In software

arrangements that include rights to multiple delivered elements such as software products or specified upgrades

and undelivered elements such as support or services we allocate the total arrangement fee according to the fair
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value of each element using VSOE VSOE of fair value is determined using the price charged when that

element is sold separately In software arrangements in which we have fair value of all undelivered elements but

not of delivered element we use the residual method to record revenue Under the residual method the fair

value of the undelivered elements is deferred and the remaining portion of the arrangement fee is allocated to

the delivered element and is recognized as revenue In software arrangements in which we do not have VSOE

of fair value of all undelivered elements revenue is deferred until fair value is determined or all elements for

which we do not have VSOE of fair value have been delivered

Maintenance and SupportRevenues from customer maintenance and support contracts are deferred and

recognized ratably over the term of the agreements Revenues for maintenance and support that are bundled

with license fees are deferred based on the VSOE of fair value of the bundled maintenance and support and

recognized over the term of the agreement VSOE of fair value is based on the renewal rate for continued

maintenance and support arrangements

Consulting SeriicesRevenues from consulting services including training and implementation services are

recognized as services are provided to customers Revenues for consulting services that are bundled with license

fees are deferred based on the VSOE of fair value of the bundled services and recognized when the services are

performed VSOE of fair value is based on the price charged when training and consulting services are sold

separately Our subscriptions contracts are comprised of recurring software licenses related support and

applicable hosting Because these components work interdependently we consider them to be one accounting

element for which we defer recognition of the subscription fee upon contract execution and recognize it ratably

over the subscription period

Allowance for Doubtful Accounts We maintain an allowance for doubtful accounts at an amount we estimate to be

sufficient to provide adequate protection against losses resulting from extending credit to our customers In judging the

adequacy of the allowance for doubtful accounts we consider multiple factors including historical bad debt experience the

general economic environment the need for specific customer reserves and the aging of our receivables This provision is

included in operating expenses as general and administrative expense considerable amount ofjudgment is required in

assessing these factors If the factors utilized in determining the allowance do not reflect future performance then change in

the allowance would be necessary in the period such determination is made which would affect future results of operations

Sales Returns and Allowances We do not generally provide contractual right of return However in the course of

arriving at practical business solutions to various warranty and other claims we have allowed sales returns and allowances

We record provision against revenue for estimated sales returns and allowances on licenses and consulting in the same

period the related revenues are recorded or when current information indicates additional amounts are required These

estimates are based on historical experience determined by analysis of return activities specifically identified customers and

other known factors If the historical data we utilize does not reflect expected future performance change in the allowances

would be recorded in the period such determination is made affecting future results of operations

Valuation of Long-Lived and Intangible Assets and Goodwill The majority of our intangible assets and goodwill

resulted from our April 2006 acquisition of Intentia and our January 2010 acquisition of Healthvision We review identifiable

intangible and other long-lived assets for impairment in accordance with FASB guidance on accounting for the impairment or

disposal of long-lived assets whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate the carrying amount may not be

recoverable Events or changes in circumstances that indicate the carrying amount may not be recoverable include but are

not limited to significant decrease in the market value of the business or asset acquired significant adverse change in the

extent or manner in which the business or asset acquired is used or significant adverse change in the business climate in

which we operate If such events or changes in circumstances are present the undiscounted cash flows method is used to

determine whether the long-lived or intangible asset is impaired Cash flows would include the estimated terminal value of

the asset and exclude any interest charges If the carrying value of the asset exceeds the undiscounted cash flows over the

estimated remaining life of the asset the asset is considered impaired and the impairment is measured by reducing the

carrying value of the asset to its fair value using the discounted cash flows method The discount rate utilized is based on

managements best estimate of the related risks and return at the time the impairment assessment is made

On an annual basis or if events or changes in circumstances indicate the carrying amount of goodwill may not be

recoverable we review our recorded goodwill for impairment in accordance with FASB guidance related to goodwill We

conduct our annual impairment test in the fourth quarter of each fiscal year Testing for goodwill impairment is two step

process
The first step of the goodwill impairment test used to identify potential impairment compares the fair value of

reporting unit with its carrying amount including goodwill During fiscal 2009 and in prior years we operated as one

reporting unit and therefore compared the carrying amount of our goodwill to our market value Market value was determined
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utilizing our market capitalization plus control premium If our market value exceeded our carrying amount goodwill was

considered not impaired thus the second step of the impairment test was not necessary If our carrying amount exceeded our

market value the second step of the goodwill impairment test would be performed to measure the amount of impairment loss

if any The second step of the goodwill impairment test used to measure the amount of impairment loss compares the

implied fair value of the goodwill with its carrying amount If the carrying amount of the goodwill exceeds the implied fair

value an impairment loss would be recognized in an amount equal to the excess Any loss recognized cannot exceed the

carrying amount of goodwill After goodwill impairment loss is recognized the adjusted carrying amount of goodwill is the

new accounting basis subsequent reversal of previously recognized goodwill impairment loss is prohibited once the

measurement of that loss is completed and the loss has been recognized

During the first quarter of fiscal 2010 with our strategic reorganization and workforce realignment we determined

that we operate under three reportable segments S3 Strategic Industries M3 Strategic Industries and General Industries For

purposes of our goodwill impairment testing we have determined that we have four reporting units S3 Strategic Industries

group M3 Strategic Industries group the services industries component of our General Industries group and the

manufacturing distribution component of our General Industries group Upon this change from one reporting unit to four

reporting units effective June 2009 we were required to allocate our goodwill to each reporting unit based upon their

relative fair values and we were required to perform step one goodwill impairment test

For purposes of allocating our recorded goodwill to our new reporting units we estimated their fair values using

combination of an income approach discounted cash flow method and market approach market comparable method

Based on the results of the first step of our impairment test the fair value exceeded the carrying value of the net assets for all

of our reporting units as of June 2009 Based on our year-end assessment performed in the fourth quarter of fiscal 2010

the calculated fair values of our reporting units exceeded their carrying values by amounts between approximately

$23.0 million and $550.0 million or 40.0% to 185.0% of the reporting unit carrying values as of May 31 2010

Accordingly there was no impairment of our goodwill We have no accumulated impairment charges related to our goodwill

Income Taxes Our provision for income taxes consists of provisions for federal state and foreign income taxes

We operate in an international environment with significant operations in various locations outside of the United States

Accordingly our consolidated income tax rate is composite rate reflecting our operating results in various locations and the

applicable rates

Significant judgment is required in determining our worldwide income tax provision In the ordinary course of

global business there are many transactions and calculations where the ultimate tax outcome is uncertain Our judgments

assumptions and estimates relative to the provision for income taxes take into account current tax laws our interpretation of

current tax laws and possible outcomes of current and future audits conducted by foreign and domestic tax authorities

Although we believe that our estimates are reasonable the final tax outcome of matters could be different from that which is

reflected in our historical income tax provision and accruals Such differences if identified in future periods could have

material effect on the amounts recorded in our Consolidated Financial Statements

In conjunction with preparing the global tax provision we must assess temporary differences resulting from the

different treatment of specific items for tax and financial reporting purposes These differences result in deferred tax assets

and liabilities which are included within our Consolidated Balance Sheets As part of this process we must also assess on

jurisdictional basis the likelihood that deferred tax assets will be realized from future taxable income and based on this

assessment establish valuation allowance if required The determination of our valuation allowance is based upon number

of assumptions judgments and estimates including historical operating results forecasted earnings and future taxable

income and the relative proportions of revenue and income before taxes in the various domestic and international

jurisdictions in which we operate To the extent we establish valuation allowance or change the valuation allowance in

period we reflect the change with corresponding increase or decrease to our tax provision

Under the provisions of the FASB guidance related to accounting for income taxes prior to fiscal 2010 reductions

to the valuation allowance related to Intentias deferred tax assets that existed as of the date of the acquisition of Intentia were

first credited against goodwill then to the other identifiable assets existing at the date of acquisition and then once these

assets have been reduced to zero credited to the income tax provision non-cash provision will be credited against

goodwill for the utilization of pre-acquisition net operating losses that had been fully reserved in purchase accounting With

our adoption of the FASB guidance related to business combinations effective June 2009 beginning in fiscal 2010 any

release of valuation allowances recorded through purchase accounting in relation to our acquisitions are now included as

decrease in our income tax provision
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We recognize accrued interest related to unrecognized tax benefits in tax expense Penalties if incurred are also

recognized as component of tax expense In addition the tax effect of discrete items is booked entirely in the quarter in

which the discrete event occurs

Contingencies We may from time to time have unresolved regulatory legal tax or other matters See Note 13

Commitments and Contingencies We provide for contingent liabilities in accordance with FASB guidance related to

accounting for contingencies Pursuant to this guidance loss contingency is charged to income when it is probable that an

asset has been impaired or liability has been incurred at the date of the financial statements and the amount of the loss can

be reasonably estimated Disclosure in the notes to the financial statements is required for loss contingencies that do not meet

both conditions if there is reasonable possibility that loss may have been incurred Gain contingencies are not recorded

until realized We expense all legal costs incurred to resolve regulatory legal tax or other matters in the period incurred

Periodically we review the status of each significant matter to assess our potential financial exposure If potential

loss is considered probable and the amount can be reasonably estimated as defined by the guidance related to accounting for

contingencies we reflect the estimated loss in our results of operations Significant judgment is required to determine the

probability that liability has been incurred and whether such liability can be reasonably estimated Because of uncertainties

related to these matters accruals are based on the best information available to us at that time Further estimates of this

nature are highly subjective and the final outcome of these matters could vary significantly from the amounts that have been

included in the accompanying Consolidated Financial Statements As additional information becomes available we reassess

the potential liability related to any pending claims and litigation and may revise our estimates accordingly Such revisions in

the estimates of the potential liabilities could have material impact on our future results of operations financial position and

cash flows

Litigation Reserves The establishment of litigation reserves requires significant judgments concerning the ultimate

outcome of pending litigation against us and our subsidiaries Reserves established in the normal course of business are based

on the application of FASB guidance related to accounting for contingencies which requires us to record reserve if we

believe an adverse outcome is probable and we are able to make reasonable estimation of the probable loss Reserves

established in purchase accounting are based on fair value under the FASB guidance related to business combinations so long

as fair value can be determined within the purchase price allocation period All such reserves exclude legal costs which are

treated as period expenses when incurred

Litigation by its nature is uncertain and the determination of whether any particular case involves probable loss

and quantifying the amount of loss for purposes of establishing or adjusting applicable reserves requires us to exercise

considerable judgment which is applied as of certain date The required reserves may change in the future due to new

matters developments in existing matters or if we determine to change our strategy with respect to the resolution of any

particular matter See Note 13 Commitments and Contingencies

Share-Based Compensation Effective June 2006 we adopted FASB guidance on share-based payments Under

this guidance share-based employee compensation cost is recognized using the fair value based method for all new awards

granted after June 2006 and unvested awards outstanding at June 2006 Compensation costs for unvested stock options

and non-vested awards that were outstanding at June 2006 are being recognized over the requisite service period based on

the grant-date fair value of those options and awards as previously calculated using straight-line method We elected the

modified-prospective method in adopting the FASB guidance under which prior periods are not retroactively restated

FASB guidance on share-based payments requires companies to estimate the fair value of share-based payment

awards on the date of grant using an option-pricing model We use the Black-Scholes option-pricing model which requires

the input of significant assumptions including an estimate of the average period of time employees will retain stock options

before exercising them the estimated volatility of our common stock price over the expected term the number of options that

will ultimately be forfeited before completing vesting requirements and the risk-free interest rate Changes in the assumptions

can materially affect the estimate of fair value of share-based compensation and consequently the related expense

recognized The assumptions we use in calculating the fair value of share-based payment awards represent our best estimates

which involve inherent uncertainties and the application of managements judgment As result if factors change and we use

different assumptions our share-based compensation expense could be materially different in the future See Note

Share-Based Compensation and Stock Incentive Plans in Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements of this Form 10-K for

additional information
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Results of Operations

The following table sets forth certain line items in our Consolidated Statements of Operations as percentage of

total revenues for the periods indicated the period-over-period percent actual increase decrease and the period-over-period

percent increase decrease on constant currency basis see Foreign Currency above

NM Percentage not meaningful

The discussion that follows relating to our results of operations for the comparable fiscal years ended May 31 2010

2009 and 2008 should be read in conjunction with the accompanying audited Consolidated Financial Statements and related

Notes and with the information presented in the above table This analysis addresses the actual changes in our results of

operations for the comparable fiscal years as presented in accordance with U.S GAAP For changes excluding the impact of

foreign currency fluctuations see the constant currency percentages in the above table

Revenues

Years Ended May 31

13.2%

0.8

3.7

12.8

2.8%

$22473
13423

9050
85548

$94598

17.0%
4.0

1.9

22.3

ll.1%

Percentage of Total Revenue

Years Ended May 31

Percent of Dollar Change

2010 vs 2009 2009 vs 2008

Constant Constant

Actual Currency Actual Currency2010 2009 2008

as adjusted as adjusted

Revenues

Licensefees 16.9% 14.5% 15.5% 13.2% 11.5% 17.0% 12.2%
Maintenance services 47.9 46.2 39.5 0.8 1.7 4.0 7.7

Software revenues 64.8 60.7 55.0 3.7 4.0 1.9 2.2

Consulting 35.2 39.3 45.0 12.8 14.3 22.3 16.9

Total revenues 100.0 100.0 100.0 2.8 3.3 111.1 6.3

Cost of revenues

Costoflicensefees 3.2 3.2 3.4 1.5 5.5 15.4 12.7

Cost of maintenance services 9.3 8.5 7.7 5.7 4.8 2.1 3.2

Cost of software revenues 12.5 11.7 11.1 3.7 1.9 6.1 1.7
Cost of consulting 31.1 35.7 37.4 15.1 16.3 15.2 9.3

Total cost of revenues 43.6 47.4 48.5 10.5 11.8 13.1 7.5

Grossprofit 56.4 52.6 51.5 4.2 4.5 9.2 5.1

Operating expenses

Research and development 12.3 10.9 10.0 9.6 8.9 3.5 3.6

Sales and marketing 22.0 21.5 22.2 0.4 1.0 13.9 9.5
General and administrative 11.4 10.5 11.7 5.7 6.3 20.4 17.0

Restructuring 1.8 2.6 34.1 38.0 NM NM
Amortization of acquired intangibles 1.3 1.2 1.6 6.5 4.7 35.0 30.1

Total operating expenses 48.8 46.7 45.5 1.5 0.9 8.8 3.8

Operating income 7.6 5.9 6.0 24.9 36.8 12.4 14.6

Total other income expense net 2.1 1.2 1.6 72.9 89.0 34.0 37.8

Income before income taxes 5.5 4.7 4.4 13.1 23.9 4.8 6.1
Provision for income taxes 3.7 2.8 3.3 27.1 25.0 23.5 20.0

Net income 1.8% 1.9% 1.1% 8.2% 21.7% 52.2% 28.1%

2010 2009 2008 2010 vs 2009 2009 vs 2008

in thousands

Revenues

Licensefees $124126 $109683 $132156 $14443

Maintenance services 352986 350202 336779 2784

Software revenues 477112 459885 468935 17227

Consulting 259296 297443 382991 38147
Total revenues $736408 $757328 $851926 $20920
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The following table sets forth revenues by reportable segment

Years Ended

2010 2009 2008 2010 vs 2009 2009 vs 2008

in thousands

Total Revenues We generate revenues from licensing software providing maintenance on licensed products and

providing consulting services We generally utilize written contracts as the means to establish the terms and conditions by

which our products maintenance and consulting services are sold to our customers As our maintenance and consulting

services are primarily attributable to our licensed products growth in our maintenance and consulting services is generally

tied to the level of our license contracting activity

Fiscal 2010 total revenues decreased 2.8% to $736.4 million as compared to $757.3 million in fiscal 2009 The

decrease was driven by $38.1 million or 12.8% decrease in our consulting revenues This decrease was partially offset by

$17.2 million or 3.7% increase in our year-over-year software revenues which included $14.4 million or 13.2% increase

in license fees revenues as well as $2.8 million or less than 1.0% increase in our maintenance services revenues

Fiscal 2009 total revenues decreased 11.1% to $757.3 million as compared to $851.9 million in fiscal 2008 The

decrease was primarily driven by an $85.5 million or 22.3% decrease in consulting revenues as well as 17.0% decrease in

license fees revenues These decreases were partially offset by 4.0% increase in our maintenance services revenues

License Fees Our license fees primarily consist of fees resulting from products licensed to customers on

perpetual basis Product license fees result from customers licensing of given software product for the first time or with

customers licensing of additional users for previously licensed products

For fiscal 2010 license fees revenues increased $14.4 million or 13.2% compared to fiscal 2009 The increase in

license fees revenues was experienced in each of our reportable segments with S3 Strategic Industries M3 Strategic

Industries and General Industries segments up $6.1 million $6.7 million and $1.7 million or 14.7% 18.3% and 5.3%

respectively compared to last year The increase in our S3 Strategic Industries segment was primarily related to our

healthcare vertical which included $2.4 million related to the operations of Healthvision and the continued benefit of the

targeted sales stimulus campaign we offered our existing S3 customer base during the second half of fiscal 2009 primarily

during our fourth quarter This program favorably impacted our healthcare and services industries verticals revenues in the

first quarter of fiscal 2010 as we recognized revenue previously deferred as all revenue recognition criteria related to these

transactions were met in the first quarter of fiscal 2010 Our public sector vertical as well as our human capital management

product line also showed year-over-year improvements in license fees revenues during fiscal 2010 The M3 Strategic

Industries improvement related primarily to increases in our equipment service management rental vertical including the

recognition in the first quarter of fiscal 2010 of certain deferred revenues on previous transactions upon the completion of

customer implementation project milestones in the first quarter In addition license fees revenues from our channel partners

within the M3 Strategic Industries segment increased as compared to last year The increase in our General Industries

S3 Strategic Industries

License fees $47676 $41580 $38033 $6096 14.7% $3547 9.3%

Maintenance services 147954 134175 118705 13779 10.3 15470 13.0

Software revenues 195630 175755 156738 19875 11.3 19017 12.1

Consulting 78997 84089 90659 5092 6.1 6570 7.2

Total S3 revenues $274627 $259844 $247397 $14783 5.7% $12447 5.0%

M3 Strategic Industries

License fees $43196 $36515 $43479 $6681 18.3% $6964 16.0%
Maintenance services 73168 74319 70435 1151 1.5 3884 5.5

Software revenues 116364 110834 113914 5530 5.0 3080 2.7

Consulting 116747 116954 156507 207 0.2 39553 25.3

Total M3 revenues $233111 $227788 $270421 $5323 2.3% $42633 15.8%

General Industries

License fees $33254 $31588 $50644 $1666 5.3% $19056 37.6%
Maintenance services 131864 141708 147639 9844 6.9 5931 4.0

Software revenues 165118 173296 198283 8178 4.7 24987 12.6

Consulting 63552 96400 135825 32848 34.1 39425 29.0

Total GI revenues $228670 $269696 $334108 $41026 15.2% $64412 19.3%
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segment was primarily related to license activity in our services industries vertical License fees revenues increased in all

geographies with Americas EMEA and APAC up $7.9 million $5.4 million and $1.1 million respectively for fiscal 2010

compared to last year The total number of licensing transactions decreased in fiscal 2010 by 128 to 1080 as compared to

1208 in fiscal 2009 The number of licensing transactions with new customers was 93 compared to 88 last year In fiscal

2010 we entered into 20 license transactions between $0.5 million and $1.0 million compared to 36 last year We entered into

16 licensing transactions greater than $1.0 million in fiscal 2010 compared to nine last year Healthvision accounted for an

additional 97 licensing transactions in the current year

For fiscal 2009 license fees revenues decreased $22.5 million to $109.7 million or 17.0% compared to fiscal 2008

The weakened global economy lengthened our sales cycle which negatively affected our license fees revenues during fiscal

2009 This decrease in license fees revenues was experienced in all of our geographies with EMEA the Americas and APAC
down approximately $19.7 million $1.2 million and $1.6 million respectively The EMEA decrease of 36.2% was due to

lower sales of our M3 solutions in our manufacturing related verticals The Americas decrease was primarily related to lower

license fees in services industries outside of our targeted verticals and lower M3 license fees in our manufacturing vertical

These decreases were somewhat offset by increased license fees revenues related to our equipment services management

rental healthcare and human capital management verticals The decrease in APAC license fees revenues in fiscal 2009 was

primarily related to decreased M3 licenses fees In addition license fees revenues for fiscal 2009 were favorably impacted by

targeted sales campaign we offered to our existing S3 customer base during the second half of fiscal 2009 primarily our

fourth quarter This program provided special terms for our customers adding new products to their Lawson solutions The

total number of licensing transactions decreased in fiscal 2009 by 337 to 1208 as compared to 1545 in fiscal 2008 The

number of licensing transactions with new customers was 88 compared to 129 in fiscal 2008 We entered into 36 and 33

license transactions between $0.5 million and $1.0 million in fiscal 2009 and 2008 respectively We entered into nine

licensing transactions greater than $1.0 million in fiscal 2009 compared to 14 in fiscal 2008

Maintenance Services Our maintenance services revenues represent the ratable recognition of fees to enroll and

renew licensed products in our maintenance programs These fees are typically charged annually and are based on the license

fees initially paid by the customer Maintenance services revenues can fluctuate based on the number and timing of new

license contracts renewal rates and price increases

For fiscal 2010 maintenance services revenue increased $2.8 million or less than 1.0% compared to fiscal 2009

This increase primarily related to $13.8 million or 10.3% increase in our S3 Strategic Industries maintenance services

revenues which included $7.2 million related to the operations of Healthvision The increase was partially offset by

decrease in maintenance services revenue in our General Industries segment of $9.8 million or 6.9% as well as

$1 .2 million or 1.5% decrease in our M3 Strategic Industries segment These decreases were the result of the impact of

pricing pressure and lower renewal rates due to the global economic downturn These decreases were partially offset by

maintenance agreements associated with new customers in these segments Certain customers have decided not to renew their

maintenance agreements which we believe relates primarily to cost saving measures bankruptcies and mergers This is

particularly true for our General Industries segment customers in manufacturing distribution retail and financial services

industries where the continued adverse economic environment has been very challenging In addition other customers have

chosen to continue to use older versions of our software for which maintenance programs are no longer offered For fiscal

2010 our Americas region maintenance services revenues improved $10.1 million over fiscal 2009 while EMEA was down

$7.5 million Maintenance services revenues in APAC were relatively flat year-over-year

For fiscal 2009 maintenance revenues increased $13.4 million to $350.2 million or 4.0% compared to fiscal 2008

These increases were primarily driven by annual maintenance agreement renewals with associated price increases the

continued migration of our customers primarily in our EMEA region to new Lawson Bronze or Silver maintenance

agreements as well as maintenance agreements associated with new customers These increases were somewhat offset by

slightly higher cancellation rates as result of the global economic downturn

Consulting Our consulting revenues consist of services related to software installations software implementations

customized development and training services for customers who have licensed our products and revenues from software

subscriptions Consulting revenues have historically and through the first quarter of fiscal 2009 included revenues

associated with our hardware business As of August 2008 we exited the hardware business which represented non-core

component of our business to better concentrate our efforts on providing our solutions and related services to our targeted

industries

For fiscal 2010 consulting revenues decreased $38.1 million or 12.8% compared to fiscal 2009 The decrease in

consulting revenues was experienced in our General Industries segment which declined $32.8 million or 34.1% compared to

last year and our S3 Strategic Industries segment which declined $5.1 million or 6.1% Our M3 Strategic Industries segments
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consulting revenues were relatively flat down $0.2 million or less than .0% The decrease in our General Industries

segments was experienced in both our service industries and manufacturing distribution verticals as result of reduction

in our number of billable consultants primarily in our M3 resources in our EMEA region in fiscal 2010 as compared to last

year as well as lower bookings for our consulting and implementation services in our EMEA region During fiscal 2010 we

continued to reduce the size of our consulting staff as part of our strategy to move more implementation services to our

partner channel as well as in response to the lower consulting demand Over the past year we have reduced our number of

service consultants by approximately 25% including actions taken in our second quarter and our most recent action

announced on May 27 2010 See Note Restructuring in Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements of this Form 10-K for

more information about these actions The decrease in our S3 Strategic Industries segment related primarily to our healthcare

vertical where we were involved in larger consulting engagements in fiscal 2009 as compared to the current year
Within our

S3 Strategic Industries segment Healthvision contributed consulting revenues of $5.7 million Within our M3 Strategic

Industries segment we were able to sustain our level of consulting revenues in fiscal 2010 despite the lower number of

consultants primarily due to certain large engagements in our equipment services management rental vertical In fiscal

2010 our consulting revenues were down $36.9 million and $4.1 million in our EMEA and Americas regions respectively as

compared to fiscal 2009 Consulting revenues in our APAC region were up $2.8 million in fiscal 2010 compared to fiscal

2009

Consulting revenues for fiscal 2009 decreased $85.5 million to $297.4 million or 22.3% compared to fiscal 2008

This decrease was primarily related to us lowering the number of billable consultants in fiscal 2009 as compared to fiscal

2008 as well as lower bookings for our consulting and implementation services as result of decreased licensing activity in

fiscal 2009 for both new and existing customers This decrease in consulting revenues was experienced in all our geographies

with our EMEA region showing the largest decreases of $69.8 million to $144.8 million or 32.5% in fiscal 2009 as

compared to fiscal 2008 EMEAs consulting revenues were also negatively impacted by execution issues which contributed

to lower utilization as well as experiencing lower billable rate per hour on certain fixed-price projects In addition hardware

revenues decreased $8.1 in fiscal 2009 compared to fiscal 2008 The decrease in hardware revenues was the result of exiting

this non-core component of our business during the first quarter of fiscal 2009

Deferred Revenue Certain of our revenues are deferred when all conditions of revenue recognition have not been

met Deferred revenue represents revenue that is to be recognized in future periods when such conditions have been satisfied

related to certain license agreements maintenance contracts and certain consulting arrangements as discussed above We had

total deferred revenues of $328.2 million at May 31 2010 compared to $292.5 million at May 31 2009

The following table sets forth the components of deferred revenue in thousands

May3I2010 May3I2009

License fees $39221 $55667

Maintenance 275237 224115

Consulting 13702 12741

Total deferred revenue 328160 292523

Less current portion 319797 279041
Deferred revenuenon-current $8363 $13482

In general changes in the balance of our deferred revenue are cyclical and primarily driven by the timing of our

maintenance services renewal cycles Our renewal dates occur in the third and fourth quarters of our fiscal year with revenues

being recognized ratably over the applicable service periods The increase in the May 31 2010 balance as compared to

May 31 2009 was primarily due to the timing of billings and related collections associated with our maintenance contracts

and the inclusion of deferred revenue balances related to our acquisition of Healthvision These increases were somewhat

offset by decrease in deferred license revenues as we recognized certain deferred license fees revenues in the first half of

fiscal 2010 primarily relating to contracts entered into in the fourth quarter of fiscal 2009 under our targeted sales campaign

offered to our existing S3 customer base
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Cost of Revenues

Years Ended May 31

2010 2009 2008 2010 vs 2009 2009 vs 2008

in thousands

Cost of revenues

Cost of license fees $23987 $24361 $28782 $374 1.5% $4421 15.4%
Cost of maintenance services 68233 64533 65885 3700 5.7 1352 2.1

Cost of software revenues 92220 88894 94667 3326 3.7 5773 6.1
Cost of consulting 228874 269738 318253 40864 15.1 48515 15.2

Total cost of revenues $321094 $358632 $412920 $37538 10.5% $54288 13.1%

Gross profit

License fees $100139 $85322 $103374 $14817 17.4% $18052 17.5%
Maintenance services 284753 285669 270894 916 0.3 14775 5.5

Total software gross profit 384892 370991 374268 13901 3.7 3277 0.9

Consulting 30422 27705 64738 2717 9.8 37033 57.2
Total gross profit $415314 $398696 $439006 $16618 4.2% $40310 9.2%

Gross margin

License fees 80.7% 77.8% 78.2%

Maintenance services 80.7% 1.6% 80.4%

Total software 80.7% 80.7% 79.8%

Consulting 11.7% 9.3% 16.9%

Total 56.4% 52.6% 51.5%

Cost of License Fees Cost of license fees includes royalties to third- parties amortization of acquired software and

software delivery expenses Our software solutions may include embedded components of third-party vendors for which fee

is paid to the vendor upon the sale of our products In addition we resell third-party products in conjunction with the license

of our software solutions which also results in fee The cost of license fees is higher as percentage of revenues when we

resell products of third-party vendors As result license fees gross margins will vary depending on the proportion of

third-party product sales in our revenue mix

Cost of license fees remained relatively flat for fiscal 2010 compared to fiscal 2009 down less than $0.4 million or

1.5% The decrease was primarily related to lower third-party costs of $2.3 million primarily due to favorable product mix

In addition amortization expenses related to our acquired intellectual property excluding Healthvision decreased

$1.1 million These decreases were mostly offset by an increase of $4.3 million related to the operations of Healthvision

License fees gross margin for fiscal 2010 improved to 80.7% as compared to 77.8% in fiscal 2009 as result of higher

license fees revenue in fiscal 2010 as well as favorable product mix

Cost of license fees decreased $4.4 million to $24.4 million or 15.4% in fiscal 2009 compared to fiscal 2008 This

decrease was primarily due to decrease in third-party royalty fees driven by lower license fees volume and the mix of

products sold in fiscal 2009 as well as decrease in amortization expenses related to our acquired intellectual property

License fees gross margin for fiscal 2009 was down slightly at 77.8% compared to 78.2% in fiscal 2008 due to the lower

license volume

Cost of Maintenance Cost of maintenance includes salaries employee benefits related travel third-party

maintenance costs associated with embedded and non-embedded third-party products and the overhead costs of providing

support

Cost of maintenance for fiscal 2010 increased $3.7 million or 5.7% compared to fiscal 2009 This increase was

primarily due to $3.7 million increase related to the operations of Healthvision In addition net employee related costs

increased $3.9 million These increases were somewhat offset by $3.5 million decrease in third-party costs Maintenance

gross margin for fiscal 2010 was 80.7% down slightly from 81.6% in fiscal 2009

Cost of maintenance for fiscal 2009 decreased $1.4 million to $64.5 million or 2.1% compared to fiscal 2008 This

decrease was primarily due to $2.6 million decrease in subcontractors and other expenses related to intercompany support

services $0.6 million related to employee related costs and $0.8 million decrease in amortization expense related to our

acquired intellectual property These decreases were somewhat offset by $1.8 million increase in information technology

and other infrastructure costs and $0.7 million increase in third-party costs Maintenance gross margin for fiscal 2009 was

1.6% up from 80.4% in fiscal 2008 primarily as result of continued leveraging of operational efficiencies
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cost of consulting Cost of consulting includes salaries employee benefits third-party consulting costs related

travel the overhead costs of providing implementation installation training and education services to customers Cost of

consulting also includes costs associated with our hardware business which we exited in the first quarter of fiscal 2009

For the comparable fiscal years 2010 and 2009 cost of consulting decreased $40.9 million or 15.1% This decrease

was primarily due to $26.3 million decrease in employee related costs resulting from significantly lowering our billable

headcount during fiscal 2010 as compared fiscal 2009 In addition third-party costs decreased $14.3 million and billable

travel decreased $4.7 million in-line with our lower consulting revenues Partially offsetting these decreases was $4.2 million

related to the operations of Healthvision Consulting gross margin for fiscal 2010 improved to 11.7% compared to 9.3% in

fiscal 2009 primarily due to the management of our costs of consulting and the favorable impact of Healthvision

For fiscal 2009 cost of consulting decreased $48.5 million to $269.7 million or 15.2% as compared to fiscal 2008

This decrease was primarily driven by $27.0 million decrease in employee related costs $13.5 million decrease in

third-party costs relating to our lower consulting revenues $5.1 million decrease in hardware costs associated with exiting

our hardware business $4.7 million decrease in billable travel and $2.3 million decrease related to information

technology and other infrastructure costs These decreases were somewhat offset by $2.4 million increase in costs related to

our managed and hosted services offerings and $1.7 million increase in other expenses
related to intercompany support

services Consulting gross margin for fiscal 2009 decreased to 9.3% compared to 16.9% in fiscal 2008 as our decrease in

consulting revenues has outpaced the decrease in our cost of consulting primarily due to the timing of the employee actions

taken in conjunction with our fiscal 2009 restructuring plans Certain of these actions occurred late in February 2009 and in

May 2009 such that our fiscal 2009 operations did not fully benefit from the reduced headcount Note Restructuring in

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements of this Form 10-K for more information

Operating Expenses

Years Ended May 31

2010 2009 2008 2010 vs 2009 2009 vs 2008

in thousands

Operating Expenses

Research and development $90268 $82377 $85374 $7891 9.6% $2997 3.5%
Sales and marketing 162245 162975 189336 730 0.4 26361 13.9
General and administrative 84306 79765 100259 4541 5.7 20494 20.4

Restructuring 13154 19954 731 6800 34.1 20685 NM
Amortization of acquired intangibles 9472 8892 13690 580 6.5 4798 35.0

Total operating expenses $359445 $353963 $387928 $5482 1.5% $33965 8.8%

NM Percentage not meaningful

Research and Development Research and development expenses consist primarily of salaries employee benefits

related overhead costs and consulting fees associated with product development testing quality assurance documentation

enhancements and upgrades

Research and development expenses for fiscal 2010 increased $7.9 million or 9.6% compared to fiscal 2009 This

increase was primarily due to net increase in employee related costs of $5.5 million related to increased incentive

compensation as well as an increase in our offshore capacity in Manila The increased headcount also resulted in

$2.4 million increase in information technology and other infrastructure costs which was partially offset by $1.7 million

decrease in third-party costs as well as $1.0 million decrease in professional fees Healthvisions operations accounted for

$2.3 million of the increase

Research and development decreased $3.0 million to $82.4 million or 3.5% for fiscal 2009 compared to fiscal

2008 This decrease was primarily due to decrease of $3 .6 million in employee related costs $2.1 million decrease in

third-party costs and $0.8 million decrease in the cost of computer leases and supplies These increases were partially

offset by $4.1 million increase in information technology and other infrastructure costs

Sales and Marketing Sales and marketing expenses consist primarily of salaries and incentive compensation

employee benefits travel and overhead costs related to our sales and marketing personnel as well as trade show activities

advertising costs and other costs associated with our Companys marketing activities
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For the fiscal 2010 sales and marketing expenses decreased $0.7 million or 0.4% compared to the similar period in

fiscal 2009 The decrease was primarily the result of $1.8 million decrease in marketing program costs $1.0 million

decrease in professional fees $0.6 million decrease in third-party costs and $0.5 million decrease in employee related

costs due to lower headcount and lower travel expenses Partially offsetting these decreases was $3.3 million related to the

operations of Healthvision

Sales and marketing expenses
decreased $26.4 million to $163.0 million or 13.9% in fiscal 2009 when compared to

fiscal 2008 This decrease was primarily the result of $25.3 million decrease in employee related costs due to lower

headcount and decreased sales incentive compensation due to lower license contracting in fiscal 2009 compared to fiscal

2008 The decrease in employee related costs is net of the $1.9 million effect of fourth quarter fiscal 2008 under accrual of

sales incentive compensation in EMEA recorded in fiscal 2009 See Note Nature ofBusiness and Basis of Presentation

Fiscal 2009 Results of Operations In addition costs incurred for marketing programs decreased $3.3 million in fiscal 2009

These decreases were partially offset by $3.0 million increase related to information technology and other infrastructure

costs

General and Administrative General and administrative expenses consist primarily of salaries employee benefits

and related overhead costs for administrative employees as well as legal and accounting expenses consulting fees and bad

debt expense We deem certain of these items to be shared services and accordingly allocate the related expenses to other

functional line items within cost of revenues and operating expenses primarily based on headcount These administration

allocations have no impact on our overall operating margins for any of the fiscal periods presented

General and administrative expenses increased $4.5 million or 5.7% in fiscal 2010 compared fiscal 2009 The

increase was primarily the result of $4.4 million related to adjustments recorded to our pre-merger litigation reserve recorded

in fiscal 2009 without comparable adjustments in fiscal 2010 See Note 13 Commitments and ContingenciesLegal in

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements of this Form 10-K for more information Other increases included $2.6 million

increase in professional fees primarily legal fees $1.6 million of acquisition transaction and merger related integration

expenses write-off of certain capitalized software costs of $1.1 million $1 .0 million related to the impact of foreign

currency translation and $1.9 million increase related to the operations of Healthvision These increases were mostly offset

by decrease of $6.7 million in infrastructure and computer lease costs and decrease in bad debt expense of $1.7 million in

fiscal 2010 compared fiscal 2009 primarily due to strong cash collections on accounts receivables

General and administrative expenses decreased $20.5 million to $79.8 million or 20.4% in fiscal 2009 compared to

fiscal 2008 This decrease was primarily due to $7.6 million decrease related to information technology and other

infrastructure costs including allocations $4.3 million decrease in employee related costs $4.9 million decrease related

to change in the impact of foreign currency
translations in fiscal 2009 compared to fiscal 2008 $3.3 million decrease in

contractor fees as we hired additional permanent finance and accounting personnel over the course of fiscal 2008 for

positions previously filled by contractors $1.6 million decrease in professional fees and $1.2 million decrease related to

adjustments to our pre-merger litigation reserve as certain related claims settled at amounts less than anticipated and our

receipt of insurance settlements in the second quarter of fiscal 2009 These decreases were partially offset by $2.0 million

increase in bad debt expense

Restructuring During fiscal 2010 we recorded restructuring charges of $13.2 million compared to restructuring

charges of $20.0 million in fiscal 2009 and restructuring accrual reversal of $0.7 million in fiscal 2008 The fiscal 2008

reversal relates to adjustments to the original accrual established in fiscal 2007

Fiscal 2010 Restructurings

Fiscal 2010 Q2 On September 30 2009 we approved plan to further restructure our workforce Under this plan

we reduced our workforce by approximately 65 employees The majority of the reductions occurred within our consulting

practice in our EMEA region These actions were undertaken as further refinement of our new vertical organization

including resizing of our services business to leverage our partner channel and in light of current demand for our

consulting and implementation services in EMEA The majority of the actions related to this plan were completed by the end

of the second quarter of fiscal 2010 The restructuring action resulted in pre-tax charges of $4.6 million for severance pay and

related benefits which we recorded in the second quarter of fiscal 2010 Substantially all of this amount will result in future

cash expenditures We expect that the majority of the remaining severance and related benefits will be paid by the third

quarter of fiscal 2011 Annualized cost and expense savings from these actions are estimated to be approximately

$6.0 million
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Fiscal 2010 Q4 On May 27 2010 we approved and began implementing plan to restructure our workforce

including the elimination of approximately 160 employees The workforce reduction relates primarily to our M3 operations

in Europe the United States and Manila within our M3 Strategic Industries and General Industries business segments

Departures of affected personnel are expected to be substantially completed by the end of the first quarter of fiscal 2011 In

connection with these actions we recorded pre-tax charges of $7.1 million in the fourth quarter of fiscal 2010 for severance

pay and related benefits substantially all of which will result in future cash expenditures The majority of the severance and

related benefits will be paid by the end of fiscal 2011 Annualized cost savings from this restructuring are estimated to be

$15.0 million We anticipate these cost savings will be offset by investments in other areas of the Company

In relation to the fiscal 2010 restructuring actions we made cash payments of approximately $2.9 million for

severance pay
and related benefits during the year In addition we recorded $0.2 million net reduction in the second quarter

of fiscal 2010 primarily as result of reduction in the number of affected employees

Fiscal 2009 Restructurings

Fiscal 2009 Q2 On November 18 2008 we announced the implementation of cost reduction measures in light of

the uncertainty in global economic conditions and in light of other operating margin improvement initiatives These cost

reduction initiatives included restructuring plan resulting in the reduction of approximately 285 employees and exiting

certain leased facilities In relation to these actions we recorded pre-tax charge of approximately $7.9 million in the second

quarter of fiscal 2009 and an additional $3.4 million in the third quarter of fiscal 2009 Actions related to severance were

substantially completed by February 28 2009 with related cash payments expected to continue through August 2010

Payments related to the exited facilities are expected to continue through November 2011

Fiscal 2009 Q4 On May 18 2009 we initiated plan to restructure our workforce in preparation for the fiscal 2010

vertical realignment of our organization The restructuring involved the reduction of our workforce by approximately 150

employees and the consolidation of space in certain of our leased facilities Actions related to this plan were completed by the

end of our third quarter of fiscal 2010 The plan resulted in pre-tax charges of approximately $5.3 million for severance and

related benefits and the consolidation of leased facilities resulted in pre-tax charges of approximately $3.8 million which we

recorded in the fourth quarter of fiscal 2009 We expect the majority of the severance and related benefits to continue through

September 2010 while the leased facilities costs will be paid through December 2011

In relation to the fiscal 2009 restructuring actions we made cash payments of $5.8 million relating to severance and

related benefits and $3.1 million related to the exited facilities during fiscal 2010 In addition we recorded net adjustments to

the accruals of approximately $0.4 million including additional expenses accrued related to exited leased facilities net of

change to accrued severance and related benefits due to reduction in the number of affected employees As of May 31

2010 we had an accrual of $3 .7 million $0.7 million for severance and related benefits and $3.0 million for the estimated

fair value ofour liability for the exited facilities As ofMay 31 2009 the accrual totaled $12.0 million $6.5 million for

severance and related benefits and $5.5 million for the exited facilities

Fiscal 2007 Restructuring

On February 28 2007 we restructured our workforce by approximately 250 employees to rebalance our resources

between various locations primarily in the U.S Europe and our global support center in the Philippines This reduction

resulted in pre-tax charge of $11.9 million which we recorded in the third quarter of fiscal 2007 As of May 31 2009 we

had an accrual of $0.8 million for severance and related benefits In fiscal 2010 we paid severance and related benefits of

$0.6 million and we recorded $0.2 million in adjustments to eliminate the remaining accrual

Fiscal 2006 Restructuring

On April 26 2006 in conjunction with our business combination with Intentia International AB Intentia we

approved plan designed to eliminate employee redundancies in both Intentia and Legacy Lawson These actions included

the reduction of approximately 185 employees and the exit of or reduction in leased space As of May 31 2009 we had an

accrual of $3.0 million for the exit or reduction of leased facilities In fiscal 2010 we made cash payments of $0.8 million

related to exited facilities During the second and fourth quarters of fiscal 2010 we made adjustments to reduce lease exit

costs of approximately $0.6 million for changes in estimates relating to the original lease restructuring plan These

adjustments resulted in reduction of acquired goodwill In addition we recorded $1.5 million increase in our lease accrual

in the third quarter of fiscal 2010 as result ofan early exit by subtenant The remaining accrual as of May 31 2010 was

$2.9 million for the exit of or reduction in leased space Actions relating to severance were completed in the third quarter of

fiscal 2008 We expect cash payments related to exited facilities or reduced space to continue through June 2012
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As result of our restructuring plans and the realignment of our workforce we have experienced cost savings from

the lower facility expenses and reduced headcount and expect these savings to continue

Amortization ofAcquiredlntangible Amortization of acquired intangibles primarily relates to the on-going

amortization of intangibles acquired in the Intentia merger our acquisition of Healthvision as well as other acquisitions For

fiscal 2010 amortization increased $0.6 million or 6.5% to $9.5 million compared to fiscal 2009 This increase was

primarily due to $2.0 million in amortization of intangible assets acquired in our acquisition of Healthvision Partially

offsetting this were decreases related to the amortization of certain intangible assets on an accelerated basis resulting in

higher rate of amortization in fiscal 2009 as compared to fiscal 2010 as well as certain intangibles being fully amortized in

fiscal 2009 with no corresponding amortization recorded in the current periods of fiscal 2010

For fiscal 2009 amortization decreased $4.8 million to $8.9 million or 35.0% as compared to fiscal 2008 This

decrease was primarily due to certain intangibles being fully amortized in fiscal 2008 with no corresponding amortization in

fiscal 2009 and the amortization of certain intangible assets on an accelerated basis resulting in higher amortization in fiscal

2008 as compared to fiscal 2009

Other Income Expenses Net

Total other income expense net consisting of interest income earned from cash marketable securities and other

investments interest expense and other associated costs was net expense of$15.2 million $8.8 million and $13.3 million

in fiscal 2010 2009 and 2008 respectively

The $6.4 million increase in other net expense in fiscal 2010 compared to 2009 was primarily due to $5.4 million

decrease in interest income resulting from lower yields due to lower market interest rates from our investments primarily in

money market funds and time deposits and lower average investment balances including the impact of our cash used to

acquire Healthvision Interest expense also increased $0.6 million primarily due to the impact of our adoption of the FASB

guidance on accounting for convertible debt securities which required us to record net additional non-cash interest of

approximately $8.2 million and $7.7 million in fiscal 2010 and retrospectively in fiscal 2009 respectively

The $4.5 million decrease in other net expense in fiscal 2009 compared to fiscal 2008 was primarily due to the

impairment charges we recorded related to our investments in auction rate securities of $18.4 million in fiscal 2008 In

addition during 2009 we realized $13.8 million less of investment income primarily due to lower market interest rates and

our more conservative asset allocation approach in
response to economic conditions The year-over-year decreases in our

average investment balances and related investment income were also the result of our investments in auction rate securities

being sold in the first quarter of fiscal 2009 as well as decrease in our investments in marketable securities during fiscal

2009 We transitioned our investments to cash and cash equivalents primarily treasuries and money market funds and as

result we experienced lower yields in fiscal 2009 as compared to fiscal 2008 In addition interest expense decreased

$0.4 million in fiscal 2009 compared to fiscal 2008 including the impact of our adoption of the FASB guidance on

accounting for convertible debt securities which required us to retrospectively record net additional non-cash interest of

approximately $7.7 million and $7.1 million in fiscal 2009 and fiscal 2008 respectively

Provision for Income Taxes

For fiscal 2010 our global provision for income taxes was $27.6 million as compared to $21.7 million for fiscal

2009 Our global provision increased due to an increase in taxable income and to lesser extent from the accrual of

additional income tax provision that should have been recorded in previous periods See Note Nature of Business and

Basis of PresentationFiscal 2010 Results of Operations Our effective income tax rate for fiscal 2010 was 67.9% Our

effective rate for the year was negatively impacted by 28.9% for unbenefited foreign losses See Note 12 Income Taxes in

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements of this Form 10-K for our full rate reconciliation

In addition during fiscal 2010 we recorded income tax benefits of less than $0.1 million for tax deductions in

excess of historical book deductions related to employee stock option exercises as compared to $0.7 million in fiscal 2009

These tax benefits which decreased current income taxes payable and increased additional paid-in capital by equal amounts

had no effect on our provision for income taxes however it did result in decrease in the amount of our cash tax payments

For fiscal 2009 our global provision for income taxes was $21.7 million as compared to $28.4 million for fiscal

2008 The decrease in our global provision was primarily related to the non-recurrence of fiscal 2008 capital loss on an

other-than-temporary impairment charge on auction rate securities for which no tax benefit was expected Our effective

income tax rate for fiscal 2009 was 60.5% The rate for fiscal 2009 was positively impacted by 9.5% for discrete items
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related to the release of valuation allowances in various foreign jurisdictions in which it is now more likely than not that

certain tax benefits associated with our deferred tax assets will be utilized prior to expiration Our effective rate for the year

was also negatively impacted by 5.6% for unbenefited foreign losses

In April 2006 the Company acquired Intentia As of the date of the acquisition many of the Intentia legal entities

had deferred tax assets for which future realization of tax benefits was uncertain and therefore had full valuation allowance

applied against them Under the provisions of the FASB guidance related to accounting for income taxes if acquired deferred

tax assets are ultimately expected to be realized and related valuation allowances are reversed this will not result in tax

benefit but rather reduction of goodwill However with our adoption of the FASB guidance related to business

combinations effective June 2009 beginning in fiscal 2010 any release of valuation allowances originally recorded through

purchase accounting in relation to our acquisitions are included as benefit in our tax provision rather than as an adjustment

to goodwill

Non-GAAP Financial Measure Reconciliations

We believe our presentation of non-GAAP revenues operating income operating margin net income and diluted

net income per share provide meaningful insight into our operating performance and an alternative perspective of our results

of operations We use these non-GAAP measures to assess our operating performance to develop budgets to serve as

measurement for incentive compensation awards and to manage expenditures Presentation of these non-GAAP measures

allows investors to review our results of operations from the same perspective as management and our Board of Directors

These non-GAAP financial measures provide investors an enhanced understanding of our operations facilitate investors

analysis and comparisons of our current and past results of operations facilitate comparisons of our operating results with

those of our competitors and provide insight into the prospects of our future performance We also believe that the non

GAAP measures are useful to investors because they provide supplemental information that research analysts frequently use

to analyze software companies including those that have recently made significant acquisitions

The method we use to produce non-GAAP results is not in accordance with U.S GAAP and may differ from the

methods used by other companies These non-GAAP results should not be regarded as substitute for corresponding

U.S GAAP measures but instead should be utilized as supplemental measure of operating performance in evaluating our

business Non-GAAP measures do have limitations in that they do not reflect certain items that may have material impact

upon our reported financial results As such these non-GAAP measures should be viewed in conjunction with both our

financial statements prepared in accordance with U.S GAAP and the reconciliation of the supplemental non-GAAP financial

measures to the comparable U.S GAAP results provided for each period presented below in thousands except per share

amounts

Years Ended May 31

2010 2009 2008 2010 vs 2009 2009 vs 2008

GAAP revenue $736408 $757328 $851926 $20920 2.8% $94598 11.1%

Non-GAAP revenue adjustments

Purchase accounting impact on maintenance revenues 4274 538 1438

Purchase accounting impact on consulting revenues 1473 232

Non-GAAP revenue adjustments 5747 538 1670

Non-GAAP revenue $742155 $757866 $853596 $15711 2.1% $95730 11.2%

Years Ended May 31

2010 2009 2008 2010 vs 2009 2009 vs 2008

operating income $55869 $44733 $51078 $11136 24.9% $6345 12.4%

GAAP operating margin 7.6% 5.9% 6.0%

Non-GAAP revenue adjustments 5747 538 1670

Non-GAAP
costs/operating expense adjustments

Purchase accounting impact on consulting costs 150 525

Amortization of purchased maintenance contracts 1974 2607 3369

Stock-based compensation 17026 8519 6741

Pre-merger claims reserve adjustment 661 5021 3827
Acquisition transaction and integration costs 1571

Pension gain 1850
Restructuring 13154 19954 731
Amortization of acquired intangibles 22877 19934 25988

Total non-GAAP costs/operating expense adjustments 54091 46143 32065

Non-CAAP operating income $115707 $91414 $84813 $24293 26.6% $6601 7.8%

Non-GAAP operating margin 15.6% 12.1% 9.9%
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CAAP net incomel
Non-GAAP revenue adjustments

Non-GAAP costs/operating expense adjustments

Non-cash interest expense related to convertible debt

Impairment on long-term investments

Tax provision adjustment2

Non-GAAP net income

Years Ended May 31

2008 2010 vs 2009 2009 vs 2008

$9322 $1167 8.2% $4869 52.2%

1670

32065

7386

18413

9037
$59819 $9787 16.6% $961 1.6%

GAAP net income per diluted share1

Purchase accounting impact on revenue

Purchase accounting impact on consulting costs

Amortization of purchased maintenance contracts

Stock-based compensation

Pre-merger claims reserve adjustment

Acquisition transaction and integration costs

Pension gain

Restructuring

Amortization of acquired intangibles

Non-cash interest expense related to convertible debt

Impairment on long-term investments

Tax provision adjustment

Non-GAAP net income per diluted share

Weighted average sharesbasic

Weighted average sharesdiluted

2010 2009 2008

$0.08 $0.08 $0.05

0.03 0.00 0.01

0.00 0.00

0.01 0.02 0.02

0.10 0.05 0.04

0.00 0.03 0.02

0.01

0.01

0.08 0.12 0.00

0.14 0.12 0.14

0.05 0.05 0.04

0.10

0.08 0.06 0.05

$0.42 $0.35 $0.33

161442 164011 177283

165251 166393 180580

2010 vs 2009 2009 vs 2008

$0.00 6.5% $0.03 63.3%

$0.07 17.8% $0.02 6.5%

Adjusted to reflect adoption of the FASB guidance on accounting for convertible debt securities See Note

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies in Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements of this Form 10-K

We estimate an annual global effective non-GAAP tax rate by excluding non-GAAP adjustments on jurisdictional

basis The estimated global effective non-GAAP tax rate for fiscal 2010 2009 and 2008 was 37.0% 5.0% and

38.5% respectively The above tax provision adjustments were made to reflect these rates for the applicable periods

The non-GAAP adjustments we make to our reported U.S GAAP results are primarily related to purchase

accounting and other acquisition matters significant non-cash accounting charges and restructuring charges Our primary

non-GAAP reconciling items are as follows

Purchase accounting impact on revenue Our non-GAAP financial results include pro forma adjustments to

increase maintenance and consulting revenues that we would have recognized if we had not adjusted acquired deferred

revenues to their fair values as required by U.S.GAAP Certain deferred revenue for maintenance and consulting on the

acquired entitys balance sheet at the time of the acquisition was eliminated from U.S GAAP results as part of the purchase

accounting for the acquisition As result our U.S GAAP results do not in managements view reflect all of our

maintenance and consulting activity We believe the inclusion of the pro forma revenue adjustment provides investors

helpful alternative view of Lawsons maintenance and consulting operations

Amortization of purchased maintenance contracts We have excluded amortization of purchased maintenance

contracts from our non-GAAP results The purchase price related to these contracts is being amortized based upon the

proportion of future cash flows estimated to be generated each period over the estimated useful lives of the contracts We

believe that the exclusion of the amortization expense related to the purchased maintenance contracts provides investors an

enhanced understanding of our results of operations

Stock-based compensation Expense related to stock-based compensation has been excluded from our non-GAAP

results of operations These charges consist of the estimated fair value of share-based awards including stock options

restricted stock restricted stock units and share purchases under our employee stock purchase plan While the charges for

stock-based compensation are of recurring nature as we grant stock-based awards to attract and retain quality employees

and as an incentive to help achieve financial and other corporate goals we exclude them from our results of operation in

assessing our operating performance These charges are typically non-cash and are often the result of complex calculations

using an option pricing model that estimates stock-based awards fair value based on factors such as volatility and risk-free

interest rates that are beyond our control The expense related to stock-based awards is generally not controllable in the short-

term and can vary significantly based on the timing size and nature of awards granted As such we do not include such

charges in our operating plans that we use to manage our business In addition we believe the exclusion of these charges

facilitates comparisons of our operating results with those of our competitors who may have different policies regarding the

use of stock-based awards

Years Ended May 31

2010 2009

$13024 $14191

5747 538

54091 46143

8486 7948

12703 9962
$68645 $58858

41



Pre-merger claims reserve adjustment We have excluded the adjustments to our pre-merger claims reserve from

our non-GAAP results As part of the purchase accounting relating to our Intentia acquisition in April 2006 we established

reserve for Intentia customer claims and disputes that arose before the acquisition which originally resulted in an increase in

the acquired goodwill As we are outside the period in which adjustments to such purchase accounting is allowed

adjustments to the reserve are recorded in our general and administrative expenses under U.S GAAP We do not consider the

adjustments to this reserve established under purchase accounting in our assessment of our operating performance Further

since the original reserve was established in purchase accounting the original charge was not reflected in our operating

results We believe that the exclusion of the pre-merger claims reserve adjustments provides investors an appropriate

alternative view of our results of operations and facilitates comparisons of our results period-over-period

Acquisition transaction and integration costs We have incurred various transaction and integration costs related to

our acquisitions The costs of integrating the operations of acquired businesses and Lawson are incremental to our historical

costs and are charged to our U.S GAAP results of operations in the periods incurred Beginning in fiscal 2010 acquisition

related transaction costs have also been charged to our U.S GAAP results of operations We do not consider these costs in

our assessment of our operating performance While these costs are not recurring with respect to our past acquisitions we

may incur similar costs in the future if we pursue
other acquisitions We believe that the exclusion of the non-recurring

acquisition related transaction and integration costs provides investors useful alternative view of our results of operations

and facilitates comparisons of our results period-over-period

Pension Gain We have implemented certain modifications to our pension plan in Norway These modifications

resulted in curtailment of benefits under the plan and resulted in our recording gain related to the change in all active

participants projected benefit obligations resulting from the curtailment While this gain is non-recurring we may incur

other gains related to these pension plan modifications in the future including gain that we expect in the first quarter of

fiscal 2011 We do not consider these gains in our assessment of our operating performance We believe that the exclusion of

the non-recurring pension gains provide investors useful alternative view of our results of operations and facilitates

comparisons of our results period-over-period

Restructuring We have recorded various restructuring charges related to actions taken to reduce our cost structure

to enhance operating effectiveness and improve profitability and to eliminate certain redundancies in connection with

acquisitions These restructuring activities impacted different functional areas of our operations in different locations and

were undertaken to meet specific business objectives in light of the facts and circumstances at the time of each restructuring

event These charges include costs related to severance and other termination benefits as well as costs to exit leased facilities

These restructuring charges are excluded from managements assessment of our operating performance We believe that the

exclusion of the restructuring charges provides investors useful alternative view of the cost structure of our operations and

facilitates comparisons with the results of other periods that may not reflect such charges or may reflect different levels of

such charges

Amortization of acquired intangibles We have excluded amortization of acquisition-related intangible assets

including purchased technology client lists customer relationships trademarks order backlog and non-compete agreements

from our non-GAAP results The fair value of the intangible assets which was allocated to these assets through purchase

accounting is amortized using accelerated or straight-line methods which approximate the proportion of future cash flows

estimated to be generated each period over the estimated useful lives of the applicable assets While these non-cash

amortization charges are recurring in nature and the underlying assets benefit our operations this amortization expense can

fluctuate significantly based on the nature timing and size of our past acquisitions and may be affected by future

acquisitions This makes comparisons of our current and historic operating performance difficult Therefore we exclude such

expenses when analyzing the results of our operations including those of acquired entities We believe that the exclusion of

the amortization expense of acquired intangible assets provides investors useful information facilitating comparison of our

results period-over-period and with other companies in the software industry as they each have their own acquisition histories

and related non-GAAP adjustments

Non-cash interest expense related to convertible debt We have excluded the incremental non-cash interest

expense related to our $240.0 million 2.5% senior convertible notes that we are required to recognize under U.S.GAAP for

convertible debt securities from our non-GAAP results of operations for all periods presented This accounting guidance

requires us to recognize additional non-cash interest expense based on the market rate for similar debt instruments that do not

contain comparable conversion feature We have allocated portion of the proceeds from the issuance of the senior notes to

the embedded conversion feature resulting in discount on our senior notes The debt discount is being amortized as

additional non-cash interest expense over the term of the notes using the effective interest method These non-cash interest

charges are not included in our operating plans and are not included in managements assessment of our operating

performance We believe that the exclusion of the non-cash interest charges provides useful alternative for investors to

evaluate the cost structure of our operations in manner consistent with our internal evaluation of our cost structure
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Impairment on long-term investments The liquidity and fair value of our investments in marketable securities

including Auction Rate Securities ARS were negatively impacted by the uncertainty in the credit markets and exposure to

the financial condition of bond insurance companies during fiscal 2008 As result we recorded impairment charges to

reduce the carrying value of our ARS investments The impairment charges related to our ARS investments have been

excluded from our non-GAAP results of operations These impairment charges were excluded from managements

assessment of our operating performance We believe that the exclusion of these unique charges provide investors useful

alternative view of our operations and facilitates comparisons with the results of other periods that do not reflect such

charges

Non-GAAP Tax Provision Adjustments The non-GAAP tax provision adjustments are made to reflect the fact that

our annual global effective non-GAAP tax rate is lower than our effective U.S GAAP rate These differences in effective rate

are due to the increase in non-GAAP taxable income as compared to U.S GAAP taxable income due to the non-GAAP

reconciling items detailed in the above table and the jurisdictional mix of non-GAAP and U.S GAAP taxable income Our

non-GAAP taxable income outside the U.S exceeds the U.S GAAP taxable income outside the U.S This difference in

jurisdictional mix leads to higher proportion of our non-GAAP taxable income being taxed at substantially lower non-U.S

tax rates and reduction in foreign losses for which no tax benefit can be taken The non-GAAP tax provision adjustments

are made to reflect the annual global effective non-GAAP tax rate for each period

Liquidity and Capital Resources

As of and for the

Years Ended May 31

2010 2009 2008 2010 vs 2009 2009 vs 2008

as adjusted as adjusted

in thousands

Cash Flows

Cash provided by used in

Operating activities $153039 $71288 $81639 114.7% 12.7%
Investing activities 178757 13219 27287 NM NM
Financing activities 4426 99917 97247 95.6 2.7

Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash

equivalents 8754 4896 4053 78.8 NM
Net change in cash and cash equivalents $38898 $20306 $38842 91.6% 47.7%

Capital Resources

Working capital $115034 $213997 $261072 46.2% 18.0%
Cash and cash equivalents marketable securities and

short-term investments $375917 $414815 $485810 9.4% l4.6%

NM Percentage not meaningful

As of May 31 2010 we had $375.9 million in cash cash equivalents and $115.0 million in working capital Our

most significant source of operating cash flows is derived from license fees maintenance and consulting fees related to

services provided to our customers Days sales outstanding DSO which is calculated on net receivables at period-end

divided by revenue for the quarter times 90 days in the quarter was 54 and 74 as of May 31 200 and May 31 2009

respectively The decrease in DSO was due to the reduction in our accounts receivable balance primarily related to focused

collection efforts on our global receivables in fiscal 2010 Our primary uses of cash from operating activities are for

employee costs third-party costs for licenses and services and facilities

On January 11 2010 we acquired privately held Healthvision Dallas- based provider of integration and

application technology and related services to hospitals and large healthcare organizations for $160.0 million in cash net of

cash acquired See Note Business Combination for more information

We believe that cash flows from operations together with our cash and cash equivalents will be sufficient to meet

our cash requirements for working capital capital expenditures restructuring activities investments and share repurchases

for fiscal 2011 and for the foreseeable future As part of our business strategy we may use cash to acquire additional

companies or products from time-to-time to enhance our product lines which could have material effect on our capital

resources
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Cash Flows from Operating Activities

Net cash provided by operating activities in fiscal 2010 was $153.0 million Our fiscal 2010 sources of cash

included our net income of $13.0 million which included non-cash charges of $46.7 million for depreciation and

amortization $17.0 million related to stock-based compensation $9.5 million in amortization of debt discount and debt

issuance costs related to our senior convertible notes $6.2 million provision for estimated warranty costs and doubtful

accounts and $7.5 million non-cash increase in deferred income taxes Changes in working capital provided $52.8 million

of operating cash The cash provided by working capital included $49.1 million decrease in accounts receivable due to

focused collection efforts on our accounts receivable $26.1 million increase in our deferred revenue primarily related to the

timing of cash collections of annual service maintenance billings and decrease in prepaid expenses and other current assets

of$1.6 million primarily related to receipt of certain foreign withholding tax refunds The cash provided by working capital

was partially offset by cash used for working capital purposes of$19.9 million related to decrease in our accrued and other

liabilities primarily related to the payment of certain foreign withholding and VAT taxes as well as payments of accrued

severance and decrease of $3.7 million in accounts payable

Net cash provided by operating activities in fiscal 2009 was $71.3 million Our fiscal 2009 sources of cash included

our net income of $14.2 million which included non-cash charges of $39.6 million for depreciation and amortization

$9.0 million in amortization of debt discount and debt issuance costs related to our senior convertible notes $8.5 million

related to stock-based compensation and an $8.4 million provision for estimated warranty costs and doubtful accounts

Offsetting these sources of cash was $6.6 million non-cash reduction in deferred income taxes and $1.2 million used for

working capital purposes The cash uses for working capital purposes included $21 .7 million decrease in our deferred

revenue primarily related to the impact of foreign currency exchange rates as of our billing cycle date $7.7 million decrease

in accounts payable primarily due to lower costs in fiscal 2009 over fiscal 2008 and $7.4 million related to an increase in

prepaid expenses and other current assets These working capital uses of cash were partially offset by $25.8 million

decrease in accounts receivable due to lower revenue volume and our collection of customer accounts and maintenance

billings $6.7 million related to an increase in our accrued and other liabilities and $2.9 million related to income taxes

payable/receivable

Net cash provided by operating activities in fiscal 2008 was $81.6 million In addition to our net income of

$9.3 million which included non-cash charges of $43.3 million for depreciation and amortization $8.5 million in

amortization of debt discount and debt issuance costs related to our senior convertible notes and $6.7 million related to

stock-based compensation the $18.4 million impairment charge related to our investments in auction rate securities net

$7.5 million provision for warranty and doubtful accounts and $5.8 million increase related to deferred income taxes

These sources of cash were partially offset by net $15.4 million used for working capital purposes The $15.4 million in

cash used for working capital purposes included $33.6 million decrease in accrued and other liabilities primarily related to

reduction in our pre-merger litigation and restructuring reserves as well as decrease in our value added tax VAT payable

$19.5 million increase in prepaid expenses reflecting an increase in VAT receivable relating to our Switzerland based

shared service center and $6.4 million increase in trade accounts receivable related to number of new customers large

contracts entered into in the second half of fiscal 2008 and net increase in maintenance billings These working capital uses

of cash were mostly offset by $34.2 million in cash provided by deferred revenue and customer deposits related to deferrals

of certain significant contracts and higher fourth quarter fiscal 2008 maintenance billings and an increase in prepaid license

fees and $9.9 million increase in income taxes payable

Cash Flows from Investing Activities

Net cash used by investing activities was $178.8 million fiscal 2010 The primary use of cash was the $160.0 million

net cash paid in conjunction with our acquisition of Healthvision see Note Business Combination and $19.0 million used

to purchase property and equipment primarily related to continued investments in our global information technology and

business system infrastructure

Net cash provided by investing activities was $13.2 million for fiscal 2009 The sources of cash included

$50.7 million in proceeds from the sale of our investments in auction rate securities and the sale or maturity of marketable

securities These sources of cash were somewhat offset by the $29.3 million of cash used to purchase property and equipment

primarily investments in our global information technology and business system infrastructure as well as expanding our off

shore capacity and an $8.1 million increase in restricted cash primarily due to the $9.1 million held in our segregated

brokerage account at Lehman OTC Derivatives Inc Lehman OTC in connection with our accelerated share repurchase

transaction See Note Common Stock in Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements of this Form 10-K
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Net cash used in investing activities was $27.3 million for fiscal 2008 primarily related to $23.0 million of capital

expenditures and $20.3 million used in conjunction with acquisition activities in fiscal 2008 These uses of cash were

somewhat offset by net proceeds of $11.3 million related to marketable securities and other investments as well as

$4.7 million decrease in our restricted cash balance

Cash Flows from Financing Activities

Net cash used for financing activities was $4.4 million for fiscal 2010 Cash used for financing activities during the

period were related to $7.4 million used to repurchase shares of our common stock pursuant to our Board authorized share

repurchase program and $3.7 million used to make payments on our long-term debt and capital lease obligations These uses

of cash were somewhat offset by $5.9 million in proceeds from the exercise of stock options and the issuance of shares of our

common stock under our ESPP

Net cash used for financing activities was $99.9 million for fiscal 2009 Financing activities for the period were

primarily related to the $103.0 million used to repurchase shares of our common stock pursuant to our Board authorized share

repurchase program including an accelerated share repurchase transaction we entered into in July 2008 see Note Common

Stock in Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements of this Form 10-K $2.8 million used to make principal payments on

our long term debt and capital lease obligations These uses of cash were partially offset by $5.2 million in proceeds from the

exercise of stock options and the issuance of shares of our common stock under our employee stock purchase plan

Net cash used for financing activities was $97.2 million for fiscal 2008 Financing activities for fiscal 2008 were

primarily related to the use of $105.6 million to repurchase our common stock in connection with our Board authorized share

repurchase program and $3.6 million in payments related to long-term debt and capital lease obligations which were partially

offset by $9.9 million in proceeds from of the exercise of stock options and the issuance of shares of our common stock under

our employee stock purchase plan

Effect of Exchange Rate Changes

In fiscal 2010 changes in foreign currency exchange rates resulted in an $8.8 million decrease in our cash and cash

equivalents Exchange rate changes decreased our cash and cash equivalents by $4.9 million and increased our cash and cash

equivalents by $4.1 million in fiscal 2009 and 2008 respectively

Credit Facilities

We have an uncommitted credit facility that consists of guarantee line with Skandinaviska Enskilda Banken SEB
in the amount of $3.8 million 30.0 million SEK We had no borrowings outstanding under this line as of May 31 2010

Senior Convertible Notes

In April 2007 we issued $240.0 million of senior convertible notes with net proceeds after expenses of

approximately $233.5 million The notes mature on April 15 2012 The notes bear interest at rate of 2.5% per annum

payable semi-annually in arrears on April 15 and October 15 of each year beginning October 15 2007 The notes do not

contain any restrictive financial covenants The notes are convertible at the holders option into cash and if applicable

shares of our common stock based on an initial conversion rate of 83.2293 shares of common stock per $1000 principal

amount of notes which is equivalent to an initial conversion price of approximately $12.02 per share which reflects 35.0%

conversion premium based on the closing sale price of $8.90 per share of Lawson common stock as reported by NASDAQ on

April 17 2007 At the issuance of these notes we simultaneously entered into separate agreements to purchase call options

and sell warrants As discussed below we exercised our right to terminate the call options and the warrants on October 10

2008 which are referred to below as note hedge transaction and warrant transaction In connection with the issuance of

the notes we entered into registration rights agreement with the initial purchasers of the notes On August 16 2007 we

filed the shelf registration statement which became effective on that date On October 19 2009 all securities that remained

unsold under the registration statement were deregistered as our contractual obligation to maintain the shelf registration

terminated See Note Long-Term Debt and Credit Facilities and Note Summary ofSign flcant Accounting

Policies-Recent Accounting Pronouncements in Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements of this Form 10-K for additional

information

We had certain business relationships with Lehman OTC including convertible note hedge transaction and

warrant transaction both entered into as part of the issuance of our senior convertible notes and an accelerated share

repurchase transaction see Repurchase of Common Shares below for additional information On September 15 2008
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Lehman Brothers Holdings Inc Lehman Holdings filed for protection under Chapter 11 of the United States Bankruptcy

Code in the United States Bankruptcy Court in the Southern District of New York Subsidiaries of Lehman Holdings

including Lehman Brothers Inc Lehman Brothers and Lehman OTC were not included in the filing On September 19

2008 Lehman Brothers was placed in liquidation under the Securities Investor Protection Act In addition on October

2008 Lehman OTC filed for Chapter 11 bankruptcy

Lehman Brothers was one of the original purchasers of our senior convertible notes None of the net proceeds from

the offering are on deposit with Lehman Brothers or any of its affiliates In conjunction with the issuance of the notes we

entered into convertible note hedge transaction with Lehman OTC an affiliate of Lehman Brothers In separate

agreement we entered into warrant transaction with Lehman OTC Together these transactions were designed to reduce the

potential dilution resulting from the potential conversion of our senior convertible notes into shares of common stock and

effectively increased the conversion price of the notes to $15.58 per share from the initial conversion price of the notes of

$12.02 per share

The bankruptcy filing by Lehman OTC was an event of default under the hedge transaction and warrant agreements

As result of that default we exercised our rights to terminate both the hedge transaction and the warrant transaction on

October 10 2008 As result of our termination of the hedge transaction terms of the original transaction provided us the

right to seek recovery from Lehman OTC equal to the termination-date fair value of the common stock option instrument we

issued in connection with the hedge transaction At the time of termination the instrument ceased being hedge instrument

and was effectively replaced by our claim against Lehman OTC Accordingly for financial reporting purposes we recorded

the estimated fair value of the related hedge transaction asset and the warrant liability during the second quarter of fiscal

2009 resulting in decrease in our stockholders equity equal to the net amount of the recorded asset and liability As part of

the convertible note hedge transaction Lehman OTC agreed to have Lehman Holdings guarantee certain obligations of

Lehman OTC Based on the developments in the bankruptcy proceeding we do not anticipate receiving recovery from

Lehman Holdings for the guaranty agreed to by Lehman OTC

On June 2009 counsel for Lehman Holdings and Lehman OTC demanded payment from us of the termination-

date fair value of the warrant asserted that in the contracts we have waived the right to setoff against the amounts owed to us

under the hedge transaction and claimed we violated the bankruptcy stay in asserting offset rights We have refused payment

and contend that the U.S Bankruptcy Code gives us legal rights of offset in this dispute Lehman OTC disagrees with our

contention and claims that we waived our right of offset under the terms of the original transaction documents As of the date

of this filing we are in discussions with representatives of Lehman OTC regarding the resolution of the offset issue as well as

other issues surrounding the hedge transaction asset and the warrant liability including their proper valuation We continue to

closely monitor the Lehman Holdings bankruptcy situation the liquidation of Lehman Brothers as well as the Lehman OTC

bankruptcy and our legal rights under our contractual relationships with Lehman OTC and Lehman Brothers

For financial reporting purposes we estimated the fair value of the hedge transaction asset and the warrant liability

using the Black-Scholes option pricing model and considered the credit risk of Lehman OTC The fair value of these

obligations recorded for financial reporting purposes may differ from the values ultimately determined in various legal

proceedings including actions of the U.S bankruptcy court If the ultimate settlement of either of these obligations differs

from the recorded amounts we will be required to recognize any related gain or loss in our results of operations in the period

such settlement is known As of May 31 2010 our claim against Lehman OTC and Lehman OTCs claim against us have not

been settled

The terms of the senior convertible notes and the rights of note holders are not affected by the status of Lehman

Holdings or Lehman OTC or by the termination of the convertible note hedge or warrant transactions We currently believe

that the Lehman Holdings bankruptcy and its potential impact on subsidiaries of Lehman Holdings the liquidation of

Lehman Brothers and the bankruptcy of Lehman OTC will not have material adverse effect on our financial position

results of operations or cash flows

Restricted Cash

We had $10.7 million held as restricted cash as of May 31 2010 of which $0.7 million and $10.0 million have been

classified as current and non-current assets respectively on our Consolidated Balance Sheets The non-current portion relates

primarily to the $9.1 million held on our account at Lehman Brothers which was reclassified from current to non-current in

fiscal 2010 and is discussed below under Repurchase of Common Shares The remainder of the restricted cash balance relates

to various collateral arrangements related to our property leases worldwide
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We had $11.0 million held as restricted cash as ofMay 31 2009 of which $9.2 million and $1.8 million have been

classified as current and non-current assets respectively on our Consolidated Balance Sheets The current portion relates

primarily to the $9.1 million held on our account at Lehman Brothers The remainder of the restricted cash balance relates to

various collateral arrangements related to our property leases worldwide

Auction Rate Securities

As of May 31 2008 we held total of $45.2 million in short-term investments in auction rate securities reflecting

$18.4 million impairment from their original par value of approximately $63.7 million These investments were governed by

our investment policy the objective of which is to provide as high of level of current income as is consistent with

preservation of capital and the maintenance of liquidity Approved investments include U.S Government securities and

investments in corporations and municipalities rated AA or higher including investments in auction rate securities Our

investments in auction rate securities represented interests in collateralized debt obligations and were supported primarily by

high grade short-term commercial paper

During fiscal 2008 uncertainties in the credit markets had significant effect on our holdings in auction rate

securities Auctions related to our investments in auction rate securities became unsuccessful and liquidity issues relating to

these investments resulted in decline in the fair value of our portfolio of auction rate securities This resulted in our

recording impairment losses related to these investments

On July 2008 we sold our auction rate securities portfolio for $45.2 million in cash the carrying value as of

May 31 2008 In light of this transaction the $2.9 million of impairment losses previously recorded in the second and third

quarters of fiscal 2008 and originally determined to be temporary and reflected in separate component of stockholders

equity were reclassified as other-than-temporary and included in our results of operations for fiscal 2008 As result we

recorded an impairment charge of approximately $18.4 million for fiscal 2008 which was included in other income

expense net in the accompanying Consolidated Statements of Operations

Repurchase of Common Shares

Our Board of Directors approved share repurchase program of up to $100.0 million of common stock in November

2006 and on July 10 2008 increased the maximum authorized for repurchase under the program to $400.0 million The

share repurchases are funded using our existing cash balances and future cash flows and may occur through transactions

structured through investment banking institutions as permitted by securities laws and other legal requirements open market

purchases privately negotiated transactions andlor other mechanisms Our share repurchase program allows us to repurchase

shares at our discretion and market conditions influence the timing of the buybacks and the number of shares repurchased

There can be no assurance as to the amount timing or repurchase price of future repurchases if any related to the share

repurchase program The program may also be modified extended or terminated by our Board of Directors at any time

In the fourth quarter of fiscal 2010 we did not repurchase any shares of our common stock under the share

repurchase program During fiscal 2010 we repurchased an aggregate of 1.3 million shares of our common stock at an

average price of $5.92 per share under the share repurchase program From inception of the repurchase program through

May 31 2010 we have used $270.9 million to repurchase approximately 32.9 million shares at an average price of $8.23 per

share The repurchased shares are recorded as treasury stock and result in reduction to our stockholders equity The shares

will be used for general corporate purposes As of May 31 2010 the maximum dollar value of shares that may yet be

purchased under this program was $129.1 million

During the first quarter of fiscal 2009 we purchased 11.5 million shares through an accelerated share repurchase

transaction the ASR that we entered into with Lehman OTC on July 15 2008 The average price per share of the shares

purchased under the ASR transaction was $7.93 Lehman OTC delivered 11.5 million shares of our common stock to us

through August 2008 Under the agreement Lehman OTC was obligated to deliver additional shares to us at maturity of

the transaction based on the final per share purchase price and the total number of shares repurchased as determined primarily

by the volume- weighted average price of our common stock during the term of the agreement The agreement further

required that Lehman OTC post cash collateral to segregated brokerage account in our name in an amount equal to the

value of the additional shares or net cash due to us if the ASR were terminated as of the current date Upon an event of

default by Lehman OTC pursuant to our rights under the ASR we issued notice of default to Lehman OTC on

September 24 2008 and terminated the ASR agreement and requested the distribution of the $9.1 million of funds which

Lehman OTC had previously deposited into our segregated brokerage account at Lehman Brothers as required under the ASR

agreement On March 25 2009 we received notice from the bankruptcy trustee for the Lehman Brothers estate that the

trustee has allowed our customer claim for the $9.1 million As of the filing date of this Annual Report on Form 10-K we

have not received payment of these funds
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The bankruptcy trustee for the Lehman Brothers estate has filed certain court papers against Lehman Brothers

indicating that there were shortfalls in the reserves intended to cover customer claims such as Lawsons ASR claim for

$9.1 million The trustee sought permission to use assets other than the reserves to cover these customer claims Several

creditors non-customers objected and compromise was reached in early March 2010 where funds could be used to cover

what appears to be significant part of the shortfall and the trustee could seek further authority to cover additional shortfalls

The trustee is continuing to investigate the reasons for the aggregate shortfalls in the reserve for all customer claims and other

possible sources of funds to make up the aggregate shortfall We had originally anticipated that we would receive payment of

our approved $9.1 million claim in 2010 and had recorded these funds as restricted cash and reflected the funds as current

asset in our Consolidated Balance Sheet as of May 31 2009 However based on these developments relating to the Lehman

Brothers estate during the third quarter of fiscal 2010 we reclassified the funds to reflect them as long-term asset We

continue to closely monitor the Lehman Brothers liquidation situation and its impact on our claim

The $7.93 average price per share of the shares purchased under the ASR is inclusive of the $9.1 million discussed

above Any potential reduction in the amount we may receive related to our approved claim would be an adjustment to the

average price per share of the related treasury stock and would not impact our future results of operations

We currently believe that the Lehman Holdings bankruptcy and its potential impact on subsidiaries of Lehman

Holdings the liquidation of Lehman Brothers and the bankruptcy of Lehman OTC will not have material adverse effect on

our financial position results of operations or cash flows We continue to closely monitor the Lehman Holdings bankruptcy

situation the liquidation of Lehman Brothers as well as the Lehman OTC bankruptcy and our legal rights under our

contractual relationships with Lehman OTC

Disclosures about Contractual Obligations and Commercial Commitments

The following summarizes our contractual obligations and commercial commitments as of May 31 2010 and the

effect these obligations and commitments are expected to have on our liquidity and cash flows in future periods in

thousands

Year or More than

Total Less 1-3 Years 3-5 Years Years

Balance sheet contractual obligations

Long-term debt gross excluding debt discount $242761 $1661 $241100

Interest on long-term debt 12138 6107 6031

Capital leases 1628 1031 580 17
_________

Total balance sheet contractual obligations 256527 8799 247711 17
__________

Other contractual obligations

Operating leases 63609 25241 24197 12354 1817

Purchase obligations1 7744 5334 2168 242
_________

Total other contractual obligations 71353 30575 26365 12596 1817

Total contractual obligations2 $327880 $39374 $274076 $12613 $1817

Our purchase obligations represent those commitments greater than $50000

Total unrecognized tax benefits of $9.7 million are not included in the above table as we are unable to reasonably

estimate when these amounts will ultimately be settled See Note 12 Income Taxes in Notes to Consolidated

Financial Statements of this Form 10-K for additional information

Off-Balance-Sheet Arrangements

As of May 31 2010 we did not have any off-balance-sheet arrangements as defined in Item 303a4ii of SEC

Regulation S-K We do not use off-balance-sheet arrangements with unconsolidated entities related parties or other forms of

off-balance-sheet arrangements such as research and development arrangements Accordingly our liquidity and capital

resources are not subject to off-balance-sheet risks from unconsolidated entities

We have entered into operating leases for most of our U.S and international sales and support offices and certain

equipment in the normal course of business These arrangements are often referred to as form of off-balance- sheet

financing As of May 31 2010 we leased facilities and certain equipment under non-cancelable operating leases expiring

from 2010 to 2018 Rent expense under operating leases for fiscal 2010 2009 and 2008 was $29.1 million $26.9 million and

$31.4 million respectively Future minimum lease payments under our operating leases as of May 31 2010 are included

above under Disclosures about Contractual Obligations and Commercial Commitments
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Recent Accounting Pronouncements

In June 2009 the FASB issued guidance which amends the consolidation guidance applicable to variable interest

entities VIEs This guidance clarifies the determination of whether company is required to consolidate VIE changes the

approach to determining VIEs primary beneficiary the reporting entity that must consolidate the VIE requires an

ongoing reassessment of whether company is the primary beneficiary of VIE and requires additional disclosures about

companys involvement in VIEs This guidance is effective for fiscal years beginning after November 15 2009 our fiscal

201 We are currently evaluating how this may affect our accounting for VIEs but we do not expect it to have material

impact on our financial position results of operations or cash flows

In October 2009 the FASB issued guidance which amends the existing guidance for revenue recognition of non-

software elements of multiple element arrangements Under the new guidance when vendor-specific objective evidence or

third party evidence for deliverables in an arrangement cannot be determined companies will be required to develop best

estimate of the selling price to separate deliverables and allocate arrangement consideration based on the relative selling price

method The residual method of allocating arrangement consideration will no longer be permitted This guidance is effective

for fiscal years beginning on or after June 15 2010 our fiscal 2012 however early adoption is permitted We are currently

evaluating how this may affect our accounting for multiple element arrangements but we do not expect it to have material

impact on our financial position results of operations or cash flows

In January 2010 the FASB issued guidance that expands the interim and annual disclosure requirements of fair

value measurements including the information about transfers into and out of Levels and of the three-tier fair value

hierarchy established under the FASBs fair value measurement guidance This guidance also requires separate disclosure for

purchases sales issuances and settlements relating to Level measurements Except for the detailed disclosures related to

the Level reconciliation which is effective for the fiscal years beginning after December 15 2010 our fiscal 2011 all the

other disclosures under this guidance became effective during the fourth quarter of fiscal 2010 The adoption of the

applicable portions of this guidance did not have material impact on our financial position results of operations or cash

flows during fiscal 2010 and we do not expect the adoption of the guidance related to Level disclosures to have material

impact on our future financial position results of operations or cash flows

Item 7A Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk

Foreign Currency Our market risk includes the potential loss arising from adverse changes in foreign currency

exchange rates For fiscal 2010 approximately 40.2% of our revenue was denominated in foreign currency

We manage foreign currency market risk using forward contracts to offset the risk associated with the effects of

certain foreign currency exposures Increases or decreases in our foreign currency exposures are expected to be offset by

gains or losses on forward contracts This is expected to mitigate the possibility of significant foreign currency transaction

gains or losses in future periods Our foreign currency exposures are primarily related to non-functional currency

intercompany loans and advances between our international subsidiaries as well as other balance sheet accounts particularly

accounts receivable accounts payable and certain accrual accounts

We do not use forward contracts for trading purposes In fiscal 2010 and prior years we have not designated these

derivative contracts as hedge transactions under FASB guidance for derivatives and hedging and have not used hedge

accounting Our foreign currency forward contracts are generally short term in nature maturing within 90 days or less We

mark to market value all contracts at the end of each reporting period These unrealized gains and losses largely offset gains

and losses from non-functional currency balance sheet exposures previously recognized and are recorded as an offset to such

gains and losses in general and administrative expenses in our Consolidated Statements of Operations Our net realized gain

or loss with respect to currency fluctuations will depend on the currency exchange rates and other factors in effect as the

contracts mature We recorded net foreign exchange gains inclusive of the impact of foreign currency forward contracts of

$0.7 million for fiscal 2010 and $1.0 million for fiscal 2009 and net losses of $2.5 million for fiscal 2008 The corresponding

net gains of $8.3 million and $8.5 million and net losses of $10.2 million in realized and unrealized gains/losses from foreign

currency forward contracts were included in the accompanying Consolidated Statements of Operations during fiscal 2010
2009 and 2008 respectively The net fair value of our foreign currency forward contracts was net asset of $6.5 million as of

May 31 2010 net liability of $0.5 million as of May 31 2009 and net asset of $0.4 million as of May 31 2008 and was

included in other accrued liabilities and prepaid expenses and other current assets respectively

Interest Rates Our investments consist of financial instruments primarily money market funds Investments with

original maturities of three months or less are classified as cash and cash equivalents As of May 31 2010 the average

maturity of our investment securities was less than three months As of May 31 2010 we consider the reported amounts of

these investments to be reasonable approximations of fair values We do not consider changes in the market interest rates

related to these investments to be significant risk
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Our senior convertible notes are due April 15 2012 and bear interest at fixed rate of 2.50% per year We are

exposed to interest rate risk with respect to the fair value of our senior convertible notes since the fair value of our senior

convertible notes will fluctuate based on interest rate changes and the time to maturity As of May 31 2010 the adjusted net

carrying value of our convertible senior notes was $220.5 million including the debt discount of $17.5 million recorded upon

adoption of the FASB guidance on accounting for convertible debt securities and $2.0 million of deferred debt issuance costs

and the fair value was approximately $240.0 million

Item Consolidated Financial Statements and Supplementary Data

The information required by this Item is included in Part IV Item 15a1 and

Item Changes In and Disagreements with Accountants on Accounting and Financial Disclosure

None

Item 9A Controls and Procedures

Disclosure Controls and Procedures

We have established and maintained disclosure controls and procedures that are designed to ensure that information

required to be disclosed in our reports filed under the Exchange Act is recorded processed summarized and reported within

the time periods specified in the SECs rules and forms and that such information is accumulated and communicated to our

management including our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer to allow timely decisions regarding required

disclosure As required by Rule 13a-15e under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 as amended we conducted an

evaluation under the supervision and with the participation of management including our Chief Executive Officer and Chief

Financial Officer of the effectiveness of our disclosure controls and procedures as of the end of the period covered by this

Annual Report on Form 10-K Based on this evaluation our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer concluded

that our disclosure controls and procedures were effective as of May 31 2010

Managements Report on Internal Controls and Procedures

Our management is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over financial reporting as

defined in Securities Exchange Act Rules 13a-15f or 15d-15f Internal control over financial reporting is process

designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial

statements for external reporting purposes in accordance with U.S GAAP Our internal control over financial reporting

includes those policies and procedures that

pertain to the maintenance of records that in reasonable detail accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and

dispositions of our assets

provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial

statements in accordance with U.S GAAP and that our receipts and expenditures are being made only in

accordance with the authorizations of our management and directors and

provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition use or

disposition of our assets that could have material effect on our financial statements

All internal control systems no matter how well designed have inherent limitations Therefore even those systems

determined to be effective can provide only reasonable assurance with respect to financial statement preparation and

presentation and may not prevent or detect misstatements In addition projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future

periods are subject to the risks that controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions or that the degree of

compliance with policies or procedures may deteriorate

We conducted an assessment of the effectiveness of our internal control over financial reporting as of May 31 2010

under the supervision and with the participation of management including our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial

Officer This assessment was based on the guidelines set forth in Internal ControlIntegrated Framework issued by the

Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission COSO Based on the results of this evaluation

management concluded that our internal control over financial reporting was effective as of May 31 2010
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Our independent registered public accounting firm PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP has audited the effectiveness of

our internal control over financial reporting as of May 31 2010 See Part IV Item 5aFinancial StatementsReport of

Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm of this Form 10-K

Changes in Internal Control over Financial Reporting

There have been no changes in our internal control over financial reporting as defined in Rule 13a-15f of the

Securities Exchange Act during the quarter ended May 31 2010 that have materially affected or are reasonably likely to

materially affect our internal control over financial reporting

Item 9B Other Information

None

Part III

The information required by Part III Items 10 through 14 is incorporated by reference from our definitive Proxy

Statement for the 2010 Annual Meeting of Stockholders the Proxy Statement which we will file with the Securities and

Exchange Commission pursuant to Regulation 14A within 120 days of May 31 2010 the end of our fiscal year covered by

this Annual Report on Form 10-K Except for those portions specifically incorporated in this Form 10-K by reference to our

Proxy Statement no other portions of our Proxy Statement are deemed to be filed as part of this Form 10-K

Item 10 Directors Executive Officers and Corporate Governance

The information required by this Item as to our directors is incorporated by reference from information appearing in

our Proxy Statement under the headings Proposal Number 1Election of Directors Nominees and Directors

Section 16a Beneficial Ownership Reporting Compliance and Audit Committee Report The information concerning

our executive officers required by this item is included in Part hereof under the heading Executive Officers

We have adopted Global Business Code of Conduct that applies to our principal executive officer principal

financial officer principal accounting officer or controller or persons performing similar functions and all of our other

employees and non-employee directors copy of our Global Business Code of Conduct is available on our website

www.lawson.com We intend to satisfy the disclosure requirement under Item 10 of Form 8-K regarding an amendment to

or waiver from provision of the Global Business Code of Conduct that applies to our principal executive officer principal

financial officer principal accounting officer or controller or persons performing similar functions by posting such

information on our website at the address specified above

Copies of our Corporate Governance Policy and charters for each Committee of our Board of Directors are also

available on our website Our Global Business Code of Conduct Corporate Governance Policy and committee charters are

also available in print to any stockholder who submits written request to Lawson Software Inc Attn Corporate Secretary

380 St Peter Street St Paul Minnesota 55102

Information on our website is not deemed to be incorporated by reference into this Annual Report on Form 10-K

Item 11 Executive Compensation

Information required by this item is contained in the section entitled Compensation of Executive Officers in our

Proxy Statement and is incorporated herein by reference

Item 12 Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management and Related Stockholder Matters

Equity Conipensation Plan Information

The following table reflects information related to our equity compensation plans as of May 31 2010

Number of Securities

Number of Securities to Weighted-Average- Remaining Available

be Issued Upon Exercise Price of for Future Issuance

Exercise of Outstanding Under Equity

Outstanding Options Options Warrants Compensation

Plan Category Warrants and RightsI and Rights2 Plans3

Plans approved by stockholders 16618733 $6.24 32360700
Plans not approved by stockholders

Total 16618733 $6.24 32360700
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Includes outstanding stock options restricted stock awards and restricted stock units granted under our 1996 and

2001 Stock Incentive Plans

This reflects the weighted-average-exercise price of outstanding options only as the restricted stock awards and

restricted stock units do not have stated exercise prices

Includes shares available under our 1996 and 2001 Stock Incentive Plans and our 2001 Employee Stock Purchase

Plan

Other information required by this item is contained in the section entitled Ownership of Principal Stockholders

Directors and Management in our Proxy Statement and is incorporated herein by reference

Item 13 Certain Relationships and Related Transactions and Director Independence

Information required by this item is contained in the sections entitled Certain Relationships and Related

Transactions and Director Independence in our Proxy Statement and is incorporated herein by reference

Item 14 Principal Accounting Fees and Services

The information required by this item is contained in the section entitled Proposal Number 2Ratification of

Appointment of our Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm in our Proxy Statement and is incorporated herein by

reference

Part IV

Item 15 Exhibits and Financial Statement Schedules

Documents filed as part of this report

Financial Statements

Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

Consolidated Balance Sheets

Consolidated Statements of Operations

Consolidated Statements of Stockholders Equity and Comprehensive Income Loss

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows and

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Financial Statement Schedules

Schedules have been omitted because they are not applicable or are not required or the information

required to be set forth in those schedules is included in the financial statements or related notes

Exhibits

The Index to Exhibits attached to this report is incorporated by reference herein
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15d of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 the Registrant has duly

caused this Report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned thereunto duly authorized

LAWSON SOFTWARE INC

By Is STEFAN SCHULZ

Stefan Schulz

Senior Vice President and

Chief Financial Officer

principalfinancial and accounting officer

Dated July 15 2010

POWER OF ATTORNEY

KNOW ALL PERSONS BY THESE PRESENTS that each person whose signature appears below hereby

constitutes and appoints Harry Debes and Stefan Schulz and each of them his true and lawful attorney-in-fact and agents

with full powers of substitution and resubstitution for him and in his name place and stead in any and all capacities to sign

any and all amendments to this Form 10-K and to file the same with exhibits thereto and other documents in connection

therewith with the Securities and Exchange Commission and hereby grants to such attorneys-in-fact and agents full power

and authority to do and perform each and every act and thing requisite or necessary to be done as fully to all intents and

purposes as he might or could do in person hereby ratifying and confirming all that said attorneys-in-fact and agents or his

substitute or substitutes may lawfully do or cause to be done by virtue hereof

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Act of 1934 the following persons in the capacities and on the dates

indicated have signed this Annual Report on Form 10-K

Signature Title Date

Is RICHARD LAWSON Director Co-Chairman July 15 2010

Richard Lawson

Is ROMESH WADHWANI Director Co-Chairman July 15 2010

Romesh Wadhwani

/s HARRY DEBEs President and Chief Executive Officer and July 15 2010
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

To the Board of Directors and Stockholders of Lawson Software Inc

In our opinion the accompanying consolidated balance sheets and the related consolidated statements of operations

stockholders equity and comprehensive income loss and cash flows present fairly in all material respects the financial

position of Lawson Software Inc and its subsidiaries at May 31 2010 and 2009 and the results of their operations and their

cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended May 31 2010 in conformity with accounting principles generally

accepted in the United States of America Also in our opinion the Company maintained in all material respects effective

internal control over financial reporting as of May 31 2010 based on criteria established in Internal ControlIntegrated

Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission COSO The Companys

management is responsible for these financial statements for maintaining effective internal control over financial reporting

and for its assessment of the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting included in Managements Report on

Internal Controls and Procedures appearing under Item 9A Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial

statements and on the Companys internal control over financial reporting based on our integrated audits We conducted our

audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board United States Those standards

require that we plan and perform the audits to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of

material misstatement and whether effective internal control over financial reporting was maintained in all material respects

Our audits of the financial statements included examining on test basis evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in

the financial statements assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management and

evaluating the overall financial statement presentation Our audit of internal control over financial reporting included

obtaining an understanding of internal control over financial reporting assessing the risk that material weakness exists and

testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk Our audits also

included performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances We believe that our audits

provide reasonable basis for our opinions

As discussed in Note effective June 2009 the Company changed the manner in which it accounts for business

combinations and for convertible debt instruments with conversion and other options

companys internal control over financial reporting is process designed to provide reasonable assurance

regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance

with generally accepted accounting principles companys internal control over financial reporting includes those policies

and procedures that pertain to the maintenance of records that in reasonable detail accurately and fairly reflect the

transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company ii provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as

necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles and that

receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and

directors of the company and iii provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized

acquisition use or disposition of the companys assets that could have material effect on the financial statements

Because of its inherent limitations internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements

Also projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become

inadequate because of changes in conditions or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may

deteriorate

Is PRIcEwATERH0UsEC0OPERS LLP

Minneapolis Minnesota

July 15 2010
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LAWSON SOFTWARE INC

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

in thousands except per share data

May 31 May 31

2010 2009

as adjusted

ASSETS

Current assets

Cash and cash equivalents $375917 $414815

Restricted cashcurrent 654 9208

Trade accounts receivable net 117976 152666

Income taxes receivable 4664 4242

Deferred income taxescurrent 18957 18909

Prepaid expenses and other current assets 51945 52255

Total current assets 570113 652095

Restricted cashnon-current 10070 1786

Property and equipment net 54671 55641

Goodwill 525576 470274

Other intangible assets net 159665 91701

Deferred income taxesnon-current 38144 39835

Otherassets1 13805 13149

Total assets $1372044 $1324481

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS EQUITY
Current liabilities

Long-term debtcurrent $2646 $4591

Accounts payable 12085 14018

Accrued compensation and benefits 76102 73976

Income taxes payablel 2271 4512

Deferred income taxescurrent 5605 5652

Deferred revenuecurrent 319797 279041

Other current liabilities 36573 56308

Total current liabilities 455079 438098

Long-term debtn on-current 224143 217333

Deferred income taxesnon-current 42834 16827

Deferred revenuenon-current 8363 13482

Other long-term liabilities 16456 14781

Total liabilities 746875 700521

Commitments and contingencies Note 13

Stockholders equity

Preferred stock $0.01 par value 42562 shares authorized no shares issued or outstanding

Common stock $0.01 par value 750000 shares authorized 202919 and 201808 shares issued

respectively 162045 and 161476 shares outstanding at May 31 2010 and May 31 2009

respectively 2029 2018

Additional paid-in capital1 887349 870722

Treasury stock at cost 40874 and 40332 shares at May 31 2010 and May 31 2009 respectively 326925 324651
Retained carningsl 53742 40718

Accumulated other comprehensive income 8974 35153

Total stockholders equity 625169 623960

Total liabilities and stockholders equity $1372044 $1324481

Adjusted to reflect adoption of the FASB guidance on accounting for convertible debt securities Note

The accompanying Notes are an integral part of the Consolidated Financial Statements
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LAWSON SOFTWARE INC

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

in thousands except per share data

Years Ended May 31

2010 2009 2008

as adjusted as adjusted

Revenues

License fees $124126 $109683 $132156

Maintenance services 352986 350202 336779

Software revenues 477112 459885 468935

Consulting 259296 297443 382991

Total revenues 736408 757328 851926

Cost of revenues

Cost of license fees 23987 24361 28782

Cost of maintenance services 68233 64533 65885

Cost of software revenues 92220 88894 94667

Cost of consulting 228874 269738 318253

Total cost of revenues 321094 358632 412920

Gross profit 415314 398696 439006

Operating expenses

Research and development 90268 82377 85374

Sales and marketing 162245 162975 189336

General and administrative 84306 79765 100259

Restructuring Note 13154 19954 731
Amortization of acquired intangibles 9472 8892 13690

Total operating expenses 359445 353963 387928

Operating income 55869 44733 51078

Other income expense net

Interest income 917 6282 20086

Interest expense1 16238 15625 15976

Impairment and other income expense net 88 532 17455

Total other income expense net 15233 8811 13345

Income before income taxes 40636 35922 37733

Provision for income taxes1 27612 21731 28411

Net income $13024 $14191 $9322

Net income per share

Basic $0.08 $0.09 $0.05

Diluted $0.08 $0.08 $0.05

Weighted average common shares outstanding

Basic 161442 164011 177283

Diluted 165251 166393 180580

Adjusted to reflect adoption of the FASB guidance on accounting for convertible debt securities Note

The accompanying Notes are an integral part of the Consolidated Financial Statements
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LAWSON SOFTWARE INC

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

in thousands

Cash flows from operating activities

Net income

Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by operating activities

Depreciation and amortization

Amortization of debt issuance costs

Amortization of debt discount

Deferred income taxes

Provision for doubtful accounts

Warranty provision

Impainuent on investments

Net gain loss on disposal of assets

Excess tax benefits from stock transactions

Stock-based compensation expense

Amortization of discounts premiums on marketable securities

Changes in operating assets and liabilities net of acquisitions

Trade accounts receivable

Prepaid expenses and other assets

Accounts payable

Accrued expenses and other liabilities

Income taxes payable/receivablel

Deferred revenue

Net cash provided by operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities

Cash paid for acquisitions net of cash acquired

Change in restricted cash

Purchases of marketable securities and investments

Proceeds from maturities and sales of marketable securities and investments

Purchases of property and equipment

Net cash provided by used in investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities

Principal payments on long-term debt

Payments on capital lease obligations

Cash proceeds from exercise of stock options

Excess tax benefit from stock transactions

Cash proceeds from employee stock purchase plan

Repurchase of common stock from related
parties

Repurchase of common stockother

Net cash used in financing activities

Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents

Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the period

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the period

Supplemental cash flow disclosures

Interest paid

Income taxes paid

43295

1034

7462

5776

1110

6398

18414

311
2128

6743

92

49077 25843 6432
1604 7351 19498

3724 7660 73

19937 6731 33594

354 2906 9911

26134 21710 34156

153039 71288 81639

160000 20253

230 8105 4660

205095

50657 216393

18991 29333 22992

178757 13219 27287

1462 1747 2267
2257 1043 1379

3438 2531 6910

850 648 2128

2428 2698 2990

8875 36800

7423 94129 68829

4426 99917 97247

8754 4896 4053

38898 20306 38842

414815 435121 473963

$375917 $414815 $435121

$6723 $6637 $6814

$20231 $22087 $15241

Adjusted to reflect adoption of the FASB guidance on accounting for convertible debt securities Note

The accompanying Notes are an integral part of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Years Ended May 31

2010 2009 2008

as adjusted as adjusted

$9322$13024

46684

1040

8486

7516

1312

4877

1122

850
17028

$14191

39647

1022

7948

6604
1489

6959

648
8519
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LAWSON SOFTWARE INC

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Nature of Business and Basis of Presentation

Lawson Software is global provider of enterprise software services and support targeting customers in specific

industries including healthcare service industries manufacturing distribution equipment service management and rental

public sector U.S food beverage and fashion as well as the horizontal market for our human capital management

product line Lawson serves customers in three geographic regions the Americas Europe Middle East and Africa EMEA
and Asia-Pacific including Australia and New Zealand APAC We offer broad range of software applications and

industry-specific solutions that we believe help our customers improve their business processes and reduce costs resulting in

better business or operational performance Lawson solutions help automate and integrate business processes and promote

collaboration among our customers and their partners suppliers and employees Through our consulting services we help our

customers implement learn to use upgrade and optimize their Lawson applications Through our support services we

provide ongoing maintenance and assistance to our customers

Basis of Presentation

Our Consolidated Financial Statements are prepared in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in

the U.S U.S GAAP and include the accounts of Lawson Software Inc our branches and our wholly-owned and

majority-owned subsidiaries operating in the Americas EMEA and APAC All significant intercompany accounts and

transactions have been eliminated Our subsidiaries that are not majority-owned are accounted for under the equity method

The accompanying Consolidated Financial Statements reflect all adjustments in the opinion of management necessary to

fairly state our consolidated financial position results of operations and cash flows for the periods presented These

adjustments consist of normal recurring items other than the out-of-period adjustments described below under Fiscal 2010

Results of Operations and Fiscal 2009 Results of Operations The accompanying Consolidated Financial Statements for all

fiscal year 2009 and 2008 periods also include certain adjustments related to the adoption of an accounting pronouncement

that we were required to adopt retrospectively as described in Note Summafy of Significant Accounting Policies

Adoption of New Accounting Pronouncements

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with U.S GAAP requires us to make estimates and

assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities as of the date of our financial statements the reported

amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting periods presented as well as our disclosures of contingent assets and

liabilities On an on-going basis we evaluate our estimates and assumptions including those related to revenue recognition

allowance for doubtful accounts and sales returns fair value of investments fair value of stock-based compensation fair

value of acquired intangible assets and goodwill useful lives of intangible assets and property and equipment income taxes

restructuring obligations contingencies and litigation among others We base our estimates and assumptions on our

historical experience and various other pieces of information available to us when these estimates and assumptions are made

We believe that these estimates and assumptions are reasonable under the circumstances and form the basis for our making

judgments about the carrying values of our assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources Actual

results and outcomes could differ from our estimates

Business Segments

During fiscal 2009 and prior years we viewed our operations and managed our business as one reportable segment

the development and marketing of computer software and related services including consulting maintenance and customer

support Beginning in the first quarter of fiscal 2010 we reorganized our operations to provide greater focus on and better

serve our targeted vertical markets With this strategic organizational change including workforce realignment we

determined that we have three reportable segments that align with our three industries groups S3 Strategic Industries M3

Strategic Industries and General Industries See Note 14 Segment and Geographic Information for applicable reportable

segment disclosures
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Fiscal Year

Our fiscal year is from June through May 31 Unless otherwise stated references to the years 2010 2009 and 2008

relate to the fiscal years ended May 31 2010 2009 and 2008 respectively References to future years also relate to our fiscal

years ending May 31

Fiscal 2010 Results of Operations

Our results for fiscal 2010 include reductions to net income of approximately $0.8 million primarily as result of

$1.7 million of additional income tax provision recorded in the first quarter of fiscal 2010 that should have been recorded as

reduction of net income in the fourth quarter of 2009 An additional out-of-period adjustment was recorded in the first quarter

of fiscal 2010 that increased pre-tax operating income by $0.9 million related to the reversal of services loss reserve that

should have been reversed in the first quarter of fiscal 2008 We have determined that the impact of these out-of-period

adjustments recorded in the first quarter of fiscal 2010 were immaterial to our results of operations in all applicable prior

interim and annual periods and to our first quarter and our results of operations for fiscal 2010

Fiscal 2009 Results of Operations

Our results for fiscal 2009 include red ictions to net income of approximately $2.3 million primarily as result of

$1.9 million of under accruals of sales incentive compensation recorded in the first quarter of fiscal 2009 that should have

been recorded as reduction of net income in the fourth quarter of fiscal 2008 These accruals primarily related to sales

incentive compensation in EMEA The fourth fiscal 2008 under accrual was primarily due to the fact that the previous

accrual methodology utilized in EMEA did not sufficiently provide for overachievement of sales quotas and related

higher commission rates that were achieved in EMEA in fiscal 2008 when license contracting targets were greatly exceeded

by various sales personnel and sales incentives payable to sales management employees We have taken actions such as

redesigning the sales incentive accrual process and enhancing monitoring controls to mitigate the potential for replicating

this matter Additional out-of-period adjustments were recorded in the second quarter of fiscal 2009 that increased pre-tax

operating expenses by $0.4 million primarily related to deferred third-party costs included in costs of license fees and in the

fourth quarter of fiscal 2009 that resulted in an increase in service revenues for the fiscal year of $0.3 million We have

determined that the impact of the sales incentive compensation under accruals and the out-of-period adjustments recorded in

the second and fourth quarters were immaterial to our fiscal 2009 results of operations

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Adoption of New Accounting Pronouncement

On September 2009 we adopted the Financial Accounting Standards Board FASB guidance on accounting

standards codification and hierarchy of generally accepted accounting principles This guidance was issued in June 2009 and

established the FASB Accounting Standards Codification the ASC as the source for authoritative U.S GAAP The ASC

supersedes all existing non-SEC accounting and reporting standards under U.S GAAP for nongovernmental entities It is not

intended to nor does it change existing U.S GAAP Any additions/revisions to U.S GAAP will be incorporated into the ASC

through Accounting Standards Updates ASUs Our adoption of the ASC did not have any impact on our financial position

results of operations or cash flows

On June 2009 we adopted the FASB guidance related to accounting for convertible debt instruments with

conversion and other options which impacts the accounting treatment for convertible debt instruments that allow for either

mandatory or optional cash settlements This guidance issued in May 2008 impacts the accounting associated with our

$240.0 million senior convertible notes See Ncte Long-Term Debt and Credit Facilities for additional information

regarding our senior convertible notes Under this guidance we are required to recognize additional non-cash interest

expense
based on the market rate for similar debt instruments that do not contain comparable conversion feature

Furthermore the guidance requires retrospective adjustment for recognition of interest expense in prior periods

Accordingly we have made certain adjustments to the presentation of our 2009 and 2008 Consolidated Financial Statements

The adoption of the guidance on accounting for convertible debt instruments that may be settled in cash upon

conversion required us to allocate the $240.0 million proceeds received from the issuance of our senior convertible notes

between the applicable debt and equity components Accordingly we have allocated $197.7 million of the proceeds to the

debt component of our senior convertible notes and $25.2 million net of deferred taxes of $15.8 million and debt issuance

costs of $1.3 million to the equity conversion feature The debt component allocation was based on the estimated fair value

of similar debt instruments without conversiol feature as determined by using discount rate of 6.77% which represents
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our estimated borrowing rate for such debt as of the date of our senior convertible notes issuance The difference between

the cash proceeds associated with our senior convertible notes and the debt component was recorded as debt discount with

corresponding offset to additional paid-in-capital net of applicable deferred taxes and allocated debt issuance costs

representing the equity conversion feature The debt discount that we recorded is being amortized over five years which is

the expected term of our senior convertible notes April 23 2007 through April 15 2012 using the effective interest method

resulting in additional non-cash interest expense The debt issuance costs have been allocated to the respective debt

component and the equity conversion feature resulting in reclassification of $1.3 million of debt issuance costs to additional

paid-in-capital as of June 2009 The debt issuance costs allocated to the debt component are also being amortized to

interest expense over the expected term of our senior convertible notes As of May 31 2010 the remaining period over which

the debt discount and debt issuance costs will be amortized is approximately 1.8 years

The carrying amounts of our senior convertible notes included in our Consolidated Balance Sheets were as follows

in thousands

Principal balance

Debt discount

Senior convertible notes net

May3I2010 May3I2009

as adjusted

$240000 $240000

17535 26022

$222465 $213978

thousands

We have recorded the following interest expense related to our senior convertible notes in the periods presented in

Years Ended May 31

2010 2009

as adjusted

Coupon rate of interest 2.5%cash interest $6000 $6000

Debt discount amortization 8486 7948

Debt issuance cost amortization 1040 1040

Net interest expense $15526 $14988

2008

as adjusted

$6000

7386

1040

$14426

The following tables reflect the impact that adoption of the FASB guidance on accounting for convertible debt

securities had on our Consolidated Financial Statements in thousands except per share amounts for the periods presented

Consolidated Balance Sheet as of May 31 2009

Deferred income taxesnon-current asset

Other assets

Income taxes payable

Long-term debtnon-current

Additional paid-in capital

Retained earnings

Consolidated Statement of Operations for fiscal 2009

Interest expense

Provision from income taxes

Net income

Basic net income loss per share

Diluted net income loss per
share

Convertible

As Originally Debt

Reported Adjustments As Adjusted

$49565 $9730 $39835

13903 754 13149

4513 4512

243355 26022 217333

845522 25200 870722

50379 9661 40718

Convertible

As Originally Debt

Reported Adjustments As Adjusted

$7939 $7686 $15625

24691 2960 21731

18917 4726 14191

$0.12 $0.03 $0.09

$0.11 $0.03 $0.08
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Consolidated Statement of Operations for fiscal 2008

Interest expense

Provision from income taxes

Net income loss

Basic net income loss per share

Diluted net income loss per share

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows for fiscal 2009

Net income loss

Amortization of debt issuance costs

Amortization of debt discount

Deferred income taxes

Income taxes payable/receivable

Net cash used in operating activities

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows for fiscal 2008

Net income loss

Amortization of debt issuance costs

Amortization of debt discount

Deferred income taxes

Net cash used in operating activities

Convertible

As Originally Debt

Reported Adjustments As Adjusted

$8844 $7132 $15976

31158 2747 28411

13707 4385 9322

$0.08 $0.03 $0.05

$0.08 $0.03 $0.05

Convertible

As Originally Debt

Reported Adjustments As Adjusted

$18917 $4726 $14191

1284 262 1022

7948 7948

2959 6604
2906

71288

Convertible

As Originally Debt

Reported Adjustments As Adjusted

$13707 $4385 $9322

1288 254 1034

7462 7462

8599 2823 5776

81639 81639

Effective June 2008 we adopted the FASB guidance related to fair value measurements This guidance was

issued in September 2006 and establishes common definition for fair value to be applied to U.S GAAP guidance requiring

use of fair value establishes framework for measuring fair value and expands disclosure about such fair value

measurements In February 2008 the FASB issued additional guidance which removed certain leasing transactions from the

scope of these provisions and partially deferred the effective date of this guidance for one year for certain nonfinancial assets

and nonfinancial liabilities that are recognized at fair value on nonrecurring basis at least annually Our June 2008

adoption date for this guidance was effective for financial assets and liabilities and nonfinancial assets and liabilities that are

recognized at fair value on recurring basis On June 2009 we adopted the fair value guidance for our non-financial assets

and liabilities that are recognized at fair value on nonrecurring basis Our adoption of this guidance did not have

significant impact on our financial position results of operations or cash flows See Fair Value Measurements for applicable

information

Effective June 2009 we adopted the FASB guidance related to business combinations which significantly

changed how business acquisitions are accounted for and impacts financial statements both on the acquisition date and in

subsequent periods This guidance was issued in December 2007 and establishes principles and requirements for the

recognition and measurement of identifiable assets acquired the liabilities assumed contractual contingencies and

contingent consideration at their fair value on the acquisition date Some of the changes such as the accounting for

contingent consideration and exclusion of transaction costs from acquisition accounting may introduce more volatility into

earnings Our accounting for business combinations changed on prospective basis beginning with business combinations for

which the acquisition date was after our adoption date of June 2009 including our January 11 2010 acquisition of

Healthvision See Note Business Combinations In addition any restructuring liabilities established in connection with

integration of an acquired entity will have negative impact on our future operating results as they will not be accounted for

as part of the business combination purchase price but will be expensed when accrued In relation to previous acquisitions

this guidance requires any release of existing income tax valuation allowances initially established through purchase

accounting to be included in our earnings rather than as an adjustment to goodwill This would have the effect of reducing

our income tax provision in future periods when such valuation allowances are reversed

3645
2907

71288
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Effective June 2009 we adopted the provisions related to accounting for assets acquired and liabilities assumed in

business combination that arise from contingencies The guidance requires that assets and liabilities of contractual and

noncontractual contingencies be recognized at fair value if the fair value can be reasonably determined during the

measurement period and provides guidance on how to make that determination This guidance applies prospectively to

business combinations for which the acquisition date is after our adoption date of June 2009 Our adoption of this guidance

did not have material impact on our financial position results of operations or cash flows

Effective June 2009 we adopted the FASB guidance related to non-controlling interests in consolidated financial

statements This guidance issued in December 2007 changed the accounting and reporting for minority interests which are

to be recharacterized as non-controlling interests and classified as separate component of equity rather than as liability As

of June 2009 there were no non-controlling interests relating to any of our subsidiaries Accordingly our adoption of this

guidance did not have material impact on our financial position results of operations or cash flows

Effective June 2009 we adopted the FASB guidance related to interim disclosures about fair value of financial

instruments This guidance issued in April 2009 enhances consistency in financial reporting by requiring disclosures about

the fair value of financial instruments in interim reporting periods as well as in annual financial statements Our adoption of

this guidance did not have material impact on our financial position results of operations or cash flows See Fair Value ol

Financial Instruments below for applicable disclosures

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

Our financial instruments consist primarily of cash equivalents marketable securities trade accounts receivable and

accounts payable and foreign currency forward contracts for which the current carrying amounts approximate fair values

primarily due to their short periods to maturity Our long-term debt is carried at its face value net of applicable debt discount

recorded upon adoption of the FASB guidance on accounting for convertible debt securities as discussed above The

estimated fair value of our 2.5% senior convertible notes including current maturities was $240.0 million as of May 31

2010 based on quoted market prices The remainder of our long-term debt has fair values that are not materially different

from their aggregate carrying values of $4.3 million

Cash Equivalents

All highly liquid investments with an original maturity of three months or less are considered to be cash equivalents

Our cash equivalents consist primarily of funds held in money market instruments The carrying amount of cash equivalents

approximates their fair value due to the short maturity of these instruments

Accounts Receivable and Allowance for Doubtful Accounts

Accounts receivable are initially recorded at fair value upon the sale of software licenses and services to our

customers We maintain an allowance for doubtful accounts at an amount we estimate to be sufficient to provide adequate

protection against losses resulting from extending credit to our customers In judging the adequacy of the allowance for

doubtful accounts we consider multiple factors including historical bad debt experience the general economic environment

the need for specific customer reserves and the aging of our receivables This provision is included in operating expenses as

general and administrative expense considerable amount ofjudgment is required in assessing these factors If the factors

utilized in determining the allowance do not reflect future performance change in the allowance would be necessary in the

period such determination is made which would affect future results of operations

Marketable Securities and Other Investments

We account for our investments in marketable securities and other investments in accordance with the provisions of

the FASB guidance on investments in debt and equity securities which addresses the accounting and reporting for

investments in fixed maturity securities and for equity securities with readily determinable fair values We determine the

appropriate classification of our investments in debt securities at the time of purchase and reevaluate such designation as of

each balance sheet date During fiscal 2008 all marketable securities we held were classified as available-for-sale and our

entire auction rate securities portfolio was classified as short-term investments Available-for-sale securities are carried at fair

value as determined by market prices/quotes with unrealized gains and losses net of tax reported as separate component of

stockholders equity Our investments in auction rate securities were carried at estimated fair value with the related

impairment recorded in 2008 classified as other-than-temporary and recognized in our Consolidated Statements of

Operations We liquidated all of our auction rate securities during 2009 as discussed below and held no marketable securities

as of May 31 2009 The cost basis of securities sold is determined using the specific identification method Interest and

dividends on securities classified as available-for-sale are included in interest income
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We review potential impairment of our investments in accordance with the FASB guidance on investments in debt

and equity securities to determine the classification of any impairment as temporary or other-than-temporary temporary

impairment charge results in an unrealized loss being recorded in the other comprehensive income component of

stockholders equity Such an unrealized loss does not reduce net income for the applicable accounting period because the

loss is viewed as temporary Losses are recognized in our statement of operations when decline in fair value is determined

to be other-than-temporary We review our investments on an ongoing basis for indications of possible impairment and

proper classification of any impairment once identified Determination of whether the impairment is temporary or other-than-

temporary requires significant judgment The primary factors we consider in classifying the impairment include the extent

and time the fair value of each investment has been below cost the expected holding or recovery period for each investment

and our intent and ability to hold each investment until recovery

On July 2008 we sold our auction rate securities portfolio for $45.2 million in cash the carrying value as of

May 31 2008 In light of this transaction the $2.9 million of impairment losses previously recorded in the second and third

quarters of fiscal 2008 and originally determined to be temporary and reflected in separate component of stockholders

equity were reclassified as other-than-temporary and included in our results of operations for fiscal 2008 As result we

recorded an impairment charge of approximately $18.4 million in fiscal 2008 which is included in other income expense
net in the accompanying Consolidated Statements of Operations

Property and Equipment

Property and equipment includes equipment office furniture and automobiles and is stated at cost less accumulated

depreciation Depreciation is computed using the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the assets which

generally range from three to seven years Property and equipment also includes leasehold improvements which are stated at

cost less accumulated amortization Amortization is computed over the shorter of the economic life or the term of the

underlying facility lease which generally ranges from three to 16 years

In addition we capitalize certain costs related to our development of internal use software in accordance with

applicable FASB guidance Capitalized costs are amortized over the softwares estimated useful life which is generally five

years During fiscal 2010 and 2009 we capitalized approximately $5.5 million and $12.3 million of software development

costs related to programs to be used solely to meet our internal needs In addition during fiscal 2010 we wrote-off

$1.1 million in previously capitalized costs related to internally developed front-end sales cycle tools which we no longer

intend to use The resulting charge is included in general and administrative expense in the accompanying Consolidated

Statements of Operations

Depreciation and amortization expense related to property plant and equipment including internal use software

was $21.8 million $17.1 million and $13.9 million for fiscal 2010 2009 and 2008 respectively

Lease Obligations

We recognize lease obligations with scheduled rent increases over the terms of the leases on straight-line basis in

accordance with FASB guidance related to operating leases Accordingly the total amount of base rentals over the term of

our leases is charged to expense using straight-line method with the amount of rental expense in excess of lease payments

recorded as deferred rent liability in our Consolidated Balance Sheets As of May 31 2010 and 2009 we had deferred rent

liabilities of $2.9 million and $2.8 million respectively which are classified in other long-term liabilities We also recognize

capital lease obligations and record the underlying assets and liabilities in our Consolidated Balance Sheets See Note 13

Commitments and Contingencies

Revenue Recognition

Revenue recognition rules for software businesses are very complex We follow specific and detailed guidelines in

determining the proper amount of revenue to be recorded However certain judgments affect the application of our revenue

recognition policy Revenue results are difficult to predict and any shortfall in revenue or delay in recognizing revenue could

cause our operating results to vary significantly from year to year

The significant judgments for revenue recognition typically involve determining whether collectability can be

considered probable and whether fees are fixed or determinable In addition our transactions often consist of multiple

element arrangements which typically include license fees maintenance and support fees and consulting service fees These

multiple element arrangements must be analyzed to determine the relative fair value of each element the amount of revenue

to be recognized upon shipment if any and the period and conditions under which deferred revenue should be recognized
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We recognize revenue in accordance with the provisions of the FASB guidance on software revenue recognition

We license software under non-cancellable license agreements and provide related consulting services including training and

implementation services as well as on-going customer support and maintenance

When our consulting training and implementation services are not considered essential to the functionality of our

software products are sold separately and also are available from number of third-party service providers our

revenues from these services are generally recorded separately from license fees and recognized as the services are

performed License fees within software arrangements including services that do not meet any one or combination of the

three criteria listed above are recognized in accordance with the applicable FASB guidance using contract accounting and

the percentage-of-completion methodology based on labor hours input Software arrangements which include certain fixed

fee service components are usually recognized as the services are performed while corresponding direct service costs to

provide these services are expensed as incurred

From time-to-time we enter into software arrangements that include software license maintenance and consulting

services which are considered essential to the functionality of the software In these instances we recognize revenue for the

three revenue streams under two units of accounting which are the software license bundled together with consulting

services and ii maintenance For purposes of presenting revenues we present applicable license fees maintenance and

consulting revenues in our Consolidated Statements of Operations using VSOE or if unavailable other objective evidence

of fair value for the undelivered elements and assign the remainder of the arrangement fee to the license

The amounts of revenue and related expenses reported in the Consolidated Financial Statements may vary due to the

amount ofjudgment required to address significant assumptions risks and uncertainties in applying the application of the

percentage-of-completion methodology Our specific revenue recognition policies are as follows

Software License FeesLicense fee revenues from end-users are recognized when the software product has

been shipped provided non-cancellable license agreement has been signed there are no uncertainties

surrounding product acceptance the fees are fixed or determinable and collection of the related receivable is

considered probable Provided the above criteria are met license fee revenues from resellers are recognized

when there is sell-through by reseller to an end-user sell-through is determined when we receive an order

form from reseller for specific end-user sale We do not generally offer rights of return acceptance clauses

or price protection to our customers In situations where software license contracts include rights of return or

acceptance clauses revenue is deferred until the clause expires Typically our software license fees are due

within 12-month period from the date of shipment If the fee due from the customer is not fixed or

determinable or includes payment terms greater than twelve months from shipment revenue is recognized as

payments become due and all other conditions for revenue recognition have been satisfied In software

arrangements that include rights to multiple delivered elements such as software products or specified upgrades

and undelivered elements such as support or services we allocate the total arrangement fee according to the fair

value of each element using VSOE VSOE of fair value is determined using the price charged when that

element is sold separately In software arrangements in which we have fair value of all undelivered elements but

not of delivered element we use the residual method to record revenue Under the residual method the fair

value of the undelivered elements is deferred and the remaining portion of the arrangement fee is allocated to

the delivered element and is recognized as revenue In software arrangements in which we do not have VSOE
of fair value of all undelivered elements revenue is deferred until fair value is determined or all elements for

which we do not have VSOE of fair value have been delivered

Maintenance and SupportRevenues from customer maintenance and support contracts are deferred and

recognized ratably over the term of the agreements Revenues for maintenance and support that are bundled

with license fees are deferred based on the VSOE of fair value of the bundled maintenance and support and

recognized over the term of the agreement VSOE of fair value is based on the renewal rate for continued

maintenance and support arrangements

Consulting ServicesRevenues from consulting services including training and implementation services are

recognized as services are provided to customers Revenues for consulting services that are bundled with license

fees are deferred based on the VSOE of fair value of the bundled services and recognized when the services are

performed VSOE of fair value is based on the price charged when training and consulting services are sold

separately Our subscriptions contracts are comprised of recurring software licenses related support and

applicable hosting Because these components work interdependently we consider them to be one accounting

element for which we defer recognition of the subscription fee upon contract execution and recognize it ratably

over the subscription period
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Deferred Debt Issuance Costs

Deferred debt issuance costs of $2.0 million and $3.0 million net of amortization are included in our Consolidated

Balance Sheets as of May 31 2010 and 2009 respectively and are reflected in other assets Deferred debt issuance costs are

being amortized using the straight-line method which approximates the effective interest method over the estimated

remaining maturity of the related convertible debt and are included in interest expense in our Consolidated Statements of

Operations

Sales Returns and Allowances

We do not generally provide contractual right of return However in the course of arriving at practical business

solutions to various warranty and other claims we have allowed sales returns and allowances We record provision against

revenue for estimated sales returns and allowances on license and consulting revenues in the same period the related revenues

are recorded or when current information indicates additional allowances are required These estimates are based on historical

experience determined by analysis of return activities specifically identified customers and other known factors If the

historical data we utilize does not reflect expected future performance change in the allowances would be recorded in the

period such determination is made affecting future results of operations

Following is roll forward of our product warranty reserve in thousands

Balance May 31 2007 $3745

Provision 6398

Write-offs 2465
Translation adjustment 242

Balance May 31 2008 7920

Provision 6959

Write-offs 6624
Translation adjustment 350

Balance May 31 2009 7905

Provision 4877

Write-offs 4137
Translation adjustment 151

Balance May 31 2010 $8494

Research and Development

Expenditures for software research and development are expensed as incurred These expenses
consist primarily of

salaries employee benefits related overhead costs and consulting fees associated with product development testing quality

assurance documentation enhancements and upgrades for existing customers under maintenance Such costs are required to

be expensed until the point that technological feasibility of the software is established We consider technological feasibility

to have occurred when all design coding and testing of the software product has been completed Our software research and

development costs primarily relate to our efforts during the period prior to technological feasibility and are charged to

operations as incurred To date under our process for developing software the time period between the establishment of

technological feasibility and completion of software development has been short and no significant development costs have

been incurred during that period Accordingly we have not capitalized any software research and development

Advertising Expense

We expense advertising costs as incurred Advertising expenses of$ll.0 million $13.0 million and $16.2 million

were charged to sales and marketing expenses during fiscal 2010 2009 and 2008 respectively

Income Taxes

Our provision for income taxes consists of provisions for federal state and foreign income taxes We operate in an

international environment with significant operations in various locations outside of the United States Accordingly our

consolidated income tax rate is composite rate reflecting our operating results in various locations and the applicable rates
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Significant judgment is required in determining our worldwide income tax provision In the ordinary course of

global business there are many transactions and calculations where the ultimate tax outcome is uncertain Ourjudgments

assumptions and estimates relative to the provision for income taxes take into account current tax laws our interpretation of

current tax laws and possible outcomes of current and future audits conducted by foreign and domestic tax authorities

Although we believe that our estimates are reasonable the final tax outcome of matters could be different from that which is

reflected in our historical income tax provision and accruals Such differences if identified in future periods could have

material effect on the amounts recorded in our Consolidated Financial Statements

In conjunction with preparing the global tax provision we must assess temporary differences resulting from the

different treatment of specific items for tax and financial reporting purposes These differences result in deferred tax assets

and liabilities which are included within our Consolidated Balance Sheets As part of this process we must also assess on

jurisdictional basis the likelihood that deferred tax assets will be realized from future taxable income and based on this

assessment establish valuation allowance if required The determination of our valuation allowance is based upon number

of assumptions judgments and estimates including historical operating results forecasted earnings and future taxable

income and the relative proportions of revenue and income before taxes in the various domestic and international

jurisdictions in which we operate To the extent we establish valuation allowance or change the valuation allowance in

period we reflect the change with corresponding increase or decrease to our tax provision

Under the provisions of the FASB guidance related to accounting for income taxes prior to fiscal 2010 reductions

to the valuation allowance related to Intentias deferred tax assets that existed as of the date of the acquisition of Intentia were

first credited against goodwill then to the other identifiable assets existing at the date of acquisition and then once these

assets have been reduced to zero credited to the income tax provision non-cash provision will be credited against

goodwill for the utilization of pre-acquisition net operating losses that had been fully reserved in purchase accounting With

our adoption of the FASB guidance related to business combinations effective June 2009 beginning in fiscal 2010 any

release of valuation allowances recorded through purchase accounting in relation to our acquisitions are included as

decrease in our income tax provision rather than as an adjustment to goodwill

We recognize accrued interest related to unrecognized tax benefits in tax expense Penalties if incurred are also

recognized as component of tax expense In addition the tax effect of discrete items is booked entirely in the quarter in

which the discrete event occurs

Concentrations of Credit Risks

Financial instruments that potentially subject us to concentrations of credit risk consist primarily of cash and cash

equivalents and trade accounts receivable Cash equivalents consist primarily of money market instruments and highly liquid

debt securities of corporations the U.S Government and its Agencies with original maturities of three months or less at the

date of purchase

We grant credit to customers in the ordinary course of business Concentrations of credit risk with respect to trade

accounts receivable are limited due to the large number of customers comprising our customer base and their dispersion

across different industries and geographic areas No single customer accounted for 10% or more of our revenues for fiscal

2010 2009 or 2008 or of trade accounts receivable at May 31 2010 or 2009

Contingent Liabilities

We may from time to time have unresolved regulatory legal tax and other matters See Note 13 Commitments

and Contingencies We provide for contingent liabilities in accordance with the applicable FASB guidance Pursuant to this

guidance loss contingency is charged to income when it is probable that an asset has been impaired or liability has been

incurred at the date of the financial statements and the amount of the loss can be reasonably estimated Disclosure in the notes

to the financial statements is required for loss contingencies that do not meet both those conditions if there is reasonable

possibility that loss may have been incurred Gain contingencies are not recorded until realized We expense all legal costs

incurred to resolve regulatory legal tax and other matters in the period incurred

Periodically we review the status of each significant matter to assess our potential financial exposure If potential

loss is considered probable and the amount can be reasonably estimated we reflect the estimated loss in our results of

operations Significant judgment is required to determine the probability that liability has been incurred and whether such

liability can be reasonably estimated Because of uncertainties related to these matters accruals are based on the best

information available to us at each reporting period Further estimates of this nature are highly subjective and the final

outcome of these matters could vary significantly from the amounts that have been included in the accompanying
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Consolidated Financial Statements As additional information becomes available we reassess the potential liability related to

any pending claims and litigation and may revise our estimates accordingly Such revisions in the estimates of the potential

liabilities could have material impact on our future results of operations financial position and cash flows

Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets

During fiscal 2009 we operated as one reportable segment The changes in the carrying amount of goodwill for

fiscal 2009 were as follows in thousands

Balance as of June 2008 $546578

Goodwill adjustments 81 18

Currency translation effect 68186
Balance as of May 31 2009 $470274

The $8.1 million of adjustments to goodwill recorded during fiscal 2009 include reduction of$l.6 million related

to our fiscal 2006 lease restructuring plan See Note Restructuring as well as $0.6 million reversal related to deferred

revenue initially recognized with our purchase of Intentia In addition we determined that portion of our foreign net

operating losses were not sustainable These NOLs related to pre-acquisition activity of Intentia Accordingly we recorded

reduction in the acquired deferred tax assets and corresponding increase in goodwill of approximately $1.9 million We also

recorded an offsetting adjustment to reverse certain valuation allowances related to acquired deferred tax assets which we

determined are now more likely than not to be realized which resulted in reduction in goodwill of approximately

$7.9 million See Note 12 Income Taxes

With the June 2009 change in our reporting structure the following table reflects changes in the carrying amount

of our goodwill by reportable segment for the fiscal year ended May 31 2010 was as follows in thousands

S3 Strategic M3 Strategic General Consolidated

industries industries Industries Total

Balance May 31 2009 $201885 $85505 $182884 $470274

Goodwill acquired 78211 78211

Goodwill adjustments 422 178 381 981
Currency translation effect 9796 3865 8267 21928

Balance May 31 2010 $269878 $81462 $174236 $525576

Goodwill acquired during fiscal 2010 totaled $78.2 million related to our acquisition of Healthvision See Note

Business Combinations

We recorded net adjustments of approximately $1.0 million to reduce goodwill during fiscal 2010 $0.6 million

related to correction of our lease restructuring accrual originally recorded when we acquired Intentia and $0.3 million

related to the correction of certain income tax assets and liabilities originally recorded when we acquired Intentia

In accordance with the FASB guidance related to goodwill and other intangible assets we are required to assess the

carrying amount of our goodwill for potential impairment annually or more frequently if events or change in circumstances

indicate that impairment may have occurred We conduct our annual impairment test in the fourth quarter of each fiscal year

Testing for goodwill impairment is two step process The first step screens for potential impairment and if there is

an indication of possible impairment the second step must be completed to measure the amount of impairment loss if any

The first step of the goodwill impairment test used to identify potential impairment compares the fair value of reporting unit

with the carrying value of its net assets In fiscal 2009 and prior years we had only one reporting unit and therefore we

compared our Companys fair value as estimated based on our market value at year end to the carrying value of our

consolidated net assets to complete the first step of this test If the fair value of the reporting unit had been less than the

carrying value of the reporting unit the second step of the goodwill impairment test would have been performed to measure

the amount of impairment loss we would be required to record if any The second step if required would compare the

implied fair value of Lawsons goodwill with the current carrying amount of our goodwill If the implied fair value of our

goodwill is less than the carrying value an impairment charge would be recorded as charge to our operations The results of

our annual assessment performed at the end of fiscal 2009 and 2008 did not indicate any impairment of our goodwill
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During the first quarter of fiscal 2010 with our strategic reorganization and workforce realignment we determined

that we now operate under three reportable segments S3 Strategic Industries M3 Strategic Industries and General Industries

See Note 14 Segment and Geographic Information for additional information regarding our reportable segments For

purposes
of our goodwill impairment testing we have determined that we have four reporting units S3 Strategic Industries

group M3 Strategic Industries group the services industries component of our General Industries group and the

manufacturing distribution component of our General Industries group Upon this change from one reporting unit to four

reporting units effective June 2009 we were required to allocate our goodwill to each reporting unit based upon
their

relative fair values and we were required to perform step one goodwill impairment test

For purposes of allocating our recorded goodwill to our new reporting units we estimated their fair values using

combination of an income approach discounted cash flow method and market approach market comparable method

Based on the results of the first step of our impairment test the fair value exceeded the carrying value of the net assets for all

of our reporting units as of June 2009 Based on our year-end assessment performed in the fourth quarter of fiscal 2010

the calculated fair values of our reporting units exceeded their carrying values by amounts between approximately

$23.0 million and $550.0 million or 40.0% to 185.0% of the reporting unit carrying values as of May 31 2010

Accordingly there was no impairment of our goodwill We have no accumulated impairment charges related to our goodwill

Acquired intangible assets subject to amortization were as follows in thousands

May 31 2010 May 31 2009

Gross Gross

Carrying Accumulated Carrying Accumulated Estimated

Amounts Amortization Net Amounts Amortization Net useful lives

Maintenance contracts $22940 $19343 $3597 $22940 $17511 $5429 Term

Technology 141646 59284 82362 96643 45596 51047 3-10 years

Client lists 10144 8870 1274 10323 7907 2416 4-10 years

Customer relationships 95866 27339 68527 53917 21308 32609 12-15 years

Trademarks 8945 5141 3804 5263 5263 years

Order backlog 5405 5405 5728 5728 year

Non-compete agreements 3494 3393 101 3568 3368 200
years

$288440 $128775 $159665 $198382 $106681 $91701

We amortize our intangible assets using underlying cash flow projections and accelerated and straight-line methods

which approximate the proportion of future cash flows estimated to be generated in each period over the estimated useful life

of the applicable asset The balances reflected in the above table as of May 31 2010 include the $95.5 million of intangible

assets acquired in our January 2010 acquisition of Healthvision and applicable accumulated amortization See Note

Business Combinations Amortization expense for intangible assets was $24.9 million $22.5 million and $29.4 million for

fiscal years 2010 2009 and 2008 respectively Net intangible assets decreased in fiscal 2010 by approximately $2.4 million

due to the effect of currency translation Amortization expense is reported as component of cost of revenues and as

amortization of acquired intangibles in our Consolidated Statements of Operations

The estimated future annual amortization expense for identified intangible assets is as follows

in thousands

2011 $29592

2012 25650

2013 22200

2014 18301

2015 21915

Thereafter 42007

$159665

Share-Based compensation

We account for share-based compensation in accordance with FASB guidance on share-based payments This

guidance requires us to estimate the fair value of our share-based payment awards on the date of grant using an option-pricing

model We use the Black-Scholes option-pricing model which requires the input of significant assumptions including an

estimate of the average period of time employees will retain stock options before exercising them the estimated volatility of

our common stock price over the expected term and the applicable risk-free interest rate The value of the portion of awards

that are ultimately expected to vest is recognized as expense over the requisite vesting periods in our Consolidated Statements

of Operations
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The fair value of restricted stock and restricted stock unit RSU awards together restricted stock awards is

estimated based on the grant date market value of our common stock For restricted stock awards vesting based on service

compensation expense
is recognized on straight-line basis over the related service period For restricted stock awards

vesting based on obtaining certain performance targets compensation expense is recognized over the related service period

based on managements assessment of the probability of meeting such targets In general applicable compensation expense is

recognized when we believe it is probable that the related performance targets will be met and no compensation expense is

recorded and any previously recognized expense reversed when achievement of the performance targets is not deemed

probable Compensation expense related to our Employee Stock Purchase Plan ESPP is based on the 15% discount

employees receive relative to the market value of our common stock at the end of the ESPPs quarterly offering periods and

is recognized in the applicable quarter

The amount of share-based compensation cost recognized during any given period is based on the value of the

portion of the awards that are ultimately expected to vest FASB guidance requires forfeitures to be estimated at the time of

grant and revised if necessary in subsequent periods if actual forfeitures differ significantly from the original estimates We
estimate our forfeiture rate based on historic experience of our share-based plans and any adjustment to the estimated

forfeiture rate results in cumulative adjustment in the period that the estimate is changed Ultimately the total compensation

expense recognized for any given share-based award over its vesting period will only be for those shares that actually vest

Changes in the Black-Scholes valuation assumptions and our estimated forfeiture rate can affect the estimate of fair

value of share-based compensation and the related expense recognized The assumptions used in estimating the fair value of

share-based payment awards and our estimated forfeiture rate represent managements best estimates which involve inherent

uncertainties and the application of managements judgment As result if factors change and different assumptions or

forfeiture rates are used our share-based compensation expense could be materially different in the future See Note

Share-Based Compensation and Stock Incentive Plans

Foreign Currency Translation

All assets and liabilities of our foreign branches and subsidiaries are translated from local currencies to U.S Dollars

at period-end exchange rates while revenues and expenses are translated at the average exchange rate during the applicable

period The functional currency for each of our foreign branches and subsidiaries is the respective local currency with the

exception of our shared service center located in Switzerland whose functional currency is the U.S Dollar Translation

adjustments arising from the translation of net assets located in countries outside of the U.S with functional currencies other

than the U.S Dollar are recorded as separate component of stockholders equity The amounts included in our Consolidated

Statements of Operations related to foreign currency transactions for fiscal 2010 2009 and 2008 were net gains of

$0.7 million net gains of $1 .0 million and net losses of $2.5 million respectively

Derivatives

We account for derivative instruments consisting of foreign currency forward contracts pursuant to the FASB

guidance on accounting for derivatives instruments and hedging activities This guidance requires us to measure derivative

instruments at fair value and record them in our balance sheet as either an asset or liability We do not use derivative

instruments for trading purposes In fiscal 2010 and prior years we have not designated these derivative contracts as hedge

transactions and have not used hedge accounting We manage foreign currency market risk using forward contracts to offset

the risk associated with the effects of certain foreign currency exposures primarily related to non-functional currency

intercompany loans and advances between our international subsidiaries as well as other balance sheet accounts particularly

accounts receivable accounts payable and certain accrual accounts Our foreign currency forward contracts are generally

short term in nature typically maturing within 90 days or less We revalue all contracts to their current market value at the

end of each reporting period and unrealized gains and losses are included in our results of operations for that period These

gains and losses largely offset gains and losses recorded from the revaluation of our non-functional currency balance sheet

exposures We expect this to mitigate some foreign currency transaction gains or losses in future periods Our net realized

gain or loss with respect to currency fluctuations will depend on the currency exchange rates and other factors in effect as the

contracts mature
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We record our foreign currency forward contracts on our Consolidated Balance Sheets as either prepaid expenses

and other current assets or other current liabilities depending on whether the net fair value of such contracts is net asset or

net liability respectively All gains and losses from foreign currency forward contracts have been classified as general and

administrative expense in our Consolidated Statements of Operations See Fair Value Measurements below for more detail

We have recorded the following net fair values of our foreign currency forward contracts and the related net realized and

unrealized gains and losses as of and for the periods indicated in thousands

Net Asset Net Liability

Prepaid expenses and

other current assets Other current liabilities

May3l2010 May3I2009 May3l2010 Mav3l2009

Fair values of derivatives not designated as hedging

instruments

Foreign currency forward contracts $6527 $547

Years Ended May 31

2010 2009

Gain loss recognized for derivatives not designated as

hedging instruments

Foreign currency forward contracts $8338 $8538

Fair Value Measurements

As previously discussed effective June 2008 we adopted the FASB guidance on financial assets and liabilities

and nonfinancial assets and liabilities that are recognized at fair value on recurring basis We adopted this guidance for non

financial asset and liabilities that are recognized at fair value on nonrecurring basis effective June 2009 This guidance

defines fair value establishes framework for measuring fair value and expands disclosures about fair value measurements

Fair value is defined as an exit price which represents the amount that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer

liability in an orderly transaction between market participants as of the measurement date As such fair value is

market-based measurement that should be determined based on assumptions that market participants would use in valuing an

asset or liability The above mentioned guidance also requires the use of valuation techniques to measure fair values that

maximize the use of observable inputs and minimize the use of unobservable inputs As basis for considering such

assumptions and inputs the guidance establishes fair value hierarchy which identifies and prioritizes three levels of inputs

to be used in measuring fair value

The three levels of the fair value hierarchy are as follows

Level Observable inputs such as quoted prices unadjusted in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

Level Inputs other than the quoted prices in active markets that are observable either directly or indirectly

including quoted prices for similar assets and liabilities in active markets quoted prices for identical or

similar assets and liabilities in markets that are not active or other inputs that are observable or can be

corroborated by observable market data

Level Unobservable inputs that are supported by little or no market data and require the reporting entity to develop

its own assumptions

We measure certain financial assets and liabilities at fair value including our cash equivalents and foreign currency

forward contracts The following table summarizes the fair value of our financial assets and liabilities that were accounted for

at fair value on recurring basis as of May 31 2010 and 2009 in thousands

Fiscal 2010

Fair Value Measurements Using Fair Value at

Inputs Considered as May 31

Level Level Level 2010

Assets

Cash equivalents $198445 $198445

Foreign currency forward contracts
__________

6974 6974

Total $205419 $205419

Liabilities

Foreign currency forward contracts $447 $447

Total $447 $447
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Fiscal 2009

Fair Value Measurements Using Fair Value at

Inputs Considered as May 31

Level Level Level 2009

Assets

Cash equivalents $100051 $122054 $222105

Foreign currency forward contracts
_________

64 64

Total $100051 $122118 $222169

Liabilities

Foreign currency forward contracts $593 $593

Total $593 $593

Cash equivalents primarily funds held in money market instruments are reported at their current carrying value

which approximates fair value due to the short-term nature of these instruments and are included in cash and cash equivalents

in our Consolidated Balance Sheets Our investments in treasuries are valued using quoted market prices and are included in

Level inputs Our money market instruments are valued primarily using observable inputs other than quoted market prices

and are included in Level inputs

Foreign currency forward contracts are valued based on observable market spot and forward rates as of our reporting

date and are included in Level inputs in the above table All contracts are recorded at fair value and marked-to-market

values at the end of each reporting period and realized and unrealized gains and losses are included in general and

administrative expenses in our Consolidated Statements of Operations

We have had no transfers of assets/liabilities into or out of Levels and during fiscal 2010

In addition to the financial assets and liabilities included in the above table certain of our nonfinancial assets and

liabilities are to be measured at fair value on nonrecurring basis in accordance with applicable U.S GAAP This includes

items such as nonfinancial assets and liabilities initially measured at fair value in business combination but not measured at

fair value in subsequent periods and nonfinancial long-lived asset groups measured at fair value for an impairment

assessment In general nonfinancial assets including goodwill other intangible assets and property and equipment are

measured at fair value when there is an indication of impairment and are recorded at fair value only when any impairment is

recognized As of May 31 2010 we had not recorded any impairment related to such assets In fiscal 2010 we wrote-off

$1 .1 million in previously capitalized costs related to internally developed software We had no other material nonfinancial

assets or liabilities requiring adjustments or write-downs to their current fair value

We did not elect to apply the FASB guidance related to the fair value option for financial assets and liabilities to any

of our currently eligible financial assets or liabilities As of May 31 2010 our material financial assets and liabilities not

carried at fair value include our trade accounts receivable and accounts payable which are reported at their current carrying

values which we believe approximate their fair values

Comprehensive Income Loss

We report comprehensive income loss in accordance with the provisions of FASB guidance related to

comprehensive income In addition to net income loss comprehensive income loss includes other items such as foreign

currency translation adjustments unrealized actuarial gains and losses related to our defined benefit pension plans and

unrealized gains and losses on certain marketable securities and investments We report accumulated other comprehensive

income as separate line item in the stockholders equity section of our Consolidated Balance Sheets and the components are

detailed in our Consolidated Statements of Stockholders Equity as comprehensive income loss

The following table summarizes the components of comprehensive income loss in thousands

Years Ended May 31

2010 2009 2008

as adjusted as adjusted

Net income1 $13024 $14191 $9322

Other comprehensive income loss

Unrealized gain loss on investments2 18 25

Pension-unrealized actuarial gain loss 510 2934

Foreign currency translation adjustment 25674 65307 61573

Total other comprehensive income loss 26179 62391 61598

Comprehensive income loss $13155 $48200 $70920

73



Adjusted to reflect adoption of the FASB guidance on accounting for convertible debt securities

thousands

The unrealized gain loss on investments in the above table are net of taxes tax benefit of $3 $11
and $16 for fiscal 2010 2009 and 2008 respectively

Total accumulated other comprehensive income and its components for the periods presented were as follows in

Per Share Data

Foreign currency translation adjustment

Pension-unrealized actuarial gain

Unrealized gain loss on investments

Accumulated other comprehensive income

May 31 2010 May 31 2009

$6550 $32224

2424 2934

_________
$8974 $35153

We compute net income per share in accordance with the FASB guidance on earnings per share Under this

guidance basic net income per share is computed by dividing net income by the weighted average number of common shares

outstanding during the applicable period Diluted net income per share is computed by dividing net income by the sum of the

weighted average number of common shares outstanding plus the weighted average of dilutive shares outstanding during the

period In addition in periods of net loss all potentially dilutive common shares are excluded from our computation of

diluted weighted average shares outstanding as their inclusion would have an anti-dilutive effect on net loss per
share We

use the treasury stock method to calculate the weighted average dilutive shares related to in-the-money stock options and

warrants unvested restricted stock awards and shares issuable under our employee stock purchase plan The dilutive effect of

our senior convertible notes is calculated based on the average market price of our common stock during the applicable

period and the senior convertible notes conversion price The senior convertible notes are excluded from our computation of

diluted earnings per share when the per share conversion price is greater than the average market price of our common stock

during the applicable periods

The following table sets forth the computation of basic and diluted net income loss per share in thousands except

per share amounts

Years Ended May 31

Basic net income per share computation

Net income1

Weighted average common sharesbasic

Basic net income per share

Diluted net income per share computation

Net income1

Diluted weighted average shares calculation

Weighted average common shares

Net dilutive effect of

Stock options

Restricted stock awards

ESPP shares

Weighted average common sharesdiluted

Diluted net income per share

2010 2009 2008

as adjusted as adjusted

$13024 $14191 $9322

161442 164011 177283

$0.08 $0.09 $0.05

$13024 $14191 $9322

161442 164011 177283

1977 1781 3007

1818 577 274

14 24 16

165251 166393 180580

$0.08 $0.08 $0.05

Adjusted to reflect adoption of the FASB guidance on accounting for convertible debt securities
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Potentially dilutive shares of common stock related to share-based payments and warrants are excluded from the

diluted net income per share computations when their exercise prices are greater than the average market price of our

common stock during the applicable periods as their inclusion would be anti-dilutive

The following table sets forth potentially dilutive weighted average shares which were excluded from our

computation of diluted net income per share because their inclusion would have been anti-dilutive in thousands

Years Ended May 31

2010 2009 2008

Stock options 6572 10926 4917

Warrants 7114 19975

Restricted stock awards 12 254

ESPP shares

Total potentially dilutive shares 6573 18052 25146

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

In June 2009 the FASB issued guidance which amends the consolidation guidance applicable to variable interest

entities VIEs This guidance clarifies the determination of whether company is required to consolidate VIE changes the

approach to determining VIEs primary beneficiary the reporting entity that must consolidate the VIE requires an

ongoing reassessment of whether company is the primary beneficiary of VIE and requires additional disclosures about

companys involvement in VIEs This guidance is effective for fiscal years beginning after November 15 2009 our fiscal

2011 We are currently evaluating how this may affect our accounting for VIEs but we do not expect it to have material

impact on our financial position results of operations or cash flows

In October 2009 the FASB issued guidance which amends the existing guidance for revenue recognition of non-

software elements of multiple element arrangements Under the new guidance when vendor-specific objective evidence or

third party evidence for deliverables in an arrangement cannot be determined companies will be required to develop best

estimate of the selling price to separate deliverables and allocate arrangement consideration based on the relative selling price

method The residual method of allocating arrangement consideration will no longer be permitted This guidance is effective

for fiscal years beginning on or after June 15 2010 our fiscal 2012 however early adoption is permitted We are currently

evaluating how this may affect our accounting for multiple element arrangements but we do not expect it to have material

impact on our financial position results of operations or cash flows

In January 2010 the FASB issued guidance that expands the interim and annual disclosure requirements of fair

value measurements including the information about transfers into and out of Levels and of the three-tier fair value

hierarchy established under the FASBs fair value measurement guidance This guidance also requires separate disclosure for

purchases sales issuances and settlements relating to Level measurements Except for the detailed disclosures related to

the Level reconciliation which is effective for the fiscal years beginning after December 15 2010 our fiscal 2011 all the

other disclosures under this guidance became effective during the fourth quarter of fiscal 2010 The adoption of the

applicable portions of this guidance did not have material impact on our financial position results of operations or cash

flows during fiscal 2010 and we do not expect the adoption of the guidance related to Level disclosures will have material

impact on our future financial position results of operations or cash flows
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Restructuring

We recorded restructuring charges of $13.2 million and $20.0 million during fiscal 2010 and 2009 respectively

During fiscal 2008 we recorded net restructuring accrual reversal of $0.7 million The fiscal 2008 reduction related to

adjustments to the original estimates established in fiscal 2007 The following table sets forth the reserve activity related to

our restructuring plans for the fiscal years indicated and the remaining reserve balances for severance and related benefits and

exited leased facilities which are included in accrued compensation and benefits and other current liabilities respectively in

our Consolidated Balance Sheets as of May 31 2010 and 2009 in thousands

Restructuring Actions

Balance May 31 2007

Cash payments

Adjustments to provision

Adj ustments to provisiongoodwill

Currency translation effect
__________ __________ __________ __________

Balance May 31 2008

Provision for restructuring

Cash payments

Adjustments to provision

Adjustments to provisiongoodwill

Currency translation effect
____________ __________ __________ __________ __________

Balance May 31 2009

Provision for restructuring

Cash payments

Adjustments to provision

Adjustments to provisiongoodwill

Currency translation effect
____________ __________ __________ __________ __________

Balance May 31 2010
____________ __________ __________ __________ __________

Fiscal 2010 Restructurings

Fiscal 2010 Q2 On September 30 2009 we approved plan to further restructure our workforce Under this plan

we reduced our workforce by approximately 65 employees The majority of the reductions occurred within our consulting

practice in our EMEA region These actions were undertaken as further refinement of our new vertical organization

including resizing of our services business to leverage our partner channel and in light of current demand for our

consulting and implementation services in EMEA The majority of the actions related to this plan were completed by the end

of the second quarter of fiscal 2010 The restructuring action resulted in pre-tax charges of $4.6 million for severance pay and

related benefits which we recorded in the second quarter of fiscal 2010 Substantially all of this amount will result in future

cash expenditures We expect that the majority of the remaining severance and related benefits will be paid by the third

quarter of fiscal 2011

Fiscal 2010 Q4 On May 27 2010 we approved and began implementing plan to restructure our workforce

including the elimination of approximately 160 employees The workforce reduction relates primarily to our M3 operations

in Europe the United States and Manila within our M3 Strategic Industries and General Industries business segments

Departures of affected personnel are expected to be substantially completed by the end of the first quarter of fiscal 2011 In

connection with these actions we recorded pre-tax charges of $7.1 million in the fourth quarter of fiscal 2010 for severance

pay and related benefits substantially all of which will result in future cash expenditures The majority of the severance and

related benefits will be paid by the end of fiscal 2011

In relation to the fiscal 2010 restructuring actions we made cash payments of approximately $2.9 million for

severance pay and related benefits during the year In addition we recorded $0.2 million net reduction in the second quarter

of fiscal 2010 accrual primarily as result of reduction in the number of affected employees

Fiscal Fiscal Fiscal Fiscal

Total 2010 2009 2007 2006

$24294 $10474 $13820

8805 5443 3362
731 237 494

4431 4431
1271 99 1370

1598 4695 6903

20372 20372

13517 8691 3599 1227
418 162 204 52

1612 1612
642 478 110 1010

15781 11997 782 3002

11659 11659

13282 2929 8907 633 813
1495 241 443 167 1460

606 606
273 352 189 18 128

$14774 $8137 $3722 $2915
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Fiscal 2009 Restructurings

Fiscal 2009 Q2 On November 18 2008 we announced the implementation of cost reduction measures in light of

the uncertainty in global economic conditions and in light of other operating margin improvement initiatives These cost

reduction initiatives included restructuring plan resulting in the reduction of approximately 285 employees and exiting

certain leased facilities In relation to these actions we recorded pre-tax charge of approximately $7.9 million in the second

quarter of fiscal 2009 and an additional $3.4 million in the third quarter of fiscal 2009 Actions related to severance were

substantially completed by February 28 2009 with related cash payments expected to continue through August 2010

Payments related to the exited facilities are expected to continue through November 2011

Fiscal 2009 Q4 On May 18 2009 we initiated plan to restructure our workforce in preparation for the fiscal 2010

vertical realignment of our organization The restructuring involved the reduction of our workforce by approximately 150

employees and the consolidation of space in certain of our leased facilities Actions related to this plan were completed by the

end of our third quarter of fiscal 2010 The plan resulted in pre-tax charges of approximately $5.3 million for severance and

related benefits and the consolidation of leased facilities resulted in pre-tax charges of approximately $3.8 million which we

recorded in the fourth quarter of fiscal 2009 We expect the majority of the severance and related benefits to continue through

September 2010 while the leased facilities costs will be paid through December 2011

In relation to the fiscal 2009 restructuring actions we made cash payments of $5.8 million relating to severance and

related benefits and $3.1 million related to the exited facilities during fiscal 2010 In addition we recorded net adjustments to

the accruals of approximately $0.4 million including additional expenses accrued related to exited leased facilities net of

change to accrued severance and related benefits due to reduction in the number of affected employees As of May 31

2010 we had an accrual of $3.7 million $0.7 million for severance and related benefits and $3.0 million for the estimated

fair value of our liability for the exited facilities As of May 31 2009 the accrual totaled $12.0 million $6.5 million for

severance and related benefits and $5.5 million for the exited facilities

Fiscal 2007 Restructuring

On February 28 2007 we restructured our workforce by approximately 250 employees to rebalance our resources

between various locations primarily in the U.S Europe and our global support center in the Philippines This reduction

resulted in pre-tax charge of $11.9 million which we recorded in the third quarter of fiscal 2007 As of May 31 2009 we

had an accrual of $0.8 million for severance and related benefits In fiscal 2010 we paid severance and related benefits of

$0.6 million and we recorded $0.2 million in adjustments to eliminate the remaining accrual

Fiscal 2006 Restructuring

On April 26 2006 in conjunction with our business combination with Intentia International AB Intentia we

approved plan designed to eliminate employee redundancies in both Intentia and Legacy Lawson These actions included

the reduction of approximately 185 employees and the exit of or reduction in leased space As of May 31 2009 we had an

accrual of $3.0 million for the exit or reduction of leased facilities In fiscal 2010 we made cash payments of $0.8 million

related to exited facilities During the second and fourth quarters of fiscal 2010 we made adjustments to reduce lease exit

costs of approximately $0.6 million for changes in estimates relating to the original lease restructuring plan These

adjustments resulted in reduction of acquired goodwill In addition we recorded $1.5 million increase in our lease accrual

in the third quarter of fiscal 2010 as result ofan early exit by subtenant The remaining accrual as of May 31 2010 was

$2.9 million for the exit of or reduction in leased space Actions relating to severance were completed in the third quarter of

fiscal 2008 We expect cash payments related to exited facilities or reduced space to continue through June 2012

As result of our restructuring plans and the realignment of our workforce we have experienced cost savings from

the lower facility expenses and reduced headcount and expect these savings to continue

Business Combinations

Healthvision

On January 112010 we completed our acquisition of Healthvision through the acquisition of all the outstanding

stock of privately held Quovadx Holdings Inc Healthvisions parent holding company Healthvision is Dallas-based

company providing integration and application technology and related services to hospitals and large healthcare

organizations We believe the acquisition of Healthvision is strategic fit for our S3 Strategic Industries segment The results

of operations of Healthvision have been included in our Consolidated Statements of Operations from the date of acquisition

Healthvision contributed revenues of $15.3 million in fiscal 2010 related to their operations from January 11 2010 through

May 31 2010
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The cash purchase consideration totaled approximately $160.0 million in cash net of approximately $10.4 million of

acquired cash We funded the purchase price from our available cash We used the acquisition method to account for the

acquisition in accordance with the FASB guidance on accounting for business combinations Under the acquisition method

the purchase price was allocated to and we recognized the fair values of Healthvisions tangible and intangible assets

acquired and liabilities assumed The excess of the purchase price over the fair value of the net tangible and identifiable

intangible assets acquired has been recorded as goodwill See Note Summary of Significant Accounting Policies Goodwill

and Other Intangible Assets We believe the goodwill arises from the benefits we expect to achieve from the additional

revenue potential provided by our expanded product offerings and increased access to customers in our healthcare vertical

within our S3 Strategic Industries segment

Transaction and merger related integration costs of $0.5 million and $1.1 million respectively associated with

Healthvision have been expensed as incurred and are reflected in our results of operations for fiscal 2010 in general and

administrative expenses These integration costs include approximately $0.4 million of severance and related benefits

resulting from the elimination of certain positions that became redundant in the integration of Healthvisions operations

majority of the affected employees will be working through the transition of their responsibilities and will be terminated

during the next nine months

We are responsible for determining the fair values of the acquired assets and liabilities These fair values of the

acquired assets and liabilities were based on our estimates as of the acquisition date of January 11 2010 and were based on

number of factors including valuations Identified intangible assets acquired included existing technology existing customer

relationships and trade names We used variations of the income approach method to value the intangible assets Under these

methods fair value is estimated based upon the present value of cash flows that the applicable asset is expected to generate

The valuation of the existing technology and trade names were based on the relief-from-royalty method and existing

customer relationships were valued using the excess earnings method The royalty rates used in the relief from royalty

method were based on both return-on-asset method and market comparable rates

The following table summarizes our allocation of the Healthvision purchase consideration in thousands

Accounts receivable net $19270

Identified intangible assets

Existing technology 45500

Existing customer relationships 46000

Trade names 4000

Goodwill 78211

Deferred revenue 9924
Deferred tax liabilities net 20888
All other net tangible assets liabilities net of cash acquired 2169

Total fair value of purchase consideration $160000

We expect that $6.1 million of the goodwill we acquired will be deductible for income tax purposes

The following unaudited pro forma financial information is based on historical financial information of Lawson and

Healthvision giving effect to the acquisition as if it had occurred at the beginning of the fiscal year for each period presented

and applying certain assumptions and pro forma adjustments These pro forma adjustments primarily relate to the

amortization of acquired intangibles recognition of deferred revenues interest income interest expense and the estimated

impact on our income tax provision We believe that the assumptions used and the adjustments made are reasonable given the

information available to us as of the date of this Annual Report on Form 10-K This pro forma financial information is

presented for illustrative purposes only and is not necessarily indicative of the operating results that would have been

achieved had the acquisition occurred at such earlier times or of the results that may be achieved in the future In addition

these pro forma financial statements do not reflect the realization of any cost savings that we may achieve from operating

efficiencies synergies or other restructuring activities that may result from the acquisition
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The following table summarizes the unaudited pro forma financial information of the combined Lawson and

Healthvision as if the acquisition closed at the beginning of the fiscal
year for each period presented in thousands except per

share data

Years Ended May 31

unaudited 2010 2009 2008

Total revenues $774701 $814814 $883080

Net income $16609 $18793 $11851

Net income per sharebasic $0.10 $0.11 $0.07

Net income per sharediluted $0.10 $0.11 $0.07

Vas Tech

On March 2008 we acquired all the outstanding stock of Visual Advance Systems Technology VasTech
provider of workforce management software and services based in Annapolis Maryland for $13.1 million With this

acquisition we are now offering our customers primarily in the healthcare and hospitality industries an advanced workforce

management staffing and scheduling solution to complement our Lawson Human Capital Management offerings The total

cost of the acquisition included direct transaction costs of approximately $0.1 million The purchase price in excess of the

$1.7 million fair value of net tangible assets acquired was allocated $7.7 million to amortizable intangible assets and

$4.3 million to goodwill In addition we recorded deferred revenue of $0.6 million as of the effective date of this transaction

The amortizable intangible assets included existing technology of $3.3 million to be amortized over five year period and

customer relationships of $4.4 million to be amortized over an eight year period The goodwill we recorded is expected to be

deductible for tax purposes The results of operations of VasTech are included in our Consolidated Statements of Operations

from the date of the acquisition

PLM

On March 17 2008 we acquired the Product Lifecycle Management PLM software division of San

Francisco-based Freeborders for $4.1 million The addition of PLM capabilities to our portfolio of enterprise software

offerings will help our customers in the fashion industry establish processes that we believe will enable them to cut the lead

time from product concept to production to actual delivery to the retail store shelf The total cost of the acquisition included

approximately $0.1 million in transaction costs The excess of the purchase price over the fair value of net tangible assets

acquired was allocated $1.9 million to amortizable intangible assets $2.8 million to goodwill and $0.6 million to deferred

revenue The amortizable intangible assets included existing technology of $1.1 million to be amortized over four year

period and customer relationships of $0.8 million to be amortized over six year period The goodwill related to this

acquisition is expected to be deductible for tax purposes The results of operations of PLM are included in our Consolidated

Statements of Operations from the date of the acquisition

Share-Based Compensation and Stock Incentive Plans

Share-Based Compensation

We account for share-based compensation in accordance with the FASB guidance on share based payments under

which our share-based employee compensation cost is recognized using the fair value based method for all new awards

granted after our adoption date of June 2006 and unvested awards that were outstanding at June 2006 We elected the

modified-prospective method of adopting FASB guidance under which prior periods were not retroactively restated

The applicable FASB guidance requires us to estimate the fair value of our share-based payment awards on the date

of grant using an option-pricing model We use the Black-Scholes option-pricing model which requires the input of

significant assumptions including an estimate of the average period of time employees will retain stock options before

exercising them the estimated volatility of our common stock price over the expected term and the applicable risk-free

interest rate Changes in these assumptions can materially affect the estimated fair value of our share-based compensation

and consequently the related expense recognized The value of the portion of awards that are ultimately expected to vest is

recognized as expense over the requisite vesting periods in our Consolidated Statements of Operations
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The following table presents the weighted average fair value of options granted to employees and the related

assumptions we used in the Black-Scholes option pricing model for the periods presented

Years Ended May 31

2010 2009 2008

Fair value of options granted in thousands $6428 $3672 $5452

Weighted average per share fair value of options granted $2.57 $1.43 $3.40

Assumptions used for estimating fair value of option grants

Expected term years 4.3 4.2 4.2

Risk-free interest rate 2.5% 2.5% 3.5%

Volatility 46.7% 39.1% 38.2%

Dividend yield

Expected term We calculate expected term based on historical observations and expectations of future employee

stock option behavior

Risk-free interest rate This rate is based on the U.S Treasury zero-coupon yield curve on the grant date for

maturity that correlates to the expected term of the options For fiscal 2010 the range was 2.28% to 2.5 8%

Volatility We currently use historic volatility using look-back period equal to the options expected terms

Dividend yield We have not historically paid dividends and do not expect to issue dividends for the foreseeable

future

The amount of share-based compensation expense recognized in our Consolidated Statements of Operations for

fiscal 2010 2009 and 2008 included compensation expense for share-based payment awards granted on or prior to June

2006 but not yet vested as of that date Prior to June 2006 we accounted for these awards using the intrinsic value method

in accordance with the provisions of APB 25 Share-based employee compensation costs have been recognized using the fair

value based method for all new awards granted after June 2006 Compensation costs for unvested stock options and non-

vested awards that were outstanding at June 2006 were recognized over the requisite service periods based on the grant-

date fair value of those options and awards as previously calculated for pro forma disclosures using the Black-Scholes option-

pricing model

In addition FASB guidance for share based payments requires forfeitures to be estimated at the time of grant and

revised if necessary in subsequent periods if actual forfeitures differ from those estimates As result share- based

compensation expense recognized in our Consolidated Statements of Operations for fiscal 2010 2009 and 2008 was based on

awards ultimately expected to vest Our estimated forfeiture rate was calculated based on actual historical forfeitures

experienced under our stock incentive plans Changes to the forfeiture rate are accounted for in the period of such change In

the third quarter of fiscal 2008 we performed our periodic review of our estimated forfeiture rate and based on turnover

during the previous twelve months we adjusted our forfeiture rate from 6.1% to 17.4% This change in estimated forfeiture

rate resulted in $0.7 million decrease in share-based compensation expense for fiscal 2008 In the third quarter of fiscal

2010 and 2009 we adjusted our forfeiture rate to 16.3% and 17.0% respectively which had nominal effect on our

share-based compensation expense in both years

The following table presents share-based compensation expense recognized in our Consolidated Statements of

Operations by category for the periods indicated in thousands

Years Ended May 31

2010 2009 2008

Cost of revenues $4644 $1032 $740

Research and development 1032 634 452

Sales and marketing 6759 1617 1105

General and administrative 4593 5236 4446

Stock-based compensation expense before income tax 17028 8519 6743

Income tax benefit 6571 3279 2596
Stock-based compensation expense net of tax $10457 $5240 $4147
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As of May 31 2010 we had the following unrecognized share-based compensation which we expect to recognize

over the weighted average periods indicated in thousands

Outstanding Restricted

Stock Stock

Options Awards

Unrecognized compensation expense $8580 $17354

Recognition period 1.32 years 1.65 years

Stock Incentive Plans

Our 1996 Stock Incentive Plan 1996 Plan provides for the granting of non-qualified stock options restricted stock

units performance awards and other share-based awards There are 27.7 million shares of our common stock reserved for

issuance under the plan As of May 31 2010 there were 4.7 million awards outstanding under the 1996 Plan and

approximately 1.1 million shares were available for future grant Our 2001 Stock Incentive Plan 2001 Plan provides for the

granting of incentive stock options non-qualified stock options restricted stock or restricted stock units There are

35.0 million shares of our common stock reserved for issuance under the 2001 Plan As of May 31 2010 there were

7.7 million awards outstanding under the 2001 Plan and 15.1 million shares were available for future grant

Stock Options

The stock options we grant to our employees generally vest over four-year to six-year period are subject to

acceleration under certain circumstances and expire seven to ten years from the date of grant Option awards are granted with

exercise prices equal to the fair market value of our common stock at the date of grant Newly issued shares are used in

settlement of stock option exercises

The following table summarizes stock option activity for fiscal 2010 2009 and 2008 in thousands and weighted

average exercise prices and remaining contractual life in years

Weighted Weighted

Average Average

Options Exercise Remaining

Outstanding Price Life

Outstanding May 31 2007 12463 $5.57

Expired/forfeitedlcancelled 316 7.72

Granted at fair market value 1605 9.56

Exercised 1672 4.10

Outstanding May 31 2008 12080 6.25

Expired/forfeitedlcancelled 834 7.35

Granted at fair market value 2563 4.50

Exercised 826 3.07

Outstanding May 31 2009 12983 6.03

Expired/forfeitedlcancelled 1256 6.27

Granted at fair market value 2499 6.34

Exercised 1780 4.83

Outstanding May 31 2010 12446 $6.24 4.65

Exercisable May 31 2010 8373 $6.27 4.15

The aggregate intrinsic value of options exercised during fiscal 2010 2009 and 2008 the amount by which the

market price of our common stock on the date of exercise exceeded the exercise price of the option was $3.8 million

$2.7 million and $9.3 million respectively Cash received from the exercise of stock options in fiscal 2010 was $3.6 million

The total tax benefit realized for the tax deductions from options exercised in fiscal 2010 was $0.2 million Options exercised

in fiscal 2010 include 650000 options exercised in net share exercise resulting in 10196 net additional shares outstanding

Stock options exercisable at May 31 2010 2009 and 2008 were 8.4 million 8.4 million and 7.5 million

respectively The total fair value of options vested during fiscal 2010 2009 and 2008 was $5.8 million $5.7 million and

$5.6 million respectively
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summary of stock options as of May 31 2010 is as follows in thousands except per share data

Options Outstanding Options Exercisable

Weighted- Weighted-

Average Average

Remaining Remaining Aggregate

Number Contractual Contractual Intrinsic

Range of Exercise Prices of Options Life Yrs ___________ ___________ ____________
Life Yrs ___________

ValueI

$2.25 -$2.32 158 0.67 0.67 $936

$2.97 390 1.25 1.25 2056

$3.91 $7.19 8800 5.36 4.92 13566

$7.20- $13.00 3093 4.59 4.56

$14.00 ________ 1.64 _______ ________
$2.25-$14.00 ________ 4.90 _______ ________ $16558

The aggregate intrinsic value was calculated based on the amount by which the market value of our common stock

on May 31 2010 of $8.25 exceeded the weighted-average exercise prices for all in-the-money options outstanding

and options exercisable

Restricted Stock and Restricted Stock Unit RSU Awards

The following table summarizes restricted stock award activity during the fiscal 2010 2009 and 2008 in thousands

except per share data

Nonvested May 31 2007

Granted

Vested

Cancelled
____________

Nonvested May 31 2008

Granted

Vested

Cancelled
____________

Nonvested May 31 2009

Granted

Vested

Cancelled
____________

Nonvested May 31 2010
___________

On June 2005 we granted restricted stock award of 100000 shares of common stock to our then newly

appointed President and CEO These shares had $0.5 million market value at the date of grant vested in two 50000 share

increments on June 2006 and 2007 and were subject to acceleration upon certain events The grant date market value of

the restricted stock award was recorded in additional paid in capital component of stockholders equity and was amortized

to operating expenses over the respective vesting periods

During fiscal 2008 we granted restricted stock and RSU awards to various executives of 430200 shares and 298125

shares respectively These awards had combined $6.8 million market value at the date of grant cliff vest three years from

the date of grant and are subject to acceleration upon certain events The grant date market value of the restricted stock and

RSU awards is being amortized to operating expenses over the respective vesting periods

In fiscal 2009 we granted 96100 shares of restricted stock 1042700 shares of service-based RSU awards and

582500 shares of performance-based RSU awards to various executives

The restricted stock grants and service-based RSU awards generally cliff vest three years from the date of grant and

are subject to acceleration upon certain events These restricted stock awards and the service-based RSU grants had total

estimated market value of approximately $0.5 million and $4.6 million respectively at the date of grant that is being

amortized to operating expenses over the applicable vesting periods

Weighted-

Average

Exercise

Price

$2.32

$2.97

$5.69

$8.41

Aggregate

Intrinsic Number

Value1 of Options

$936 158

2056 390

22441 5362

2459

12446

Weighted-

Average

Exercise

Price

$2.32

$2.97

$5.71

$8.26

1.64 $14.00

4.56 $6.27

$14.00 ________

$6.24 $25433 8373

Restricted

Stock

Awards

775

728

50
100
1353

1721

33
364
2677

2713

463
368
4559

Weighted

Average

Grant Date

Fair Value

$7.57

$9.38

$5.25

$7.96

$8.59

$4.42

$10.46

$7.81

$6.00

$6.47

$7.83

$6.09

$6.20
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The fiscal 2009 performance-based RSU awards vest based on Lawsons achievement of certain financial

performance targets currently based on our non-GAAP operating margin percentage the first 50% were to vest upon

achievement of the established performance target for fiscal 2009 and the second 50% vested upon achievement of the

performance target established for fiscal 2010 Vesting of these awards is also subject to acceleration upon certain events

These awards are to be cancelled if the applicable performance targets are not met We assess the likelihood or probability of

achieving the performance target for each vesting tranche on quarterly basis In general applicable compensation expense is

recognized when we believe it is probable that the related performance targets will be met and no compensation expense is

recorded and any previously recognized compensation expense reversed when achievement of the performance target is not

deemed probable For fiscal 2009 the performance target was not met Accordingly no compensation expense was recorded

in fiscal 2009 related to the first 50% tranche of the performance- based RSU awards not vesting related to fiscal 2009 and

they were cancelled in the first quarter of fiscal 2010 The second 50% tranche of the performance based RSU awards had

grant date market value of approximately $3.0 million that was amortized to operating expenses over the fiscal 2010

performance period as the fiscal 2010 performance target was achieved

In fiscal 2010 we granted 2121589 shares of service-based RSU awards and 591460 shares of performance-based

RSU awards to various executives

The service-based RSU awards generally cliff vest three years from the date of grant and are subject to acceleration

upon certain events The service-based RSU grants had total estimated market value of approximately $13.8 million at the

date of grant that is being amortized to operating expenses over the applicable vesting periods

The fiscal 2010 performance-based RSU awards vest based on Lawsons achievement of certain financial

performance targets fiscal 2010 non-GAAP operating margin percentage Vesting of these awards is also subject to

acceleration upon certain events These performance based RSU awards had grant date market value of approximately

$3.7 million that was amortized to operating expenses over the fiscal 2010 performance period as the fiscal 2010 performance

target was achieved

For fiscal 2010 2009 and 2008 amortization of the unearned compensation related to restricted stock and RSU
awards was $10.6 million $2.4 million and $1.6 million respectively

During fiscal 2010 none of the criteria to trigger the acceleration of any of the vesting requirements related to the

restricted stock awards or RSU awards occurred

Employee Stock Purchase Plan

In 2001 our stockholders approved our 2001 Employee Stock Purchase Plan ESPP which was effective as of our

initial public offering Our ESPP is intended to be qualified plan within the meaning of Section 423 of the Internal Revenue

Code of 1986 as amended Our ESPP as amended allows eligible employees to purchase our common stock at price equal

to 85% of the fair market value at the end of each quarter of the calendar year offering period The ESPP originally

terminated when all of the shares reserved under the plan were purchased or five years from the effective date unless our

Board of Directors resolved to extend the ESPP for one or more additional periods of five years each In June 2006 our

Board of Directors approved an amendment to extend the ESPP for five years which was approved by our stockholders

There are 20.8 million shares of our common stock reserved for issuance under the ESPP of which approximately

16.2 million shares were available for issuance as of May 31 2010 There have been 4.6 million shares issued under the

ESPP through May 31 2010

Under FASB guidance related to share based payments the estimated fair value of common stock issued under our

ESPP is recognized as share-based compensation in our Consolidated Statements of Operations for fiscal 2010 2009 and

2008 The fair value compensation costs of the shares issued under our ESPP is based on the 15% discount on our common
stock provided employees at the end of each calendar quarterly offering period ESPP share-based compensation of

approximately $0.4 million was recorded in fiscal 2010 and approximately $0.5 million was recorded in both fiscal 2009 and

2008

Tax Impacts of Share-based Compensation

In addition to the recognition of the fair value of our share-based awards as compensation expense in our

Consolidated Statements of Operations FASB guidance requires the benefits of tax deductions in excess of the compensation

cost recognized for those options and stock awards to be classified as financing cash inflows rather than operating cash

inflows For fiscal 2010 2009 and 2008 we had excess tax benefits from stock transactions of $0.9 million $0.6 million and

$2.1 million respectively which have been classified as financing cash inflows These amounts are shown as Excess tax

benefit from stock transactions in our Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
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Financial Statement Components

Supplemental Cash Flow Information

Supplemental disclosures of our non-cash investing and financing transactions in thousands

Years Ended May 31

2010 2009 2008

Stock options exercised using common stock $71 $307 $347

Assets acquired under capital leases $803 $3039 $425

Acquisition Related Costs

In fiscal 2010 we incurred acquisition costs of$l.6 million related to our January 2010 acquisition ofHealthvision

During fiscal 2008 we incurred approximately $0.3 million in acquisition costs related to our VasTech and PLM

acquisitions In the accompanying Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows these costs are reflected within cash flows from

operating activities within our net income in fiscal 2010 and within cash flows from investing activities as cash paid in

conjunction with acquisitions in fiscal 2008 We incurred no acquisition costs in fiscal 2009

Restricted Cash

We had $10.7 million held as restricted cash as ofMay 31 2010 of which approximately $0.7 million and

$10.0 million have been classified as current and non-current respectively on our Consolidated Balance Sheets The non

current portion relates primarily to the $9.1 million held on our account at Lehman Brothers See Note Common Stock The

remainder of the restricted cash balances relate to various collateral arrangements related to our property leases worldwide

We had $11.0 million held as restricted cash as of May 31 2009 current and non-current balances were $9.2 million

and $1.8 million respectively on our Consolidated Balance Sheets The current portion related primarily to the $9.1 million

held on our account at Lehman Brothers During fiscal 2010 when we obtained further information about the likely timing of

the settlement of our claims against Lehman Brothers estate we reclassified this restricted cash to long-term asset

Accounts Receivable Net

The components of our trade accounts receivable were as follows in thousands

May3l2010 May3I2009

Trade accounts receivable $107204 $141436

Unbilled accounts receivable 14259 14752

Less allowance for doubtful accounts 3487 3522
Trade accounts receivable net $117976 $152666

Unbilled accounts receivable as of the balance sheet dates represents revenue recognized on contracts for which

billings have not yet been presented to our customers These amounts have been earned but not billed due to the terms

specified in applicable customer contracts

Rollforward of Allowance for Doubtful Accounts

The following is roilforward of our allowance for doubtful accounts in thousands

Balance May 31 2007 $9907

Acquired in business combination 286

Provision 1110

Write-offs 6362
Recoveries 11

Translation adjustment 673

Balance May 31 2008 5625

Provision 1489

Write-offs 3283
Recoveries 14

Translation adjustment 323

Balance May 31 2009 3522

Provision 1312

Write-offs 1392
Recoveries 121

Translation adjustment 76
Balance May 31 2010 $3487
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Property and Equipment Net

Our property and equipment consisted of the following for the periods presented in thousands

May3I2010 May3I2009 Useful Lives

$519 $589 50 years

2761 4385 3-5 years

91281 70577 1-5 years

16520 21740 5-7 years

22201 21644 3-16 years

3077 6884 3-7 years

136359 125819

81688 70178

$54671 $55641

During fiscal 2010 we capitalized approximately $5.5 million of costs related to our implementation efforts of

internal use software in accordance with the FASB guidance related to intangibles-goodwill and other These costs are

included in equipment in the above table and are being amortized over the softwares estimated useful life of five years We

capitalized $12.3 million of similar costs in fiscal 2009 See Note Summary ofSignificantAccountingPoliciesProperty

and Equipment

Depreciation expense for equipment under capital leases was $1.7 million $1.2 million and $1.2 million for fiscal

2010 2009 and 2008 respectively Accumulated depreciation for equipment under capital leases was $2.3 million and

$3.3 million as of May 31 2010 and 2009 respectively

Deferred Revenue

The components of deferred revenue were as follows in thousands

License fees

Maintenance

Consulting

Total deferred revenue

Less current portion

Deferred revenuenon-current

May3I2010 May3I2009

$39221 $55667

275237 224115

13702 12741

328160 292523

319797 279041

$8363 $13482

In general changes in the balance of our deferred revenue are cyclical and primarily driven by the timing of our

maintenance services renewal cycles Our renewal dates occur in the third and fourth quarters of our fiscal year with revenues

being recognized ratably over the applicable service periods The increase in the May 31 2010 balance as compared to

May 31 2009 was primarily due to the timing of billings and related collections associated with our maintenance contracts

and the inclusion of deferred revenue balances related to our acquisition of Healthvision These increases were somewhat

offset by decrease in deferred license revenues as we recognized certain deferred license fees revenues in the first half of

fiscal 2010 primarily relating to contracts entered into in the fourth quarter of fiscal 2009 under our targeted sales campaign

offered to our existing S3 customer base

Long-Term Debt and Credit Facilities

Long-term debt consisted of the following in thousands

Senior convertible notes interest at 2.5%

Debt discount1

Car loans interest at average rate of .5%

Capital lease obligations interest at 3.0%

Total long-term debt

Less current maturities

Total long-term debtnon-current

May 31 2010 May 31 2009

as adjusted

$240000 $240000

17535 26022
2761 4384

1563 3562

226789 221924

2646 4591
$224143 $217333

Buildings

Automobiles

Equipment

Office furniture

Leasehold improvements

Equipment under capital leases

Total property and equipment

Less accumulated depreciation and

amortization

Property and equipment net
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Adjusted to reflect adoption of the FASB guidance on accounting for convertible debt securities

The aggregate maturities of long-term debt for each ofthe five years subsequent to fiscal 2010 are as follows in

thousands

2011 $2646

2012 223962

2013 164

2014 17

2015

Thereafter
___________

Total long-term debt $226789

Interest paid was $6.7 million $6.6 million and $6.8 million in fiscal 2010 2009 and 2008 respectively

In April 2007 we issued $240.0 million in aggregate principal amount of 2.50% senior convertible notes the notes

with net proceeds after expenses of approximately $233.5 million The notes mature on April 15 2012 The notes bear

interest at rate of 2.50% per annum which is payable semi-annually in arrears on April 15 and October 15 of each year

beginning October 15 2007 See Note Summary of Sign ficant Accounting Policies Recent Accounting Pronouncements

for additional information regarding our accounting for the notes The notes do not contain any restrictive financial

covenants The notes are convertible at the holders option into cash and if applicable shares of our common stock based

on an initial conversion rate of 83.2293 shares of common stock per $1000 principal amount of notes which is equivalent to

an initial conversion price of approximately $12.02 which reflects 35% conversion premium based on the closing sale

price of $8.90 per share of our common stock as reported by NASDAQ on April 17 2007 At the issuance of the notes we

simultaneously entered into separate agreements to purchase call options and sell warrants As discussed below we exercised

our right to terminate the call options and the warrants on October 10 2008 which are referred to below as note hedge

transaction and warrant transaction The conversion rate may be adjusted from time-to-time in certain instances The notes

are convertible only under the following certain circumstances

conversion based on the price of our common stock

at any time on or after January 15 2012

conversion upon specified distributions to holders of our common stock or specified corporate transactions and

conversion upon satisfaction of trading price condition

The notes are our senior unsecured obligations and are not guaranteed by any of our subsidiaries The notes rank

equally in right of payment with our existing and any future senior debt and senior in right of payment to any future

subordinated debt The notes are effectively junior to our existing and any future secured debt to the extent of the value of the

related collateral The notes are also effectively subordinated to all existing and future debt and other liabilities including

trade payables of our subsidiaries If fundamental change as defined in the governing indenture dated April 23 2007

occurs at any time prior to the maturity date then each holder of the notes shall have the right at such holders option to

require us to repurchase all of such holders notes for cash or any portion of the principal amount thereof that is equal to

$1000 or an integral multiple thereof on the date specified by us at repurchase price equal to 100% of the principal amount

thereof plus accrued and unpaid interest thereon to but excluding the repurchase date

We had certain business relationships with Lehman Brothers OTC Derivatives Inc Lehman OTC including

convertible note hedge transaction and warrant transaction both entered into as part of the issuance of our senior convertible

notes and an accelerated share repurchase transaction See Note Common Stock On September 15 2008 Lehman

Brothers Holdings Inc Lehman Holdings filed for protection under Chapter 11 of the United States Bankruptcy Code in the

United States Bankruptcy Court in the Southern District of New York Subsidiaries of Lehman Holdings including Lehman

Brothers Inc Lehman Brothers and Lehman OTC were not included in the filing On September 19 2008 Lehman

Brothers was placed in liquidation under the Securities Investor Protection Act In addition on October 2008 Lehman

OTC also filed for Chapter 11 bankruptcy
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Lehman Brothers was one of the original purchasers of our senior convertible notes None of the net proceeds from

the offering are on deposit with Lehman Brothers or any of its affiliates In conjunction with the issuance of the notes we

also entered into convertible note hedge transaction with Lehman OTC an affiliate of Lehman Brothers In separate

agreement we entered into warrant transaction with Lehman OTC Together these transactions were designed to reduce the

potential dilution resulting from the potential conversion of our senior convertible notes into shares of common stock and

effectively increased the conversion price of the notes to $15.58 per share from the initial conversion price of the notes of

$12.02 per share We paid $57.7 million $35.7 million net of tax benefit to acquire the call options and received

$34.2 million as result of the sale of the warrants The purchase of the call options was recorded as reduction to

stockholders equity and the sale of the warrants was recorded as an increase to stockholders equity in accordance with

applicable FASB guidance

The bankruptcy filing by Lehman OTC was an event of default under the hedge transaction and warrant agreements

As result of that default we exercised our rights to terminate both the hedge transaction and the warrant transaction on

October 10 2008 As result of our termination of the hedge transaction terms of the original transaction provided us the

right to seek recovery from Lehman OTC equal to the termination-date fair value of the common stock option instrument we

issued in connection with the hedge transaction At the time of termination the instrument ceased being hedge instrument

and was effectively replaced by our claim against Lehman OTC Accordingly for financial reporting purposes we recorded

the estimated fair value of the related hedge transaction asset and the warrant liability during the second quarter of fiscal

2009 resulting in decrease in our stockholders equity equal to the net amount of the recorded asset and liability As part of

the convertible note hedge transaction Lehman OTC agreed to have Lehman Holdings guarantee certain obligations of

Lehman OTC Based on the developments in the bankruptcy proceeding we do not anticipate receiving recovery from

Lehman Holdings for the guaranty agreed to by Lehman OTC

On June 2009 counsel for Lehman Holdings and Lehman OTC demanded payment from us of the termination-

date fair value of the warrant asserted that in the contracts we have waived the right to setoff against the amounts owed to us

under the hedge transaction and claimed we violated the bankruptcy stay in asserting offset rights We have refused payment

and contend that the U.S Bankruptcy Code gives us legal rights of offset in this dispute Lehman OTC disagrees with our

contention and claims that we waived our right of offset under the terms of the original transaction documents As of the date

of this filing we are in discussions with representatives of Lehman OTC regarding the resolution of the offset issue as well as

other issues surrounding the hedge transaction asset and the warrant liability including their proper valuation We continue to

closely monitor the Lehman Holdings bankruptcy situation the liquidation of Lehman Brothers as well as the Lehman OTC

bankruptcy and our legal rights under our contractual relationships with Lehman OTC and Lehman Brothers

For financial reporting purposes we estimated the fair value of the hedge transaction asset and the warrant liability

using the Black-Scholes option pricing model and considered the credit risk of Lehman OTC The fair value of these

obligations recorded for financial reporting purposes may differ from the values ultimately determined in various legal

proceedings including actions of the U.S bankruptcy court If the ultimate settlement of either of these obligations differs

from the recorded amounts we will be required to recognize any related gain or loss in our results of operations in the period

such settlement is known As of May 31 2010 our claim against Lehman OTC and Lehman OTCs claim against us have not

been settled

The terms of the senior convertible notes and the rights of note holders are not affected by the status of Lehman

Holdings or Lehman OTC or by the termination of the convertible note hedge or warrant transactions We currently believe

that the Lehman Holdings bankruptcy and its potential impact on subsidiaries of Lehman Holdings the liquidation of

Lehman Brothers and the bankruptcy of Lehman OTC will not have material adverse effect on our financial position

results of operations or cash flows

We have an uncommitted credit facility that consists of guarantee line with Skandinaviska Enskilda Banken SEB
in the amount of $3.8 million 30.0 million SEK We had no borrowings outstanding under this line as of May 31 2010

Non-controlling Interest and Investment in Unconsolidated Subsidiaries

Non-controlling Interest As of May 31 2010 we had an over 99% interest in our subsidiary in Poland The non-

controlling interest for our Poland subsidiary was in deficit position as of May 31 2010 and 2009 and therefore there was

no non-controlling interest recorded on our Consolidated Balance Sheets

Investment in Unconsolidated Subsidiaries We recorded approximately $0.1 million or less of equity in earnings

from investments in unconsolidated subsidiaries in each of fiscal 2010 2009 and 2008 Net sales recorded related to these

subsidiaries were immaterial The equity method of accounting is used for companies and other investments for which we
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have significant influence which generally represents common stock ownership or partnership equity of at least 20% and not

more than 50% As of May 31 2010 our investment in unconsolidated subsidiaries included 30% interest in Intentia

Thailand Co Ltd and 43% interest in Scase A/S Both of these companies are involved in the sale of our M3 software and

the supporting services associated with the software Investments in unconsolidated subsidiaries are included in other assets

in our Consolidated Balance Sheets

Common Stock

Our Board of Directors approved share repurchase program of up to $100.0 million of common stock in November

2006 and on July 10 2008 increased the maximum authorized for repurchase under the program to $400.0 million The share

repurchases are funded using our existing cash balances and future cash flows and may occur through transactions structured

through investment banking institutions as permitted by securities laws and other legal requirements open market purchases

privately negotiated transactions and/or other mechanisms Our share repurchase program does not have an expiration date

and allows us to repurchase shares at our discretion and market conditions influence the timing of the buybacks and the

number of shares repurchased There can be no assurance as to the amount timing or repurchase price of future repurchases

if any related to the share repurchase program The program may also be modified extended or terminated by our Board of

Directors at any time

In fiscal 2010 we repurchased an aggregate of 1.3 million shares of our common stock at an average price of $5.92

per share under the share repurchase program From inception of the repurchase program through May 31 2010 we have

used $270.9 million to repurchase approximately 32.9 million shares at an average price of $8.23 per share The repurchased

shares are recorded as treasury stock and result in reduction to our stockholders equity The shares will be used for general

corporate purposes As of May 31 2010 the maximum dollar value of shares that may yet be purchased under this program

was $129.1 million

During the first quarter of fiscal 2009 we purchased 11.5 million shares through an accelerated share repurchase

transaction the ASR that we entered into with Lehman OTC on July 15 2008 The average price per share of the shares

purchased under the ASR transaction was $7.93 Lehman OTC delivered 11.5 million shares of our common stock to us

through August 2008 Under the agreement Lehman OTC was obligated to deliver additional shares to us at maturity of

the transaction based on the final per share purchase price and the total number of shares repurchased as determined primarily

by the volume-weighted average price of our common stock during the term of the agreement The agreement further

required that Lehman post cash collateral to segregated brokerage account in our name in an amount equal to the value of

the additional shares or net cash due to us if the ASR were terminated as of the current date Upon an event of default by

Lehman OTC pursuant to our rights under the ASR we issued notice of default to Lehman OTC on September 24 2008

and terminated the ASR agreement and requested the distribution of all $9.1 million of funds which Lehman OTC had

previously deposited into our segregated brokerage account at Lehman Brothers as required under the ASR agreement On

March 25 2009 we received notice from the bankruptcy trustee for the Lehman Brothers estate that the trustee has allowed

our customer claim for that $9.1 million amount As of the filing date of this Annual Report on Form 10-K we have not

received payment of these funds

The bankruptcy trustee for the Lehman Brothers estate has filed certain court papers against Lehman Brothers

indicating that there were shortfalls in the reserves intended to cover customer claims such as Lawsons ASR claim for

$9.1 million The trustee sought permission to use assets other than the reserves to cover these customer claims Several

creditors non-customers objected and compromise was reached in early March where funds could be used to cover what

appears to be significant part of the shortfall and the trustee could seek further authority to cover additional shortfalls The

trustee is continuing to investigate the reasons for the aggregate shortfalls in the reserve for all customer claims and other

possible sources of funds to make up the aggregate shortfall We had originally anticipated that we would receive payment of

our approved $9.1 million claim in 2010 and had recorded these funds as restricted cash and reflected the funds as current

asset in our Consolidated Balance Sheet as of May 31 2009 However based on these developments relating to the Lehman

Brothers estate during the third quarter of fiscal 2010 we reclassified the funds to reflect them as long-term asset We

continue to closely monitor the Lehman Brothers bankruptcy situation and its impact on our claim

The $7.93 average price per share of the shares purchased under the ASR is inclusive of the $9.1 million discussed

above Any potential reduction in the amount we may receive related to our approved claim would be an adjustment to the

average price per share of the related treasury stock and would not impact our future results of operations

We currently believe that the Lehman Holdings bankruptcy and its potential impact on subsidiaries of Lehman

Holdings the liquidation of Lehman Brothers Inc and the bankruptcy of Lehman OTC will not have material adverse

effect on our financial position results of operations or cash flows We continue to closely monitor the Lehman Holdings

bankruptcy situation the liquidation of Lehman Brothers Inc as well as the Lehman OTC bankruptcy and our legal rights

under our contractual relationships with Lehman OTC
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10 Shareholder Rights Plan

On July 26 2004 our Board of Directors adopted Shareholder Rights Plan in which preferred stock purchase

rights the Rights were distributed as non-taxable dividend at the rate of one Right for each share of common stock held

as of the close of business on July 28 2004 Each Right will entitle stockholders to buy one-one hundredth of newly issued

share of Series Junior Participating Stock of the Company at an exercise price of $29.00 The Rights will be exercisable

only if person or group other than an exempted person acquires beneficial ownership of or makes tender for 15% or

more of our outstanding common stock

If any person other than an exempted person becomes the beneficial owner of 15% or more of our outstanding

common stock each Right not owned by such person or certain related parties will entitle its holder to purchase at the Rights

then current exercise prices shares of our common stock having market value equal to twice the then current exercise price

In addition if after person becomes the beneficial owner of 15% or more of our outstanding common stock we are

involved in merger or other business combination transaction with another person after which our common stock does not

remain outstanding or sells 50% or more of its assets or earning power to another person each Right will entitle its holder to

purchase at the Rights then current exercise price shares of common stock of such other person having market value equal

to twice the current exercise price

Our Board of Directors will be entitled to redeem the Rights at $0.01 per Right at any time prior to person or group

acquiring 15% or more of our common stock Otherwise the Rights will expire on July 28 2014

11 Profit Sharing and 401k Retirement Plan

We have defined contribution profit sharing plan which we believe conforms to IRS provisions for 40 1k plans

Our employees are eligible to participate in the plan upon employment and are eligible for the Company match upon

enrollment in the plan Participants may contribute up to 15% of their gross earnings to the plan We match 50% of the first

4% of employee contributions and may make additional contributions as determined by our Board of Directors In addition

we have defined contribution and defined benefit pension plans for certain of our international employees The defined

benefit plans cover approximately 210 employees in Norway France and Switzerland These plans generally provide pension

benefits based on years of service and compensation level Our aggregate projected benefit obligations under these plans was

approximately $5.8 million as of May 31 2010 and the aggregate fair value of assets available to fund these projected

benefits as of May 31 2010 was approximately $4.6 million Under the provisions of FASB guidance related to

compensation and retirement benefits net unrealized actuarial gains of $2.4 million related to our defined benefit plans have

been reflected in our stockholders equity in accumulated other comprehensive income in fiscal 2010 Our contributions to

the defined contribution plans were approximately $10.1 million $13.5 million and $12.9 million for fiscal 2010 2009 and

2008 respectively

On April 2010 our Benefits Committee approved plan to modify our defined benefit pension plan in Norway

the Plan such that beginning on June 2010 active participants in the Plan no longer accumulated benefits for their

services Assets equivalent to the accumulated benefits of all active participants in the Plan have been transferred to

newly-established defined contribution plan in fiscal 2011 All retired participants will continue to receive benefits under the

Plan The modification of the Plan resulted in curtailment of benefits in the fourth quarter of fiscal 2010 when the

modifications were approved Accordingly we recorded gain of approximately $1.8 million in the fourth quarter of fiscal

2010 related to the change in all active participants projected benefit obligations resulting from the curtailment This gain is

reflected in general and administrative expenses in our fiscal 2010 Consolidated Statements of Operations In addition the

modification of the Plan led to settlement of active participants projected benefit obligations in the first quarter of fiscal

2011 Therefore we anticipate recording an additional gain of approximately $1.5 million in the first quarter of fiscal 2011

related to the pension settlement

12 Income Taxes

The following tables related to our income loss before taxes our provision for income taxes the reconciliation of

our income tax rate and the temporary differences that comprise our net deferred tax assets have been adjusted to reflect the

adoption of the FASB guidance related to accounting for convertible debt securities See Note Summary of Sign ficant

Accounting Policies-Adoption of New Accounting Pronouncements for more information

Our income before income taxes consisted of the following components in thousands

Years Ended May 31

2010 2009 2008

United States $43455 $50894 $34542

International operations 2819 14972 3191

Income before income taxes $40636 $35922 $37733
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The provision for income taxes consisted of the following components in thousands

Current

Federal

State

Foreign

Total current provision

Deferred

Federal

State

Foreign

Total deferred provision

Total provision for income taxes

reconciliation of the expected income tax provision at the U.S statutory rate with the provision for income taxes

was as follows

Taxes computed at statutory rate

State taxesnet of federal benefits

Foreign earnings at other than U.S statutory rates

Unbenefitted foreign losses

Tax credits

Non-deductible expenses

Tax exempt income

Domestic manufacturers deduction

Valuation allowancecapital losses

Valuation allowanceother

Other net

Years Ended May 31

2010 2009 2008

35.0% 35.0% 35.0%

3.6 5.2 3.2

1.7 8.3 11.1
28.9 35.6 27.2

2.1 3.8 2.0
4.7 4.5 4.1

0.7

2.0 3.7 2.4
18.8

2.3 9.5 2.5
3.8 5.5 5.7

67.9% 60.5% 75.3%

Temporary differences comprising our net deferred tax assets were as follows in thousands

Current

Allowance for doubtful accounts

Accrued compensation

Accrued liabilities and other

Prepaid expenses

Deferred revenue

Net operating loss carryforwards

Tax credit carryforwards ______________

Total gross current deferred tax assets

Less valuation allowance
______________

Total net current deferred tax asset
______________

Non-current

Property and equipment

Identified intangible assets

Stock-based compensation

Original issue discount on convertible debt net

Capital loss carryforwards

Long-term lease and other

Deferred revenue

Deferred rent

Net operating loss carryforwards

Tax credit carryforwards ______________

Total gross non-current deferred tax assets

Less valuation allowance
______________

Total net non-current deferred tax assets liabilities ______________

Total net deferred tax asset

Years Ended May 31

2010 2009 2008

$12917 $20626 $15887

1870 3515 2324

5309 4194 4467

20096 28335 22678

3087 3906
229 417

4200 2281
7516 6604

$27612 $21731

1155

1069

3509

5733

$28411

May 31 2010 May 31 2009

$607

2041

5879

1006

2837

2518

47

14935

1583
13352

1259
36279

7060

8218

7099

2726
2290

2020

81887

156

68466

73156
4690
$8662

$104

165

8294

2891
8806

299

115

14892

1635
13257

36

9435
5541

11954

7092

3360

3191

627

80590

380

103336

80328
23008

$36265
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The following summarizes the roliforward of our deferred tax asset valuation allowance in thousands

Balance May 31 2007 $93459

Changes in valuation allowances related to purchased tax assets 4484
Adjustment of net operating losses 2756
Provisions for domestic valuation allowance 6732

Provisions for foreign valuation allowance 3320

Currency adjustment 10909

Balance May 31 2008 107180

Changes in valuation allowances related to purchased tax assets 8509
Adjustment of net operating losses 2982

Provisions for foreign valuation allowance 1087

Release of foreign valuation allowance 3402
Currency adjustment 17375

Balance May 31 2009 81963

Changes in valuation allowances related to purchased tax assets 301
Adjustment of net operating losses 5300
Provisions for foreign valuation allowance 2417

Release of foreign valuation allowance 1489
Currency adjustment 2551
Balance May 31 2010 $74739

During fiscal 2010 we adjusted certain income tax assets and liabilities related to our Intentia acquisition resulting

in reduction to goodwill of approximately $0.3 million See Note Summary of Sign flcant Accounting PoliciesGoodwill

and Other Intangibles

During fiscal 2010 we reversed $1.8 million of valuation allowance We provided for additional valuation

allowance of $2.4 million We also adjusted certain foreign net operating losses with full or partial valuation allowance by

$5.3 million

During fiscal 2009 we reversed $11.9 million of valuation allowance We released partial valuation allowance in

the amount of $11.3 million on deferred tax assets as we believe it is now more likely than not that tax benefits from these

deferred tax assets will be realized prior to expiration This determination resulted from our implementation of new

international business structure as well as settlement of certain intercompany debts between our international subsidiaries

which increased our profitability in certain tax jurisdictions To the extent we are able to generate sustained aggregate

profitability throughout our EMEA and APAC regions we may conclude that additional valuation allowance reversals are

appropriate in future period This partial valuation allowance release resulted in $3.4 million tax benefit to our operating

results and $7.9 million reduction to goodwill The reductions to goodwill related to the release of valuation allowances on

acquired deferred tax assets In addition we reduced the valuation allowance by $0.6 million related to deferred tax asset

that was associated with pension liability adjustment See Note Summary of Sign fIcant Accounting PoliciesGoodwill

and Other Intangibles With our adoption of the FASB guidance related to business combinations effective June 2009

beginning in fiscal 2010 any release of valuation allowance recorded through purchase accounting in relation to our

acquisitions will be included as reduction in our income tax provision rather than as an adjustment to goodwill

During fiscal 2009 we adjusted certain foreign net operating losses with full valuation allowance by $3.0 million

We determined that portion of the foreign NOLs was not sustainable so the NOL balance and associated valuation

allowance was reduced

In fiscal 2009 the valuation allowance increased by $1.1 million due to current year losses in jurisdictions with

full valuation allowance

We file income tax returns in the U.S federal jurisdiction and various state and foreign jurisdictions With few

exceptions we are no longer subject to U.S federal state and local or non-U.S income tax examinations by tax authorities

for years ending before May 31 2006 There is an ongoing audit in the U.S that began in the first quarter of fiscal 2010 and

there are ongoing audits in certain foreign jurisdictions that commenced in the fourth quarter fiscal 2009 While we believe

we have adequately provided for all tax positions under examination amounts asserted by taxing authorities could be greater

or less than the accrued provision We do not anticipate that the adjustments would result in material change to our financial

position nor do we expect the amount of unrecognized tax benefits or cash payments related to these obligations to

significantly change over the next 12 months
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The following summarizes the rollforward of or unrecognized tax benefits in thousands

Balance May 31 2007 $4637

Increases for tax positions taken during prior period 244

Decreases for tax positions taken during prior period 469
Increases based on tax positions related to the current period 1345

Balance May 31 2008 5757

Increases for tax positions taken during prior period 1093

Decreases for tax positions taken during prior period

Increases based on tax positions related to the current period 1731

Decreases for tax positions related to settlements with taxing authorities 726

Balance May 31 2009 7851

Increases for tax positions taken during prior period 984

Decreases for tax positions taken during prior period 144
Increases based on tax positions related to the current period 1054

Decreases for tax positions related to settlements with taxing authorities

Balance May 31 2010 $9745

We recognize interest accrued related to unrecognized tax benefits and penalties if incurred as component of tax

expense As of May 31 2009 we had $0.7 million in interest expense
accrued related to uncertain tax benefits During the

year ended May 31 2010 we recognized approximately $0.4 million in interest and had approximately $1.1 million accrued

at May 31 2010 which is included in increases based or tax positions related to prior periods in the above table Interest

recognized for the year ended May 31 2009 was $0.4 million Accrued penalties were $0.3 million at May 31 2010 and zero

at May 31 2009

As of May 31 2010 we had approximately $13.6 million and $2.5 million of U.S federal and state NOL

carryforwards respectively As of May 31 2009 we had approximately $1.9 million and $0.1 million ofU.S federal and

state NOL carryforwards respectively The federal and state losses expire in 2010 through 2025 if not utilized The NOL

carryforwards are subject to an annual limitation under Internal Revenue Code Section 382 but are expected to be fully

realized In addition we had approximately $0.1 million of federal and state research and development credits that expire in

2016 through 2027 There was no valuation allowance related to these deferred tax assets as of May 31 2010

As of May 31 2010 we had approximately $356.6 million of foreign NOLs and $329.5 million as of May 31 2009

some of which expire in various years beginning in 2010 and some of which will carry forward indefinitely depending on the

jurisdiction valuation allowance has been provided against the majority of the foreign NOLs

We have temporary tax ruling related to our Swiss finance company which provides for reduced income tax rate

of approximately 9.0% and reduced rate on capital taxes although we took action to liquidate this company during fiscal

2010 We also have temporary tax ruling related to our Swiss shared service center which provides for reduced income

tax rate of approximately 4.0% We have atax holiday for our Philippines shared service center until March 2011

We have not provided U.S income taxes on the excess of our book basis in the shares of our foreign subsidiaries

which is attributed primarily to purchase accounting and undistributed earnings of these subsidiaries U.S tax has not been

provided on this basis difference as it is considered permanent in nature and is not expected to reverse in the foreseeable

future This basis difference could be subject to additional U.S tax upon the sale or liquidation of these subsidiaries dividend

repatriation or other events

13 Commitments and Contingencies

We are involved in various claims and legal actions in the normal course of business We are of the opinion that the

outcome of such legal actions will not have significant adverse effect on our financial position results of operations or cash

flows Notwithstanding our belief an unfavorable resolution of some or all of these matters could materially affect our future

results of operations and cash flows

Employment Agreements

We have entered into various employment agreements with certain executives and other employees which provide

for severance payments subject to certain conditions and events

Operating and Capital Leases

We rent office space and certain office equipment under operating and capital leases In addition to minimum lease

payments the office leases require payment of proportionate share of real estate taxes and building operating expenses

Certain lease agreements include escalation clauses The total amount of base rentals over the term of our leases is charged to
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expense using the straight-line method with the amount of the rental expense in excess of lease payments recorded as

deferred rent liability Rent expense under operating leases was approximately $29.1 million $26.9 million and

$31.4 million for fiscal 2010 2009 and 2008 respectively

Future minimum lease payments under operating leases are as follows in thousands

2011 $25240

2012 16567

2013 7630

2014 6624

2015 5730

Thereafter 1818

Total minimum operating lease payments $63609

Future minimum lease payments under capital leases are as follows in thousands

2011 $1031

2012 459

2013 121

2014 17

2015

Thereafter
________

Total minimum capital lease payments 1628

Less amounts representing interest 65
Present value of net minimum obligations 1563

Less current portion 985
Long-term capital lease obligations $578

Jndemnjfication and Guarantee Agreements

We license our software products to customers under end user license agreements and to certain resellers or other

business partners under business partner agreements These agreements generally include certain provisions for indemnifying

our customer or business partner against losses expenses and liabilities from damages that may be awarded against them if

our software or the third-party-owned software we resell is found to infringe patent copyright trademark or other

proprietary right of third-party These agreements generally limit our indemnification obligations based on industry-

standards and geographical parameters and give us the right to replace an infringing product The maximum potential amount

of future payments we could be required to make under these indemnification agreements is unlimited however we believe

our internal development processes and other practices limit our exposure under these indemnification provisions In

addition the invention and nondisclosure agreements signed by our employees assign to us various intellectual property

rights There is no pending litigation for which we are required to provide indemnification under these agreements

Accordingly there are no liabilities recorded for these agreements as of May 31 2010

We enter into services agreements with customers for the implementation of our software We may also subcontract

these services to our business partners From time-to-time we include in these services agreements certain provisions for

indemnifying our customer against losses expenses and liabilities from these services including for example personal

injury or tangible property damage Lease agreements and other contracts with our vendors may also impose similar

indemnification obligations on us for personal injury tangible property damage or other claims The maximum potential

amount of future payments we could be required to make under these indemnification agreements is unlimited however we
have general liability and umbrella insurance policies that enable us to recover portion of certain amounts paid There is no

pending litigation for which we are required to provide indemnification under these agreements Accordingly there are no

liabilities recorded for these agreements as of May 31 2010

We have arrangements with certain subcontractors who perform services for our customers whereby we guarantee

the expenses incurred by certain of their employees The term is from execution of the arrangement until cancellation and

payment of any outstanding amounts Unless otherwise limited in the contract we would be required to pay any unsettled

employee expenses upon notification from the vendor The maximum potential amount of future payments we could be

required to make under these indemnification agreements is insignificant Accordingly there are no liabilities recorded for

these agreements as of May 31 2010
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We have arrangements with certain of our customers whereby we guarantee the products and services purchased

will operate materially and substantially as described in the documentation that we provided When customer purchases

support for our software products we generally warrant that those products then eligible for maintenance will operate

materially and substantially as described in the documentation that we provided with that software We also generally warrant

that our services will be provided by trained personnel and in professional manner using commercially reasonable efforts If

necessary we provide for the estimated cost of product and service warranties based on specific warranty claims and claim

history

Legal

Patent Infringement Lawsuit by cF/us On May 19 2009 ePlus Inc filed lawsuit in the United States District

Court for the Eastern District of Virginia against Lawson Software Inc Perfect Commerce Inc SciQuest Inc and Verian

Technologies Inc The other three defendants subsequently entered into separate confidential settlements and the court

dismissed their parts of the lawsuit The May 2009 complaint alleges that Lawsons supply chain products infringe three U.S

patents owned by ePlus In that complaint ePlus seeks damages in an undisclosed amount enhancement of those damages

an attorneys fee award and an injunction against further infringement In May 2010 ePlus quantified its damages claim

based on an alleged 5% to 6% royalty on all license maintenance and services revenues in the United States since November

2003 for wide range of Lawsons supply chain products Those alleged royalty damages would total $28 to $33 million or

more and all or part of that award could be increased up to treble damages by the court at its discretion if ePlus proved

willful infringement by Lawson damages award would also include pre-judgment interest which could total $6 to

$8 million if ePlus were awarded damages in the amount claimed ePlus may supplement its damages demand before trial

based on updated Lawson sales information If ePlus
proves infringement the court also has discretion to require Lawson to

reimburse ePlus for its legal fees and costs We are contesting the infringement claims and validity of the patents as well as

the time frame and scope of products and services associated with ePlus damages claim We are vigorously defending this

case because we believe we have meritorious defenses including non-infringement and patent invalidity This case is

currently scheduled to go to trial in September 2010 If we are not successful in obtaining summary judgment or other

resolution before or at trial at the conclusion of the trial the jury will decide whether or not ePlus has proved that Lawson has

infringed and whether or not Lawson has proved that the patents are invalid If the jury finds that Lawson failed to prove

invalidity of the patents and if the jury finds that ePlus has proved infringement then the jury will determine the amount of

damages payable by Lawson Given the inherent unpredictability of litigation and jury trials we cannot at this time estimate

the possible outcome of this lawsuit Because patent litigation is time consuming and costly to defend we will continue to

incur significant costs defending this case In addition in the event of an unfavorable outcome in this matter it could have

material adverse effect on our future results of operations or cash flows If ePlus prevails in this lawsuit we could be required

to pay royalty to ePlus on the sale of certain products and services in the future and if we could not reach agreement with

ePlus on the amount or scope of that royalty we would have to either stop the sale of those products and services or make

modifications to avoid infringement

Patent Infringement Lawsuit by Juxta Comm On January 21 2010 JuxtaComm-Texas Software LLC filed

lawsuit in the United States District Court for the Eastern District of Texas against Lawson Software Inc Lawson Software

Americas Inc and 20 other defendants One of the defendants Seco Tools Inc is Lawson customer Under the terms of

our customer license agreement we have agreed to defend and indemnify Seco Tools in this lawsuit The complaint alleges

that Lawson and the other defendants infringe United States Patent No 6195662 entitled System for Transforming and

Exchanging Data Between Distributed Heterogeneous Computer Systems JuxtaComm seeks damages in an undisclosed

amount enhancement of those damages an attorneys fee award and an injunction against further infringement On April 22

2010 JuxtaComm filed an amended complaint naming Lawson ProcessFlow Integrator and Lawson System Foundation as

well as any products and/or services in the Lawson S3 and Lawson M3 product lines as allegedly infringing We intend to

vigorously defend this case Given the inherent unpredictability of litigation and jury trials we cannot at this time estimate

the possible outcome of this lawsuit Because patent litigation is time consuming and costly to defend we could incur

significant costs defending this case In addition in the event of an unfavorable outcome in this matter it could have

material adverse effect on our future results of operations or cash flows

Patent Infringement Lawsuit by A/oft Media On May 14 2010 Aloft Media LLC filed lawsuit in the United

States District Court for the Eastern District of Texas against Lawson Software Inc Lawson Software Americas Inc and 12

other defendants The complaint alleges that Lawsons Planning Workbench for Food and Beverage software product and

possibly other software products infringe United States Patent Nos 7593910 and 7596538 which are each entitled

Decision-Making System Method and Computer Program Product Aloft Media seeks in undisclosed amounts damages

costs expenses interest and royalties We intend to vigorously defend this case Given the inherent unpredictability of

litigation and jury trials we cannot at this time estimate the possible outcome of this lawsuit Because patent litigation is time

consuming and costly to defend we could incur significant costs defending this case In addition in the event of an

unfavorable outcome in this matter it could have material adverse effect on our future results of operations or cash flows
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C/ass Action Overtime Lawsuit On May 20 2008 putative class action lawsuit was filed against us in the United

States District Court for the Southern District of New York on behalf of current and former business systems and technical

consultants The suit Cruz et al Lawson Software Inc et al alleged that we failed to pay overtime wages pursuant to

the Fair Labor Standards Act FLSA and state law and alleged violations of state record- keeping requirements The suit

also alleged certain violations of ERISA and unjust enrichment Relief sought includes back wages corresponding 401k
plan credits liquidated damages penalties interest and attorneys fees Given the preliminary nature of the alleged claims

and the inherent unpredictability of litigation we cannot at this time estimate the possible outcome of any such action We

successfully moved the case from the United States District Court for the Southern District of New York to the District of

Minnesota The Minnesota Federal District Court conditionally certified the case under the FLSA as collective action and

granted our motion to dismiss the two ERISA counts and the state wage and hour claims Plaintiffs moved for Rule 23 class

certification but the Court denied their motion At the present time the size of the class is limited to the 68 consultants who

elected to participate in the lawsuit by filing opt-in forms The overtime period at issue is two years which would be

increased to three years
if the plaintiffs proved that the Company intentionally violated the applicable wage and hour laws

The plaintiffs damages expert claims total aggregate damages of $10.3 for two year period for the 68 consultants and an

additional $2.9 in aggregate damages if the overtime period is three years Given the inherent unpredictability of litigation

and jury trials we cannot at this time estimate the possible outcome of this lawsuit On June 30 2010 Lawson filed motion

to de-certify the FLSA collective action which if granted would limit the action to the five named plaintiffs That motion

will not be heard until November 2010 As permitted by the present scheduling order we plan to file motion for summary

judgment asking for dismissal of remaining class members based on their performance of exempt duties and/or making more

than $100000 per year In the event of an unfavorable outcome in this matter it could have material adverse effect on our

future results of operations or cash flows

We have accumulated information regarding Intentia customer claims and disputes that arose before our acquisition

of Intentia in April 2006 The initial purchase accounting accrual for these claims and disputes was recorded in fiscal 2006 In

fiscal 2007 we completed thorough assessment of these claims and obtained sufficient information to adjust the

preliminary estimate of fair value for these claims and disputes resulting in an incremental accrual of$12.8 million In fiscal

2008 we updated our estimated reserve requirements based on an analysis of the current status of negotiations related to each

unsettled case at this time and recorded reduction to the reserve of $3.9 million We also made some refinements in our

resolution approach This combined with some favorable results drove the reduction in the estimated reserve in fiscal 2008

In addition in fiscal 2009 certain of these claims and disputes settled at amounts lower than anticipated and our estimated

reserve requirements were reduced by $3.4 million The original charge to establish the reserve and the subsequent

adjustment in fiscal 2007 were recorded to goodwill as part of the purchase accounting related to our acquisition of Intentia

The fiscal 2008 and 2009 adjustments to the reserve were recorded in general and administrative expenses in our

Consolidated Statements of Operations as the reductions occurred outside the period in which adjustments to such purchase

accounting was allowed The applicable reserve is recorded at present value and is expected to be consumed through

combination of cash payments accounts receivable wnte-offs and free services over the next 12 to 15 months As of May 31
2010 and 2009 we had reserves recorded of approximately $0.7 million and $1.9 million respectively related to the Intentia

disputes that arose before the acquisition We
expense our defense costs during the period incurred If the aggregate

settlement costs or judgments exceed the fair value estimate established as part of the purchase price adjustment the excess

costs would be expensed in the period incurred

The following table sets forth litigation reserve activity for the fiscal years presented in thousands

Balance May 12007 $18296

Settlements 9608
Interest 611

Reserve adjustment 3898
Translation adjustment 2005

Balance May 312008 7406

Settlements 1083
Reserve adjustment 3356
Translation adjustment 1057

Balance May 12009 1910

Settlements 521
Reserve adjustment 658
Translation adjustment 24

Balance May 12010 $707
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On September 29 2008 we received settlement offer from our insurance carrier related to certain of these pre

merger litigation claims We accepted this offer of1.2 million approximately $1.6 million We recorded the settlement in

the second quarter of fiscal 2009 when the funds were received and the .6 million is included within our results of

operations for fiscal 2009

We are subject to various other legal proceedings and the risk of litigation by employees customers patent owners

suppliers stockholders or others through private actions class actions administrative proceedings or other litigation While

the outcome of these claims cannot be predicted with certainty we do not believe that the outcome of any of these legal

matters will have material adverse effect on our consolidated financial position results of operations or cash flows

However depending on the amount and the timing an unfavorable resolution of some or all of these matters could materially

affect our future results of operations or cash flows in particular period

14 Segment and Geographic Information

We are global provider of enterprise software services and support We target customers in specific industries as

well as the horizontal market for our human capital management product line We serve customers in the Americas EMEA

and APAC geographic regions We determine our reportable operating segments in accordance with the provisions in the

FASB guidance on segment reporting which establishes standards for and requires disclosure of certain financial

information related to our operating segments and geographic regions Factors used to identify our reportable operating

segments include the financial information regularly utilized for evaluation by our chief operating decision- maker CODM
in making decisions about how to allocate resources and in assessing our performance We have determined that our CODM
as defined by this segment reporting guidance is our Chief Executive Officer CEO

Segment Information

During fiscal 2009 and prior years we viewed our operations and managed our business as one reportable segment

the development and marketing of computer software and related services including consulting maintenance and customer

support Beginning in the first quarter of fiscal 2010 we reorganized our operations to provide greater focus on and better

serve our targeted vertical markets within each of our product lines

In fiscal 2009 and prior years the operations that supported our S3 products and M3 products were under one

common leadership organization and the financial information utilized to evaluate our business operations for fiscal 2009 and

prior years were combined for all vertical markets for our product sales consulting services and maintenance and customer

support Following our fiscal 2010 strategic realignment we are now operationally aligned by industry vertical and our

management structure and financial reporting of our operations follow this vertical structure Based on our fiscal 2010

organizational structure and related internal financial reporting structure we determined that we have three reportable

segments relating to our three industries groups S3 Strategic Industries M3 Strategic Industries and General Industries The

S3 Strategic Industries and M3 Strategic Industries groups generally align with our Lawson S3 Enterprise Management

System and Lawson M3 Enterprise Management System product lines respectively Our S3 Strategic Industries and M3

Strategic Industries groups include key vertical industry markets for each of our S3 and M3 product lines respectively and

related services and support which we believe offer the greatest growth potential for Lawson The S3 Strategic Industries

group targets customers in the healthcare and public sector industries The M3 Strategic Industries group targets customers in

the equipment service management rental food beverage and fashion industries Our General Industries group includes

our services industries customers S3 and manufacturing distribution industries customers M3 which are in industries

not included in our other two industries groups

Within our organization multiple sets of information are available reflecting various views of our operations

including vertical geographic andlor functional information However the financial information provided to and used by our

CODM to assist in making operational decisions allocating resources and assessing our performance reflects revenues

controllable costs and controllable margin by segment which are our industries groups S3 Strategic Industries M3 Strategic

Industries and General Industries Segment controllable costs include costs of applicable license fees and other direct costs

costs of resources dedicated to each industries group direct general and administrative expenses and allocations related to our

professional services organization The resulting segment controllable margin is the financial measure by which each

segment and managements performance is measured Segment controllable margin does not include an allocation of non-

dedicated resources that support our entire organization or other corporate shared- services These unallocated expenses relate

to our functional areas or competency centers global sales operations customer support nearly all marketing nearly all

development and product management and general and administrative finctions executive management finance human

resources legal facilities and information technology services Certain other costs are also excluded from segment

controllable margin and are included in competency center and other unallocated expenses including share-based

compensation and pre-merger claims reserve adjustments In addition restructuring charges and amortization of acquired
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intangibles are not allocated to our reportable segments We do not have any intercompany revenue recorded between our

reportable segments The accounting policies for all of our reportable segments are the same as those used in our consolidated

financial statements as detailed in Note Summary of Sign fIcant Accounting Policies

The following table presents financial information for our reportable segments for the periods indicated in

thousands

S3 Strategic M3 Strategic General

Industries Industries Industries Total

$47676

147954

195630

78997

274627

124373

$150254

$41580

134175

175755

84089

259844

124826

$135018

$43196 $33254 $124126

73168 131864 352986

116364 165118 477112

116747 63552 259296

23311 228670 736408

163738 8390 372012

$69373 $144769 364396

285.90

13154

9472

308527

55869

15233

$40636

$36515 $31588 $109683

74319 141708 350202

110834 173296 459885

116954 96400 297443

227788 269696 757328

177053 127942 42982

$50735 $141754 327507

253928

19954

8892

282774

44733

8811

$35922

286650

73
13690

299609

51078

13345

$37733

We have retrospectively adjusted our segment information for fiscal 2009 and 2008 to reflect our new reportable

segments and to conform to the current period presentation

We do not assess or report our assets or capital expenditures by reportable segment except for goodwill See Note

Sunimarv of Signijicani Accounting PoliciesGoodwill and Other Intangibles for disclosure of goodwill by reportable

segment

Fiscal 2010

Segment revenues

license fees

Maintenance services

Software revenues

Consulting

Total segment revenues

Segment controllable costs

Sessent controllable margin

Unallocated expenses

Competency center corporate shared-services and other unallocated
expenses

Restructuring

Amortization of acquired intangibles

Total unallocated expenses

Consolidated.-operating income

Other income expense net

onsolidatedincome before income taxes

Fiscal 20091

Segment revenues

License fees

Maintenance services

Sofiware revenues

Consulting

Total segment revenues

Segment controllable costs

Segment controllable margin

Unallocated expenses

Competency center corporate shared-services and other unallocated expenses

Restructunng

Amortization ofacquieed intangibles

Total unallocated expenses

Consolidatedoperating income

Other income expense net

Consolidatedincome before income taxes

Fiscal 20081

Segment revenues

License fees

Maintenance services

Sofiware revenues

Consulting

Total segment revenues

Segment controllable costs

Segment controllable margin

Unallocated expenses

Competency center corporate shared-services and other unallocated
expenses

Restructuring

Amortization of acquired intangibles

Total unallocated expenses

Consolidated-operating income

Other income expense net

Consolidated income before income taxes

$38033 $43479 $50644

118705 70435 147639

156738 113914 198283

90659 156507 135825

247397 27042 334108

123962 203709 173568

$123435 $66712 $160540

$132156

336779

468935

382991

851926

501239

350687
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Geographic Information

thousands

The following table presents our revenues summarized by geographic region for the periods indicated in

Fiscal 2010

License fees

Maintenance services

Software revenues

Consulting

Total revenues

Fiscal 2009

License fees

Maintenance services

Software revenues

Consulting

Total revenues

Fiscal 2008

License fees

Maintenance services

Software revenues

Consulting

Total revenues

Geographic Region

Americas APAC EMEA Total

$76552 $7483 $40091 $124126

242571 11063 99352 352986

319123 18546 139443 477112

134723 16628 107945 259296

$453846 $35174 $247388 $736408

$68626 $6405 $34652 $109683

232448 10865 106889 350202

301074 17270 141541 459885

138801 13804 144838 297443

$439875 $31074 $286379 $757328

$69837 $8005 $54314 $132156

217728 9685 109366 336779

287565 17690 163680 468935

153658 14679 214654 382991

$441223 $32369 $378334 $851926

The following table presents our long-lived tangible assets consisting of property and equipment net of accumulated

depreciation summarized by geographic region in thousands

Geographic Region

Americas APAC EMEA Total

May 312010 $41925 $3524 $9222 $54671

May3l2009 $35381 $5879 $14381 $55641

The following table sets forth revenues and long-lived tangible assets by country for the periods indicated in

thousands

Years Ended May 3L

Revenues1

United States

Sweden

All other countries2

Total revenues

Long-lived tangible assets

United States

Sweden

All other countries2

Total long-lived tangible assets

2010 2009 2008

$440385 $429339 $429504

65299 82143 113328

230724 245846 309094

$736408 $757328 $851926

May 31 2010 May 31 2009

$41683 $35339

5686 9407

7302 10895

$54671 $55641

Revenues are attributable to countries based on the location of our customers

No other country reported revenues exceeding 10% of consolidated revenues or long-lived tangible

assets exceeding 10% of consolidated long-lived tangible assets In those fiscal years when

countrys revenues or long-lived tangible assets were less than 10% of the consolidated totals

applicable amounts are included in All other countries
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15 Related Parties

During the fourth quarter of fiscal 2009 we repurchased an aggregate of 1.6 million shares of our common stock at

an average price of $5.55 per share under our share repurchase program in four private transactions from May 2009

through May 12 2009 from an affiliate of Dr Romesh Wadhwani our co-chairman and member of our Board of Directors

We repurchased these shares at 2% discount from the closing market price of our common stock on the respective dates of

purchase As required under our Corporate Governance policy these related party transactions were approved by our Audit

Committee and the other disinterested members of our Board of Directors

On July 31 2007 we repurchased 1.1 million shares of our common stock from the Lawson Family Investment

Company Ltd an entity affiliated with Richard Lawson founder co-chairman and director of the Company In

addition 2.9 million shares were purchased from Symphony Technology Group principal stockholder of the Company
Dr Romesh Wadhwani our co-chairman and member of our Board of Directors is the founder and managing partner of

Symphony Technology Group These shares were purchased at $9.20 per share These repurchases were approved by all of

our directors who had no personal financial interest in the transactions and the repurchases were each part of our

board-authorized stock buyback program

Effective April 27 2007 Lawson International AB subsidiary of Lawson entered into two-year nonexclusive

reseller agreement with Symphony Service Corp India Pvt Ltd Symphony Services India for the territory of India the

Non-Exclusive India Reseller Agreement The reseller agreement automatically renewed for an additional two-year term

starting April 27 2009 Under the Non-Exclusive India Reseller Agreement Symphony Services India may distribute

sublicense and service products of Lawson and its subsidiaries to customers of Symphony Services India in India in

consideration of payment of the applicable reseller fees to Lawson The Non-Exclusive India Reseller Agreement supersedes

and replaces an exclusive reseller agreement for India that was signed in 1998 between Intentia International AB and Intentia

South Asia Pct Ltd India Intentia India and assigned by Intentia India to Symphony Services India in March 2005

Dr Romesh Wadhwani our co-chairman and member of our Board of Directors is principal stockholder of Symphony

Services India and Lawson indirectly through other companies affiliated with Symphony Services India and separately

disclosed under Schedule 13D/G The Non-Exclusive India Reseller Agreement is based on the standard form of non-

exclusive reseller agreement we used with non-affiliated resellers The Non-Exclusive India Reseller Agreement was

approved by management of Lawson our Audit Committee and by our Board of Directors with Mr Wadhwani abstaining

because it was determined that the new agreement eliminated exclusivity and is for shorter term than the former

agreement ii reflects Lawsons current standard terms for non-affiliated resellers and iii does not represent conflict of

interest We made no payments to Symphony Services India during fiscal 2010 During fiscal 2009 and 2008 we paid

Symphony Services India $0.4 million and $1.3 million respectively

In May 2005 Intentia entered an agreement with Symphony Service Corp Symphony Services an affiliate of

Symphony Technology Group LLC pursuant to which Symphony Services agreed to provide Intentia both product

development and customer support resources for an initial five year term subject to earlier termination after three years The

agreement was not affected by the consummation of the business combination with Lawson This agreement terminated in

September 2009

In September 2009 Lawson entered into new agreement with Symphony Services for product development and

customer support resources The initial term of this agreement ran through May 31 2010 and has been extended for an

additional one year period by mutual agreement through May 31 2011 as allowed under the agreement During fiscal 2010

2009 and 2008 we paid Symphony Services $3.3 million $4.0 million and $5.9 million respectively under these two

agreements
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16 Supplemental Quarterly Financial Information unaudited

Summarized quarterly supplemental consolidated financial information for fiscal 2010 and 2009 as adjusted to

reflect the adoption of the FASB guidance related to accounting for convertible debt securities was as follows in thousands

except per share amounts

Quarter Ended

August 31 November 30 February 28 May 31

2009 2009 2010 2010

Fiscal 2010

Total revenues $168992 $184422 $185967 $197027

Gross profit 96671 102150 102771 113722

Restructuring 75 4676 1154 7249

Operating expenses excluding restructuring1 78032 84293 90042 93924

Income before income taxes 14742 9247 7794 8853

Net income 5977 2754 1668 2625

Net income per share

Basic $0.04 $0.02 $0.01 $0.02

Diluted $0.04 $0.02 $0.01 $0.02

During the first second and third quarters of fiscal 2010 we included approximately $0.4 million $0.5 million and

$0.4 million respectively of expenses related to our capital leases in interest expense that should have been

included in general and administrative expenses We have revised the first second and third quarter unaudited

quarterly financial information to correct this classification The effect of this revision was to increase

previously-reported operating expenses This revision also resulted in comparable reduction in our

previously-reported operating income and interest expense not presented herein but had no impact on our

previously reported income before taxes or net income

Quarter Ended

August 31 November 30 February 28 May 31

2008 2008 2009 2009

Fiscal 2009

Total revenues $190916 $206357 $173848 $186207

Gross profit 96263 108626 91295 102512

Restructuring 231 7717 3534 8934

Operating expenses excluding restructuring 90325 90051 72844 80789

Income before income taxes 5330 9106 12184 9302

Net income loss 3691 3027 6217 8638

Net income loss per share

Basic $0.02 $0.02 $0.04 $0.05

Diluted $0.02 $0.02 $0.04 $0.05

No cash dividends have been declared or paid in any period presented
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Index to Exhibits Item 15a3

Number Description

3.3.11 Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation of the Company

3.21 Bylaws of the Company

4.11 Form of Certificate of Common Stock of the Company

4.22 Rights Agreement dated July 28 2004

4.33 First Amendment to the Rights Agreement dated June 2005

4.41 Certificate of Designations of Series Junior Participating Preferred Stock of the Company

4.512 Indenture between the Company and The Bank of New York as trustee dated as of April 23 2007 including

Form of 2.50% Senior Convertible Note due 2012

4.612 Registration Rights Agreement between the Company and Lehman Brothers Inc and Citigroup Global

Markets Inc dated as of April 23 2007

4.75 Registration Rights Agreement dated February 23 2001 between the Company and the stockholders

investors and founders named therein

10.15 Amended and Restated 1996 Stock Incentive Plan

10.26 Amended and Restated 2001 Stock Incentive Plan

10.38 Form of Stock Option Agreement under 1996 or 2001 Stock Incentive Plan

10.48 Form of Stock Option Agreement under 1996 or 2001 Stock Incentive Plan with additional terms regarding

acceleration of vesting

10.518 Form of Restricted Stock Unit Award Agreement under 1996 Stock Incentive Plan time based vesting

10.67 Form of Manifesto Stock Option Agreement under 2001 Stock Incentive Plan

10.73 Notice of Amendment of Out-Of-The-Money Stock Options Held by Officers Subject to Section 16 of the

Securities Exchange Act as of June 2005

10.821 2001 Employee Stock Purchase Plan Amended and Restated as of October 26 2006

10.97 Executive Change in Control Severance Pay Plan for Tier Executives Effective January 17 2005

10.103 Employment Agreement dated June 2005 between the Company and Harry Debes

10.113 Stock Option Agreement dated June 2005 between the Company and Harry Debes

10.123 Restricted Stock Award Agreement dated June 2005 between the Company and Harry Debes

10.1315 Form of Addendums to Employment Agreement with Harry Debes effective October 2005 and June

2006

10.149 Amendment to Option Agreement dated October 11 2006 between the Company and Harry Debes amending

the Option Agreement dated June 2005

10.1514 Employment Agreement dated October 2006 between the Company and Robert Schriesheim

10.1614 Stock Option Agreement dated October 2006 between the Company and Robert Schriesheim

10.1718 Form of Restricted Stock Award Document under 2001 Stock Incentive Plan time based vesting

10.185 Lease of real property located at 380 St Peter St St Paul MN 55102

10.194 Modified Master Relationship Agreement and an OEM Software Agreement between the Company and

International Business Machines Corporation extended through August 2008

10.2010 Value Added Reseller Agreement effective January 29 2004 between the Company and Micro Focus

International Holdings LTD Inc and its Affiliates

10.2118 Form of Restricted Stock Award Document under 2001 Stock Incentive Plan performance based vesting

10.2218 Reseller Agreement between StreamServe Inc and Lawson Software Americas Inc effective November

2008

10.2311 Non-Exclusive India Reseller Agreement dated April 27 2007 between Lawson International AB and

Symphony Service Corp India Pvt Ltd

10.2417 Amendment No adopted January 16 2009 to the Lawson Software Inc 2001 Stock Incentive Plan

10.251 Master Offshoring Agreement dated May 2005 between Intentia International AB and Symphony Service

Corporation
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Number Description

10.2612 Purchase Agreement among the Company and Lehman Brothers Inc and Citigroup Global Markets Inc

dated as of April 19 2007

10.2712 Confirmation of Convertible Note Hedge Transaction dated April 17 2007

10.2812 Confirmation of Warrant Transaction dated April 17 2007

10.2913 Amendment No adopted June 26 2007 to the Lawson Software Inc Executive Change in Control

Severance Pay Plan for Tier Executives

10.3015 Amendment No adopted November 2007 to the Lawson Software Inc Executive Change in Control

Severance Pay Plan for Tier Executives

10.3115 Amendment to 2001 Stock Incentive Plan adopted July 10 2008 to allow for awards of restricted stock

units under the plan

10.3215 Employment Agreement as amended January 17 2008 with Guenther Tolkmit

10.3315 Employment Letter dated July 26 1999 with Bruce McPheeters

10.3416 July 15 2008 agreement between Lawson Software Inc and Lehman Brother OTC Derivatives Inc

pertaining to $100.0 million accelerated share repurchase transaction

10.3516 Notice of Early Termination effective September 24 2008 of the agreement dated July 15 2008 between

Lawson Software Inc and Lehman Brothers OTC Derivatives Inc

10.3616 Amendment to IBM OEM Agreement dated August 18 2008 extending the term of that agreement until

September 14 2009

10.3716 Convertible Note Hedge Transaction Notice of Early Termination Date effective October 10 2008 between

Lawson Software Inc and Lehman Brothers OTC Derivatives Inc

10.3816 Warrant Transaction Notice of Early Termination Date effective October 10 2008 between Lawson

Software Inc and Lehman Brothers OTC Derivatives Inc

10.3918 Addendum to Employment Agreement dated August 2009 with Harry Debes

10.4018 Master Services Agreement dated September 25 2009 between Symphony Service Corp and Lawson

Software Americas Inc

10.4 119 Noncompete Agreement dated July 30 2009 with Collin Balmforth

10.4219 Noncompete Agreement dated July 30 2009 with Dean Hager

10.4319 Letter dated January 2010 pertaining to the compensation arrangements with Stefan Schulz Senior Vice

President and Chief Financial Officer of the Company

10.4420 Employment Contract dated January 2010 between SAS Lawson Software Consulting France and Eric

Verniaut

10.4520 U.S Parent company Supplement to Local Country Employment Agreement effective January 2010

between Lawson Software Inc and Eric Verniaut

10.4622 Amendment to 1996 Stock Incentive Plan adopted June 24 2010

10.4722 Amendment to 2001 Stock Incentive Plan adopted June 24 2010

10.4822 Change Order dated May 10 2010 related to the Master Services Agreement dated September 25 2009

between Symphony Service Corp and Lawson Software Americas Inc renewing the Agreement for one

additional year through May 31 2011

12.122 Statement of Computation of Ratio of Earnings to Fixed Charges

21.122 Subsidiaries of Lawson Software Inc

23.122 Consent of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP

23.21 Consent of Appraisal Firm

24.1 Powers of Attorney included on signature page

31.122 Certification Pursuant to Section 302 of Sarbanes-Oxley ActHarry Debes

31.222 Certification Pursuant to Section 302 of Sarbanes-Oxley ActStefan Schulz

32.122 Certification Pursuant to Section 906 of Sarbanes-Oxley ActHarry Debes

32.222 Certification Pursuant to Section 906 of Sarbanes-Oxley ActStefan Schulz
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Incorporated by reference to the Form 10-K filed on August 29 2006

Incorporated by reference to the Form 8-A filed on July 28 2004

Incorporated by reference to the Form 8-K filed on June 2005

Incorporated by reference to the Form i0-Q filed on April 2007

Incorporated by reference to the predecessors Form S-i Registration Statement File No 333-63394 filed on

June 20 2001

Incorporated by reference to the predecessors Amendment No to the Form S-i Registration Statement filed on

October 26 2001

Incorporated by reference to the Form 8-K filed on January 19 2005

Incorporated by reference to the Form i0-Q filed on January 2005

Incorporated by reference to the Form 8-K filed on October 17 2006

10 Incorporated by reference to the Form 10-Q filed on April 12 2004

ii Incorporated by reference to the Form 8-K filed on May 2007

12 Incorporated by reference to the Form 8-K filed on April 23 2007

13 Incorporated by reference to the Form 8-K filed on June 28 2007

14 Incorporated by reference to the Form 10-Q filed on October 10 2006

15 Incorporated by reference to the Form 10-K filed on July 112008

i6 Incorporated by reference to the Form 10-Q filed October 10 2008

17 Incorporated by reference to the Form 10-Q filed on April 2009

18 Incorporated by reference to the Form 10-Q filed on October 2009

19 Incorporated by reference to the Form 10-Q filed on January 2010

20 Incorporated by reference to the Form 10-Q filed on April 2010

21 Incorporated by reference to the Form l0-Q filed on January 2007

22 Filed herewith
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LAWSON SOFTWARE INC
COMPUTATION OF RATIO OF EARJlINGS TO FIXED CHARGES

Exhibit 12.1

Fiscal Years Ended May 31

2010 2009 2008 2007 2006in thousands except ratios _____________ _____________ _____________ _____________ _____________

Fixed Charges

Interest expense on indebtedness1 $16238 $15625 $15976 $5031 $53

Rent interest factor2 9689 9671 10467 8994 5454

Total fixed charges $25927 $25296 $26443 $14025 $5507

Earnings

Income loss before provision for income taxes1

Fixed charges __________ __________ __________ __________ __________

Total earnings
__________ __________

Ratio

$40636 $35922 $37733 $7434 $27667

25927 25296 26443 14025 5507

$66563 $61218 $64176 $6591 $33174

2.57 2.42 2.43 0.473 6.02

Fiscal 2007 2009 are adjusted for the impact of our adoption of the FASB guidance on accounting for convertible debt

securities

Approximately 1/3 of the rent expense is deemed representative of the interest factor

Our ratio of earnings to fixed charges was below one-to-one coverage by $7.4 million due to our net loss recorded in fiscal

2007



Exhibit 21.1

SUBSIDIARIES OF LAWSON SOFTWARE INC

As of May 31 2010

Subsidiary Corporation Jurisdiction

Confer Software Inc USACalifornia

Lawson Software Americas Inc USADelaware

Lawson Software USA Inc USADelaware

Lawson Technologies Inc USADelaware

Account4 Inc USADelaware

Apexion Technologies Inc USADelaware

Closedloop Solutions Inc USADelaware

Computer Assessment Systems LLC USADelaware
Healthvision Solutions Inc USADelaware

Healthvision Inc USADelaware
Lawson PLM LLC USADelaware

Lawson WFM LLC USADelaware
Lawson Software Africa Proprietary Ltd South Africa

Lawson Software Australia Pty Ltd Australia

Lawson Software Services Pty Ltd Australia

Voto Pty Ltd Australia

Lawson Software Austria EDV-Beratungs Ges.m.b.H Austria

Lawson Americas Brasil LTDA Brazil

Lawson Americas Chile Limitada Chile

Lawson Shanghai Software and Technology Co Ltd China

HV Solutions Shanghai Inc China

Intentia CZ a.s Czech Republic

Lawson Software Danmark A/S Denmark

Lawson Software Ltd England

Lawson Software Finland Oy Finland

Keyola Corporation USAFlorida
Lawson Software Consulting France SAS France

Lawson Software France SARL France

Lawson Software Deutschland GmbH Germany

Lawson Software GmbH Germany

Lawson Software Asia Pacific Branch Hong Kong

Lawson Software Ireland Ltd Ireland

Lawson Software Consulting Italy SRL Italy

LawsonSofiware Japan K.K Japan

Lawson Software Asia Pacific Branch Korea

Lawson Software Asia Pacific Branch Malaysia

Lawson Americas Mexico de R.L de C.V Mexico

Lawson Software Mexico de R.L de C.V Mexico

Lawson Software Benelux B.V Netherlands

Lawson Software Netherlands B.V Netherlands

Lawson Software New Zealand Limited New Zealand

Lawson Software Norge AS Norway

Lawson Software Inc RQHQ Philippine branch Philippines

Lawson PSSC Inc Philippines

Lawson Software Polska Sp.z 0.0 Poland

Intentia Consulting Portugal InformÆtica SA Portugal

HV Solutions Canada Inc Canada

Lawson Software Asia Pacific Pte Ltd Singapore

Lawson Software Consulting S.A.U Spain

Lawson International AB Sweden

Lawson International ABBranch Switzerland Sweden

Lawson Software Sweden AB Sweden

Lawson Software Finance SA Switzerland

Lawson Software Switzerland A.G Switzerland

Lawson Software Switzerland Vaud Sari Switzerland

MINORITY OWNED SUBSIDIARIES
Scase AS Norway

Lawson Software Thailand Co Ltd Intentia Thailand BP Thailand



Exhibit 23.1

CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

We hereby consent to the incorporation by reference in the Registration Statement on Form S-8 No No 333-91160 and 333-

74842 of Lawson Software Inc of our report dated July 15 2010 relating to the financial statements and the effectiveness of internal

control over financial reporting which appears in this Form 10-K

Is PRIcEwATERH0UsEC00PERS LLP

Minneapolis Minnesota

July 15 2010



Exhibit 31.1

Certification of Chief Executive Officer

Harry Debes certify that

have reviewed this annual report on Form 0-K of Lawson Software Inc

Based on my knowledge this report does not contain any untrue statement of material fact or omit to state

material fact necessary to make the statements made in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made not

misleading with respect to the period covered by this report

Based on my knowledge the financial statements and other financial information included in this report fairly

present in all material respects the financial condition results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of and for the periods

presented in this report

The registrants other certifying officer and are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls

and procedures as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15e and 15d-15e and internal control over reporting as defined in

Exchange Act Rules l3a-l5f and 15d-15f for the registrant and have

Designed such disclosure controls and procedures or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed

under our supervision to ensure that material information relating to the registrant including its consolidated

subsidiaries is made known to us by others within those entities particularly during the period in which this report

is being prepared

Designed such internal control over financial reporting or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be

designed under our supervision to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and

the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting

principles

Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrants disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our

conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures as of the end of the period covered by

this report based on such evaluation

Disclosed in this report any change in the registrants internal control over financial reporting that occurred during

the registrants most recent fiscal quarter the fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report that has materially

affected or is reasonably likely to materially affect the registrants internal control and financial reporting and

The registrants other certifying officer and have disclosed based on our most recent evaluation of internal control

over financial reporting to the registrants auditors and the audit committee of the registrants board of directors or persons

performing the equivalent functions

All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial

reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrants ability to record process summarize and

report financial information and

Any fraud whether or not material that involves management or other employees who have significant role in the

registrants internal control over financial reporting

Date July 15 2010 Is HARRY DEBES

Harry Debes

President Chief Executive Officer and Director



Exhibit 31.2

Certification of Chief Financial Officer

Stefan Schulz certify that

have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of Lawson Software Inc

Based on my knowledge this report does not contain any untrue statement of material fact or omit to state

material fact necessary to make the statements made in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made not

misleading with respect to the period covered by this report

Based on my knowledge the financial statements and other financial information included in this report fairly

present in all material respects the financial condition results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of and for the periods

presented in this report

The registrants other certifying officer and are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls

and procedures as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15e and 15d-15e and internal control over reporting as defined in

Exchange Act Rules 13a-15f and 15d-15f for the registrant and have

Designed such disclosure controls and procedures or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed

under our supervision to ensure that material information relating to the registrant including its consolidated

subsidiaries is made known to us by others within those entities particularly during the period in which this report

is being prepared

Designed such internal control over financial reporting or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be

designed under our supervision to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and

the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting

principles

Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrants disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our

conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures as of the end of the period covered by

this report based on such evaluation

Disclosed in this report any change in the registrants internal control over financial reporting that occurred during

the registrants most recent fiscal quarter the fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report that has materially

affected or is reasonably likely to materially affect the registrants internal control and financial reporting and

The registrants other certifying officer and have disclosed based on our most recent evaluation of internal control

over financial reporting to the registrants auditors and the audit committee of the registrants board of directors or persons

performing the equivalent functions

All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial

reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrants ability to record process summarize and

report financial information and

Any fraud whether or not material that involves management or other employees who have significant role in the

registrants internal control over financial reporting

Date July 15 2010 Is STEFAN ScHuLz

Stefan Schulz

Senior Vice President Chief Financial Officer



Exhibit 32.1

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C 1350

AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the annual report of Lawson Software Inc the Company on Form 10-K for the period ended May 31
2010 as filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on the date hereof the Report Harry Debes President and Chief

Executive Officer of the Company certify pursuant to 18 U.S.C 1350 as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley

Act of 2002 that

The Report fully complies with the requirements of Section 13a or 15d of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934

and

The information contained in the Report fairly presents in all material respects the financial condition and results of

operations of the Company

Is HARRY DEBEs

Harry Debes

President Chief Executive Officei and Director

July 15 2010



Exhibit 32.2

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO

18 U.S.C 1350
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO

SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the annual report of Lawson Software Inc the Company on Form 10-K for the period ended May 31

2010 as filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on the date hereof the Report Stefan Schulz Chief Financial

Officer of the Company certify pursuant to 18 U.S.C 1350 as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes- Oxley Act of 2002

that

The Report fully complies with the requirements of Section 13a or 15d of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934

and

The information contained in the Report fairly presents in all material respects the financial condition and results of

operations of the Company

Is STEFAN SCHULZ

Stefan Schulz

Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer

July 15 2010



Exhibit 10.46

AMENDMENT TO
LAWSON SOFTWARE INC

1996 STOCK INCENTIVE PLAN

Adopted June 24 2010 to remove from future grant any options

surrendered to pay the exercise price or tax withholdings

Pursuant to Section 12e of the Lawson Software Inc 1996 Stock Incentive Plan the Board of Directors of Lawson Software Inc

has approved the following amendment to the 1996 Stock Incentive Plan the 1996 Plan effective June 24 2010 Capitalized

terms that are not defined in this Amendment shall have the same respective meanings as described in the 1996 Plan

Amendment

Section of the 1996 Plan is hereby amended to include the following additional Section 4f

Section 41 Surrendered Options No Longer Available for Future Awards Notwithstanding any provision in this Plan

to the contrary the Shares underlying any Options surrendered to pay the exercise price and/or tax withholdings due upon the

exercise of such Options on or after June 24 2010 will not again become available for issuance under any Awards under this

Plan



Exhibit 10.47

AMENDMENT TO

LAWSON SOFTWARE INC
2001 STOCK INCENTIVE PLAN

Adopted June 24 2010 to allow for surrender of options to pay exercise price and

tax withholdings and remove from future grant any of those surrendered options

Pursuant to Section 13a of the Lawson Software Inc 2001 Stock Incentive Plan the Board of Directors of Lawson Software Inc

has approved the following amendment to the 2001 Stock Incentive Plan the 2001 Plan effective June 24 2010 Capitalized

terms that are not defined in this Amendment shall have the same respective meanings as described in the 2001 Plan

Amendment

Section of the 2001 Plan is hereby amended to include the following additional Sections 7d and 7e

Notwithstanding any provision in this Plan to the contrary an optionee may elect to pay the purchase price

for the Shares that are subject to the exercise of an option in whole or in part by net exercise of such option as further

described below In the case of net exercise of an option the Company will not require cash payment of the exercise

price of the option but will reduce the number of Shares issued upon exercise by the largest number of whole Shares that

have fair market value that does not exceed the aggregate exercise price for the Shares exercised under this method Shares

will no longer be outstanding under an option and will therefore not thereafter be exercisable following the exercise of such

option to the extent that Shares are used to pay the exercise price of an option under the net exercise

Notwithstanding any provision in this Plan to the contrary the Shares underlying any options surrendered

to pay the exercise price using net exercise under Section 7d or to pay tax withholdings under Section 12a on or after

June 24 2010 will not again become available for issuance under this Plan



Exhibit 10.48

SYMPHONY CHANGE REQUEST SCR FORM FOR THE MASTER SERVICES AGREEMENT

VENDOR Symphony Service Corp
ACCOUNT Lawson Software Americas Inc

Priority URGENT HIGH MEDIUM LOW

Requestors Name Curt Olson

Phone Fax

Email Pager

Requested Implementation Due Date

Request Type

New Functionality i.e new functionality or process is required

Enhancement i.e change to an existing functionality or process

lE Other

This SCR is issued pursuant to and incorporates the terms of the Master Services Agreement dated September 25 2009 the

Agreement between Lawson Software Americas Inc Client and Symphony Service Corp Symphony

The parties agree to be bound by the terms herein

Description

The parties hereby agree to renew the Agreement for one additional year The Agreement shall now end May 31 2011

ACCEPTED BY ACCEPTED BY

Symphony Service Corp Lawson Software Americas Inc

By Is Alan Harlan By Is Curt Olson

Authorized Signature Authorized Signature

Name Alan Harlan Name Curt Olson

Print Name Print Name

Title President PLM Title Director Global Sourcing

Date May 10 2010 Date May 10 2010



Forward-looking Statements

This annual review contains forward-looking statements that contain risks and uncertainties These forward-looking

statements contain statements of intent belief or current expectations of Lawson Software Inc and its management Such

forward-looking statements are not guarantees of future results and involve risks and uncertainties that may cause actual

results to differ materially from the potential results discussed in the forward-looking statements We are not obligated to update

forward-looking statements based on circumstances or events that occur in the future Risks and uncertainties that may cause

such differences are listed in Item 1A Risk Factors in our most recent Annual Report on Form 10-K filed with the Securities

and Exchange Commission We undertake no obligations to revise or publicly release the results of any revision to these

forward-looking statements

Use of Non-GAAP Financial Information

In addition to reporting financial results in accordance with U.S generally accepted accounting principles or U.S GAAP Lawson

Software reports non-GMP financial results including non-GAAP revenues operating income operating margin net income

oss and diluted net earnings per share We believe these non-I3AAP measures provide meaningful insight into our operating

performance and an alternative perspective of our results of operations We use these non-GAAP measures to assess our

operating performance to develop budgets to serve as measurement for incentive compensation awards and to manage

expenditures Presentation of these non-G.AAP measures allows investors to review our results of operations from the same

perspective as management and our Board of Directors These non-GAAP financial measures provide investors an enhanced

understanding of our operations facilitate investors analysis and comparisons of our current and past results of operations

facilitate comparisons of our operating results with those of our competitors and provide insight into the prospects of our future

performance We also believe the non-GAAP measures are useful to investors because they provide supplemental information that

research analysts frequently use to analyze software companies including those that have recently made significant acquisitions

The method we use to produce non-G.MP results is not in accordance with U.S GAAP and may differ from the methods used

by other companies These non-GAAP results should not be regarded as substitute for corresponding U.S GAAP measures but

instead should be utilized as supplemental measure of operating performance in evaluating our business Non-GMP measures

do have limitations in they do not reflect certain items that may have material impact upon our reported financial results As

such these non-GMP measures should be viewed in conjunction with both our financial statements prepared in accordance with

U.S GAAP and the reconciliation of the supplemental non-I3AAP financial measures to the comparable U.S GAAP results provided

for each period presented which are included in our Management Discussion and Analysis on our most recent Annual Report on

Form 10-K filed with the Securities and Exchange Commisssion

Reconciliation of GAAP Net Income to Non-GAAP Net Income in USD Millions

________________________________
2006 2007 2008 2009 2010

__________________________________
$15.959 $21.487 $9.322 $14.191 $13.024

____________________________________
2.342 11.430 1.670 0.538 5.747

0.898 0.525 0.150

__________________________________
3.950 3.555 3369 2.607 1.974

____________________________
6.303 7.654 6.741 8.519 17.026

3.827 5.021 0.6611

6.068 9.892 1.571

1.850

1.825 15.483 0.731 19.954 13.154

6.013 26.054 25.988 19.934 22.877

0.923 7.386 7.948 8.486

18.413

Other 0.786

Tax provision adjustment 9.228 18.246 9.037 9.962 2.703

Non-GAAP net income $34.018 $36156 $59819 $58.858 $68645

Fiscal year ended May31

GAAP net income

Purchase accounting impact on revenues

Purchase accounting impact on consulting costs

Amortization of purchased maintenance contracts

Stock-based compensation

Pie-merger claims reserve adiustment

Acquisition transaction and integration costs

Pension gain

Restructuring

Amortization of acquired intangibles

Non-cash interest expense related to convertible debt

Impairment on long-term investments



Stockholder Information

Meeting of Stockholders Executive Officers Board of Directors

The Lawson annual stockhokler meeting will be held at

p.m Central time Monday October 18 2010 at Lawson Harry Debes Richard awson

President COst Executive CvChairridrr of the Flood

corporate headquarters located at 380 Saint Peter Street
Officer Director Co-F ounder and For leer

Saint Paul Minnesnta
Chet Excrit inc Office

Stefan Schuli ajsnn Software Inc

Investor Information
Senior Vice President

Chief Financial Officer Dr Romesh Wadhwani
Electronic copies ot the Annual Report on Form 10-K

Co-Chairman of tire Board

tiled with the Securities arid Exchange Commission and
Cohn Balmlorth Founder and Managing

other tinancial documents are available on our website at Group Executive Vice Partner Symphony

wwwlawson.com/investor Presiderrt General Industries Tvchrinlogy Giouto

and Global Support

Steven Chang
Corporate Oftices

Jeffrey Comport Partner and Co-Founder

Lawson Sottware Inc
Senior Vice Preeideni Product Cleariake Capital Droop

380 Saint Peter Street
Marregeirierrr

Saint Paul MN 551 02 Harry Debes

United States Dean Hager Prcoidrnr aect Chief Leecetiuc
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LAWSØNM
Headquarters USA

380 St Peter Street

St Paul MN 551 02-1302

Tel 851 767 7000

into@lawson.com

Americas United States

Brazil Chile Canada Tel 651 767 7000

Mexico Honduras irtfous@lawson.com

United States Venezuela

Asia Singapore

China Hong Kong
Tel 65 6788 8769

India Indonesia Japan
Fax 65 6788 8757

Korea Malaysia Philippines infoasia@lawson.com

Singapore Sri Lanka

Taiwan Thailand Vietnam

Australia Oceania Australia

Australia New Zealand Tel 61 294688900

Fax 61 294689199

intoanz@lamson.com

Northern Europe Sweden

Denmark Eutonia Finland Tel 46 5552 5000

Norway Sweden Fax 46 5552 5999

infonordiclawson.com

Northwestern Europe United Kingdom

Belgium The Netherlands Tel 44 1344 360273

Ireland United Kingdom Fax 44 1344 868351

infonw@lamson.com

Central Europe Germany

Austria Czech Republic Tel 49 2103 89060

Germany Hungary
Fax 49 2103 8906 199

Poland Rumania Russia infoce@lawson.com

Slnvakia Swierland Turkey

Southern Europe France

France Greece Italy Tel 33 34 20 80 00

Portugal Spain Fax 33 40 39 25 07

irtfoso@lawson.com

Middle East Africa Partner Contact

Egypt Israel Msrrucs Tel 44 1344 360273

South Afkca Tanzania Fax 44 1344 868351

United Arab Emirates infome@lawson.com

www.lawson.com
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